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Region IV - MIMAROPA
COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE

5312 Taytay, Palawan

EDGAR O. PACANA, SAMUEL O.
PACANA and OSCAR O. PACANA
Protestant

-Versus-

THE CLAIM OF BARANGAY
GOVERNMENT OF VILLA
LIBERTAD rep. by PUNONG
BARANGAY JHONY FABREGAS
and VILLA LIBERTAD
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL rep. by
HEAD TEACHER BELEN &S.
CABUTIHAN.

Protestee

Land case No. 0510

FOR CANCELLATION OF
PLAN CSD-04-025364-D
(Lot 1115-A & Lot 1115-B,
CAD 1037-D) VILLA
LIBERTAD, EL NIDO
PALAWAN

POSITION PAPER

Comes now, herein Respondents and unto this Honorable Office most

respectfully states:

STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. Protestants are all Filipino citizens and residents of Bgy. Villa

Libertad, El Nido Palawan w

hile protestees are government entities

represented by their respective heads also based on Villa Libertad. E]

Nido Palawan;
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2. On September 10, 2018 herein Protestants filed a complaint against
Protestee praying among others that the approval of CSD -4-025264-D
(Subdivision Plan of Lot 1115, CAD 1037-D, El Nido) insofar as Lot
1115-A and Lot 1115-D are concerned be partially invalidated and to
reconvey the said questioned portions to the Heirs of Santiago Pacana;

3. The complaint stated the protestants version of facts stated as follows:

a. “Protestants Oscar O. Pacana, Edgar O. Pacaria and
Samuel O. Pacana, together with their late brother Cesar O.
Pacana are the only legitimate and compulsory heirs of
Santiago Pacana, who died intestate on October 13, 1970
in Bgy. Villa Libertad El Nido Palawan.”

b. “During his lifetime, Santiago Pacaria was the legitimate
and only claimant and possessor of lot No. 928 with an
area of more or less seven (7) hectares located in Bgy. Villa
Libertad, El Nido Palawan. The said property was
surveyed in his name sometime in the year 1955 in the
Bacuit (El Nido) Public Land Subdivision (Case - 2), Pls-31.”

¢. “Over the years and during the lifetime of Santiago Pacaria,
portions of Lot NO. 928 were either sold or conveyed to
several individuals such that only a little over one hectare
was left after the death of Santiago”;

d. “Sometime in 1996, the heirs questioned the occupation by
the Villa Libertad Elementary School of a portion of about
Jive thousand (5000) square meters of Lot No. 928.x x x x .

e. “ To solve the issue on the five thousand (5000) square
meters and as an act of generosity and for the community
well-being, the protestants, together with their mother and
other co - heir, entered into a compromise agreement with
the school authorities on May 8, 1996. x x xx...”

f “ Sometime in 2017, the heirs decided to have the
remaining 4,082 square meters titled in their name but to
their surprise they were informed by the CENRO personnel
in Taytay, Palawan that the area was already surveyed for
the Barangay Government of Villa Libertad, Villa Libertad
Elementary School and Liberty Tumbokon et. Al. x x x x . . .

4. On February 28, 2019, an ORDER OF INVESTIGATION was issued by
OIC -~ PENRO ERIBERTO B SANOS;




5. On May 3, 2019 Protestee received the LETTER-ORDER from this
Honorable Office directing to file a Verified Answer within fifteen (15)

days from receipt thereof;

6. On May 25, 2019 respondent Barangay Government of Villa Libertad

filed its verified answer;

~J

. On September 11, 2019, Villa Libertad Elementary School filed a

Motion to admit Answer together with the attached verified answer-

8. On September 9, 2019 herein respondents received a letter from
DENR CENRO Palawan furnishing a copy of Reply with motion to
declare Protestees in default :

9. On September 11, 2019, respondents filed a comment on the said

motion;

10. On January 31, 2020, an ocular inspection of the area subject

of dispute was conducted:;

11. On February 12, 2020 an Order was issued by ALLAN VALLE
OIC CENRO for the Parties to submit their respective Position Paper

within 15 working days from the receipt thereof;

ISSUE
Whether or not the approval of CSD -4-025264-D (Subdivision Plan of
Lot 1115, CAD 1037-D, El Nido) insofar as Lot 1115-A and Lot 1115-D are

concerned may be partially invalidated and reconveyed to the Heirs of

Santiago Pacana without being contrary to law.

DISCUSSION

The evidence presented by the
Complainant are insufficient to
support their claim.
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In Quasi Judicial Proceeding like in the case at Bar, the quantum of proof
required is preponderance of evidence. Preponderance of evidence is defined
as weight, credit and value of the aggregate evidenced of one is superior to
the other. Respondents respectfully submit that complainant’s evidence
presented in this case were insufficient to establish their claim. In fact,
complainants claim is mainly based on the 1955 Bacuit Public Land
Subdivision Survey and their unsupported affidavits. It is basic that whoever
alleges a fact has the burden of proving it because a mere allegation is not
evidence.( BP Oil vs. Total Distribution GR No. 214406). "Ei incumbit probatio
qui dicit, non qui negat. He who asserts, not he who denies, must prove. (
Rafael Almeda vs. Heirs of Ponciano Almeda GR No. 194189). Respondents
hereby reiterate that these self-serving allegations are simply not enough.

Santiago and his heirs never acquire

Ownership nor rights of possession

Over the property in dispute.

As stated above, the claim of the heirs of Santiago is mainly anchored on the
1955 Survey Bacuit Survey Plan, as such, this piece of document will not
suffice to establish that Santiago acquired ownership nor rights of
possession during his lifetime. In fact, the first Tax Declaration (Annex 1)
issued involving the same property was not under the name Santiago
Pacana but rather under Pacifico Orense who later on conveyed the said

property.

There is no transmission of hereditary rights

Involving the property.

The claim of Santiago’s heirs can only be legally sustained if the premise
that there is transmission of hereditary rights is in fact proven. However, it
was not the case at bar. Under the law, the property and rights owned by
the deceased are transmitted to his heirs by operation of law at the time of
his death. By the very nature of the property, it was not transmitted because
Santiago had no ownership nor possessory rights. The heirs cannot inherit

what their parents do not own. The spring cannot rise from its source. The




right of Santiago over the said property is merely inchoate, a mere privilege

granted by the State subject to their continuous possession of the property.

The heirs of Santiago are already barred

By laches.

Laches is defined as the failure or neglect for an unreasonable and
unexplained length of time to do that which, by exercising due diligence,
could or should have been done earlier; it is negligence or omission to assert
a right within a reasonable time. warranting a presumption that the party
entitled to assert it either has abandoned it or declined to assert it.{ Gambito
vs. Bacena GR No. 225929).

In this case, the Survey Plan of the subject property was approved August
2004 the heirs of Santiago on the other hand filed their formal complaint on
September 2018. Respondents submit that the time interval of (14) fourteen
yvears put the claim of the heirs already barred by laches. They have simply

slept in their rights and have awaken too late.

The evidence presented were insufficient
To overcome the presumption of regularity.

The Survey Plan CSD-04-025364-D (Lot 115-A & Lot 1115-B, CAD 1037-D)
was approved and issued by DENR Cenro Taytay in their official capacity
and therefore carries with it the presumption of regularity and there is no

evidence presented by the complainant to the contrary.

PRAYER

WHEREFORE, premises considered, it most respectfully prayed that
the complaint against herein respondents be dismissed for lack merit.

Other reliefs as may be deemed Just and equitable are likewise prayed for.

Puerto Princesa City, March 2, 2020.




Copy furnished:

MR. EDGAR O. PACANA
Villa Libertad, El Nido Palawan 5313

MR. SAMUEL O. PACANA
Villa Libertad, El Nido Palawan 5313

MR. OSCAR O. PACANA
Villa Libertad. El Nido Palawan 5313
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JHONY FA
Punong Barangay
Villa Libefrtad, El Nido
Palawan
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Republic of the Philippines
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Regional Office No. IV - B MIMAROPA
COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

DENR CENRO
TAYTAY, PALAWAN
s ol o V4 =2 5
EDGAR O. PACANA, SAMUEL O R ECEIVED
PACANA and OSCAR PACANA g};}g Ak
testant, : ~:§£{.‘55'11@12 CN&flgs
Eaes L Land Case No. O Nelo
-Versus-

FOR CANCELLATION OF
PLAN CSD-04-025364-
D(Lot 1115-A & Lot 115-B,

THE CLAIM OF BARANGAY CAD 1037-D) VILLA

GOVERNMENT LIBERTAD, EL NIDO

OF VILLA LIBERTAD rep. by PALAWAN

PUNONG BARANGAY

JHONY FABREGAS and VILLA

LIBERTAD

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL rep. by

HEAD TEACHER

BELEN S. CABUTIHAN,

Protestee

ANSWER
Protestee, unto this Honorable Office, most respectfully states that:

1. Protestee received the LETTER-ORDER from this Honorable
Office on May 3, 2019 directing herein Protestee to file a Verified
Answer within fifteen (15) days from receipt thereof, and thus have
until May 18, 2019 within which to submit their Verified Answer:

2. However, due to the pressures of equally urgent professional
work and prior commitments, Protestee were not able to meet the said
deadline As such, Protestee were constrained to request for an
additional period of 15 days from May 18, 2019 which is until June 2

2019 within which to submit Verified Answer and other supporting
evidence




3.At the outset, herein Protestee denies the allegations
contained in the Verified Protest/Complaint for lack of basis in fact
and in law;

4. Protestant has anchored their claim as stated in Paragraph 4
of the complaint “During his lifetime, Santiago Pacana was the
legitimate and only possessor of Lot No. 928 with an area of more or
less seven (7) hectares located in Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido Palawan.
Said property was surveyed in his name sometime in the year 1955 in
the Bacuit (El Nidoj Public Land Subdivision (Case -2), Pls-31
(PHILCUSA-FOA).”

5. The tenor of the complaint states that the only basis for the
protestants claim is the alleged 1955 Bacuit Public Land Subdivision,
Protestee submit that the said basis is not sufficient to establish legal
right. The subject property was never covered by a Title under their
name, so much so that the right of protestant over the said property
is merely inchoate, a mere privilege granted by the State subject to
their continuous possession of the property;

6. It appears, based on ievidence presented, Santiago Pacana
and his heirs have lost possession of the property, as such they have
also lost their right over the property in favor of present occupants. In
order to perfect their rights, the possession should have been in
continuous, adverse, and exclusive. Protestees failed to prove this;

8. In fact, to prove that Bgy. Villa Libertad is the actual occupant
of the said property for a very long period of time since 1980 and
paying the Real Property Tax (exempt) therein, Protestee is attaching

the copy of Land Tax Verification slip and Tax Declaration; Annex “1”
((2”;

9. Paragraph 7 of the Protest stated “Sometime in 1996, the heirs
questioned the occupation by the Villa Libertad Elementary School of a
portion of about five thousand (5,000) square meters of Lot No. 928. It
is the portion where the school buildings and other facilities are located.
The heirs were told that the said portion was allegedly sold or donated
by Santiago Pacana but no document of conveyance was ever shown to
them. At any rate, even if assuming the portion was truly sold or
donated to the school, the same was made by Santiago without the
consent of his wife, thus, the portion legally conveyed was only one half
of the five thousand (5,000) square meters;”

This argument is simply misplaced. Santiago Pacana and his
heirs never regained ownership over the said property. It is therefore
not material on whether or not Santiago made conveyances during his
lifetime. Simply put, one cannot sell or convey what one does not own:




10. Lastly, herein protestant failed to present evidence to
overcome the presumption of regulatory, subdivision plan of Lot 115,
Cad 1037-D in the name of Barangay Government of Villa Libertad
made by DENR is presumed valid and regular unless proven
otherwise;

11. To prove océupancy and continuous possession for a better
right over the property protestant hereby attached the sinumpaang

salaysay of Belen S. Cabutihan, Feguracion C. Dalabajan, Pablito S.
Tumbokon and Nestor Manga as Annexes 3,4,5 and 6;

PRAYER

WHEREFORE, it is most respectfully submitted unto this Honorable
Office that the Verified Protest/Complaint be dismissed for lack of merit.

MOST RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED.
Other relief just and equitable are likewise prayed for.

Puerto princesa city, Philippines, May 25, 2019.

: ONY FABREGAS
Punong/Barangay
Protest¢e

VERIFICATION

I, JHONY FABREGAS, of legal age, married, Filipino and a resident of Bgy
Villa Libertad, El Nido Palawan, after having been sworn in accordance with
law, hereby depose and state THAT:

1. 1 am the Protestee/Complainant in the above-entitled case;

2. 1 have caused the preparation and filing of herein verified answer;

3. I have read its contents and that the same are true and correct of my
own direct/personal knowledge and based on authentic records;

Puerto princesa city, Philippines, May 25, 2019.




SUBSCRIIBED AND SWORN TO before me this MA?, T

H ONY FABREGAS

Puno / ;
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sg 09 16 onsf

__at Puerto

Princesa City, Philippines, affiant exhibited tome her [DNo.__

Doc No. 212
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Book No. VW
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EDGAR PACANA, SAMUEL PACANA
And OSCAR PACANA
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o THITDECLARATION OF REAL PH{UPERTY

T.D0. No.- 18-13-017-0584

Owner: BARANGAY GOVERNMENT OF VILLA LIBERTAD
Address: VILLA LIBERTAD EL NIDO PALAWAN
Administrator/Beneficial User:  C/O BARANGAY CAPTAIN
Address: VILLA UBERTAD, EL NIDO, PALAWAN
Location of Property.

(Number and Street)
OCT/TCT/ICLOA No
CCT:
Date:

North: ALN 162, 163, 164
East: ALN 165, 167

Boundaries:

Property ldentification No .

VILLA LIBERTAD
(Barangay/D:stnc{)

TC: GR
Alney _ |

066-13-017-09-168

TIN:
Telephone No.:
TIN:
Telephone No.:
EL NIDO PALAWAN
(Mumc:paltty & Prownce)

CSD-04-025364-D, IDEN. TO LOT 11171, CAD-1037-DF

Suivey No
Lot No.
Block No.

1115-D

South: ALN 044, 045

West:

PROV'L. ROAD

KIND OF PROPERTY ASSESSED:

M e []  MACHINERY
- Brief Description:
] BUILDING Otfiers:
No. of Storeys: o
Brief Description: Specify:
Classification Area it Market Value Actual Use Asussmmat Assessed Value Taxabililty
Value Level
RESIDENTIAL RESIDENTIAL
(R-1) 1,813.00 sq.m 1100 Php 1,994,300.00 (Brgy. Site (Plaza)) 10% Php 199,430.00 EXEMPT
Total © 181300sqm "Php  1,994,300.00 Php 19943000
Total Assessed Value ONE HUNDRED NINETY-NINE THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED THIRTY PESOS
(Amount in Words)
Taxable [ ] Exempt Effectivity of Assessment/Reassessment: 2019
YEAR
Approved by: By Authority of the Provincial Assessor
(BGD) MA. CRESENCIA A. FERNANDEZ, REA 8/9/2018
MUNICIPAL ASSESSOR Date
This declaration cancels TD No. 13-01 7—0473 Previous AV. Php. 130, 540 00 Previous PIN: 066-13-01 7»09—168

Previous Owner:
CAPTAIN

Mamonnda

BARANGAY GOVERNMENT OF VILLA LIBERTAD Prev. Admm c/o BARANGAY

REVISED PURSUANT TO SECTION 219 OF R A 7160 AND SECTION 24 OF PROVINCIAL ORDINANCE NO 1914 20178 SERIES OF 2018

Note:

Previous Area: 1813 sq.m.

This declaration is for real property taxation purposes only and the valuation indicated herein are based on the schedule of unit market values prepared for the

purpose and duly enacted into an Ordinance by the Sangguniang Panlalawigan under Ordinance No. 1914-2018 dated March 26, 2018. It does not and cannot

by itself alone confer any ownership or legal titte to the property

Machine Validation. Printed by Abencio Jr. C Gabayar/ 8.40:03 AM/ 5/6/2019

SWORN STATEMENT No.:

SWORN STATEMENT Date:

CERTIFIED COMPUTER GENERATED COPY
By Authority of the Provincial Assessor:

ABENC@%." :

- NONE -

DATE: 5/6/2019

Sec. Fee: 50

J OR No 1207183
kA YAN, JR. OR. Date. 5/6/2019
OM ) v Place. PPCuy
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|
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Taxable
Year
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Value
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Tax O.R. Date
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Provincial Assessor




Republic of the Philippines)
Puerto Princesa City ) S.S.

SINUMPAANG SALAYSAY

Anaex

Ako si Gng. BELEN S. CABUTIHAN, nasa tamang edad, Pilipino, may asawa
at naninirahan sa Barangay Villa Libertad El1 Nido, Palawan, matapos
manumpa ng naayon sa batas ay malayang isinasaad ang mga sumusunod:

it

2.

Na ako ay nagtuturo bilang guro sa Paaralang Elementarya
ng Barangay Villa Libertad;

Na noong 1996 nagkasundo ang mga miyembro ng Parents
Teachers Association ng Paaralang Elementarya ng Villa
Libertad na bakurin ang school site, ngunit hinaharang po
kami ni Gng. Gabina Pacana dahil ito daw ay lupa nila, at
matagal na silang naninirahan dito. Kung kaya idinulog ko
ito sa Barangay dahil sa pagkaalam ko na-survey na ito ng
Cadastral sa school (Lot 1115);

Na nakarating ang problemang ito sa CENRO kung kaya
nagkaroon ng imbestigasyon at nangyari ang Compromise
Agreement. Agad kaming nagrequest ng survey order,
ngunit hindi ito nabigyan agad ng kasagutan.

Nagrequest na naman kami ng survey order ngunit ayon sa
kanila ito ay pag-aari ng 10 Knots Phil.. Kung kaya
nagkaroon nanaman ng imbestigasyon. Ayon kay Mr. Lim
ng 10 Knots, hindi nila ito pag-aari, kaya nagrequest uli
kami ng survey.

Noong 2004 nais ng PTA na bakurin na ang kabuoang area
ng school, ngunit patuloy paring hinaharangan ni Gng.
Gabina Pacana, dahil doon siya nakatira sa area Lot 1115
na pag-aari ng school. Kaya idinulog uli namin sa
Barangay. Para matapos na ang problemang
ito,nagkasundo ang dalawang partido na bigyan ng tig
1000 sq. meter ang school at Pacana at ang remaining area
ay napunta sa barangay. Ito ay sa pamumuno ni Ex-
Kapitan Feguracion Dalabajan.

Sa Pacana Family nagkasundo na bibigyan ng 10 x 10 sina
Edgar, Oscar, at Samuel, (300 sq. m) at ang remaining area
ay kay Gng. Gabina Pacana. Ito ay ayon din sa Compromise
Agreement noong 1996, kaya na survey ito.

Aking pinapatunayan na ang nakasaad sa salaysay na ito
ay pawang katotohanan.

e o A



Nilagdaaan ko sa ngayong Mayo 28 2019 sa lungsod ng Puerto Princesa
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A~ R
Gng. BELEN S. CABUTIHAN
May Salaysay

MAY 2 8 2019
SUBSCRIIBED AND SWORN TO before me this = \ _,;,_,m____,__at Puerto Princesa
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Republic of the Philippines)
Puerto Princesa City } S.8.

SINUMPAANG SALAYSAY

Ako si Gng. FEGURACION C. DALABAJAN, nasa tamang edad, Pilipino,

biyudo at naninirahan sa Barangay Villa Libertad El Nido, Palawan, matapos

manumpa ng naayon sa batas ay malayang isinasaad ang mga sumusunod:

E

Na ako ay naging Bgy. Kagawad ng Barangay Villa
Libertad, El Nido, Palawan noong July 1997- May 2001,
ang aming Punong Barangay ay si Diosdado B.
Villanueva ng Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan.

Na ako ay naging Punong Barangay mula June 2001-
November 2010 ng Barangay Villa Libertad, E1 Nido,
Palawan;

Na noong ako ay Punong Barangay sa nasabing
Barangay, kami ng Villa Libertad Elementary School
Site at Bgy. Villa Libertad Government Site ay
nagpasukat ng lupa at ito ay napapaloob sa Tax
Declaration No.13-017-0473 dahil may request sa
CENRO-DENR-Taytay, Palawan, ng authority to survey.
Na nagkaroon ng kasunduan or Agreement sa pagitan

ng heirs of Santiago Pacana & family sa nasabing lupa,
at Mrs. Belen S. Cabutihan, Teacher-in-charge of Villa
Libertad Elementary School. Ang bawat heir of Santiago
Pacana ay mayroon kaparti sina, Edgar Pacana, Oscar
Pacana, Samuel Pacana, Crisencia Pacana asawa ni
Santiago Pacana at Gabina A. Pacana, asawa ni Cesar
Pacana, na sila ay naka pirma sa nasabing agreement
noong May 6, 1996. Pinatunayan ni P/B Jaime P.
Cabutihan at Brgy. Kagawad Pablito Tumbokon.

Na ako po ay nakapirma sa subdivision survey
conformity dahil ako ay Punong Barangay ng Bgy. Villa
Libertad, El Nido, Palawan nang dumating ang

approved subdivision survey, ng Villa Libertad




Government Site at Villa Libertad Elementary School
Site. Lot No. 1115

6. Aking pinapatunayan na ang nakasaad sa salaysay na
ito ay pawang katotohanan.

Nilagdaaan ko sa ngayong Mayo 28 2019 sa lungsod ng Puerto Princesa
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Republic of the Philippines)
Puerto Princesa City ) S.S.

Ako si PABLITO S. TUMBOKON , nasa tamang edad, Pilipino,

SINUMPAANG SALAYSAY

Anex D

at

naninirahan sa Barangay Villa Libertad El Nido, Palawan, matapos manumpa

ng naayon sa batas ay malayang isinasaad ang mga sumusunod:

1

9

Na ako ay nagging membro ng Barangay Council ng
Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan noong taong
1994-97 sa pamumuno ng aming Punong Barangay Hon.
Jaime P. Cabutihan.

Na noong kasalukuyang opisyvales kami ng nasabing
Barangay ay nagkaroon ng imbestigasyon sa lupang
kinatatayuan ng barangay Government at School Site- VS.
PACANA FAMILY

. NA: Noong nagkaroon ng imbestigasyon ang CENRO-Taytay,

hindi ako nakipag participate sa kadahilanang isa ako sa
nag occupy ng 20 x 20 sq.m. sa nasabing lupa, na kung saan
ay titulado na sa pangalan ng aking anak na si Maria Liberty
C. Tumbokon;

Na pagkatapos ng imbestigasyon ng CENRO-Taytay ay
nagkaroon ng kasunduan o document ang school
authorities at Pacana Family;

. NA: Ayon sa kanilang kasunduan o document ay bahagihan

ng lupa na may sukat na 10 x 10 sq.m. sina Samuel Pacana,
Oscar Pacafia, Edgar Pacafia at Gabina Uda de Pacana ay
mananatili sa kanyang kinatatayuan ng kanyang bahay na

sukat na 20 x 20 sq.m.

. NA: Bilang isang membro ng konseho, kung kaya’t isa ako

sa witness ng nasabing kasunduan o documneto ng school
authorities at PACANA FAMILY

. Aking pinapatunayan na ang nakasaad sa salaysay na ito ay

pawang katotohanan.
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CEOMPROMISE AGREEMENT
) v g 1™

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESK PRESENTS:

This agreement entered into by and between the HEIRS of the late
SaNTIAGO PACARNA, all of lsgel agey Filipino; all residing at the tunicipa~
lity of El Nido, Falawan herein referred to as the PARTY OF TH. F1k=T PART;

—and-

The Villa Libertad nlementary ochool of ogy. Villa Libertad, 1 Nido,
“alawan as represented by Mio. Bulii S, LAl TInaNy [eacher-In-Cher-s and
e ALFUNSO MaSULA, PLPGA sresident, also of legal ages, both residing and
with post office address at Bgy. ¥illa Libertad, El HNido, ralawan, hereisn

referred to as the PARTY OF Ty SECUND PagDy

WITHESS &
‘ART are the HGIRE of the late oii 21430

PAGARA and his successoreIineint st over a contagin Parcel of pukl ;

known and designated as Lot 928 rLS=31 situated at BRye Villa Libarta

2l Nido, ralawan, containing ar area of SEVLNTY ONE THOUSAND THaw: -

FHILIY . 740 (71,332) square Meters;

That the PARTY COF THE FIZST
L

»

0zt the rARTY OF THE SECUND rART contends that they had ligitimatel
Lought one (1) hectare portion, excluding road-right-of-way now es:-hiished
thereat, of above Lot 928, PL3-31 from the late SANTIAGC PACANA ;

That the FPARI'Y OF THE Fiaol PART asserts that the sale and cenveyance
i 0

is questionable ang devoid of proper order arguing that the transaciio
wds not duly concurred in by the Spouse of said SANTIAGO PACANA ;

fhat upon and after civil confrontatiocn, argument, and mutusl conces=
sion, both BARTIES arrived &t a compromise agreement a8 follows;

"That the HLIks shall I H3Raw and ,UII their claim
in the contested portion of the one (1) hectare
ochool site in exchange of below concessions:

Vo SAMULL, C3CA& and wiinry All surnamed £4UAFA //
shall be given, free from &ny renumeration , a
1% x 1% meters residential lot each:

2+ GABINA ARZAGA-PLCALA, wife of the beir Choal PLCASA shall he
-accordedcproperty rights over her present residential occcipatin®,

Ihat a submequent Survey Order shall be Teguested to the Projecs
Nanagsment Qffice, Survey and lLand firling Gomponent, Second Palawa: ‘nte-
grated Area Development Project (SLT=SPIADE) thru the DENR=Communi.y Znvie
roment and Natural Resources Cffice (DENR=CENRC) of Taytay, Falafen io
effect and finalize above compramise.,

iN DaESTIMONY #HiLUEOF, PARTIGS have hereunto set hands this S?

day of &y 1996 at Villa Iibertas, o1 Nido, palewan: =~
-~ AN Z
sy Zéxuv ' TBilie. f CoiaTde,
SAULE T, PACANE himon e heerssiam
e Jsir L o Teachsp= n"g;ha.rs'c
i ii‘;ﬁ'@ i —4 xR Y% e TN
N Issued (n B—F-@L ot = W77 Issued Opd4-? > 1 NiAg, PQ"
— -+
= e




. EDLGAR ¢, SACANA

Immedjate deir

Clic »_R3%7494¢ .
lssuel on 03-6u -qu,at &1 Auvdo
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0SAR ©.PACARA

smmediate Heir

S # _ R3%7420 -
Issued onog-pe-get 51 Nodd

“y 15 1 R —

boeari, b e

# a2 S
Xod P,

CRESBNULA O, PAGANA
onu.‘ie
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ACLNA ARZAGA PACALA
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at Villa L beviad . €) wado
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Bgy. nagawad

oy - RS =L 1 A
1996 at 1 Wi 0y

FaLlfwan, versonally appeared the above-signed

me to be the same individuals who execu

£y a

¢low their names ang sighatures above,

individuals very known %o

: : j ted the foregoing instrumentar ‘@
tlng‘ A,o“c No. 52§, Fio-31, which document consist of two (2) pages inc.ue

z i.:hlB Page wherein the acknowledgemen
bited to me their recpective Communit

i

=

t iz written. The same persons
-wertificates as written
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i
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MOTION FOR EXTENSION OF TIME

Protestee, unto this Honorable Office, most respectfully states that:

1. Protestee received the LETTER-ORDER from this Honorable
Office on May 3, 2019 directing herein Protestee to file a Verified
Answer within fifteen (15) days from receipt thereof, and thus have
until May 18, 2019 within which to submit their Verified Answer;

2. However, due to the pressures of equally urgent professional

work and prior commitments, Proteste

¢ will not be able to meet the
said deadline;

3. As such, Protestee are constrained to request for an additional
period of 15 days from May 18, 2019 which is until June 2, 2019
within which to submit Verified Answer and other supporting
evidence. Moreover, this additional time will also allow the

ZDonr O Weait
L)~ 20/9

Ly e

P 3744
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A ke Republic of the Philippines AN
Y ‘g B —Department of Environment and Natural Resources = -= /¢ -| ]
o Regional Office No. IV — B MIMAROPA
;i _r%»' COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
: 5312 Taytay, Palawan
EDGAR O. PACANA, SAMUEL O
PACANA and OSCAR PACANA
Dt et oy ord
T Land Case No. 0510
-Versus-
FOR CANCELLATION OF
PLAN CSD-04-025364-
D{Lot 1115-A & Lot 115-B,
THE CLAIM OF BARANGAY CAD 1037-Dj VILLA
GOVERNMENT LIBERTAD, EL NIDO
OF VILLA LIBERTAD rep. by PALAWAN
PUNONG BARANGAY
JHONY FABREGAS and VILLA
LIBERTAD
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL rep. by
HEAD TEACHER
BELEN S. CABUTIHAN,
Protesitee
K o i 2 1 e e 1 1 5 e e e X




N

undersigned Protestee to look for available witnesses and gather
evidence:;

4.This Motion is not intended for delay but solely due to the

foregoing reasons.
PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Respondents most respectfully prays of this Honorable
Office that they be given an additional period of 15 days from May 18, 2019
within which to submit their Verified Answer and other documentary
evidence.

MOST RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED.
Other relief just and equitable are likewise praved for

i
AL Hady

Puerto Princesa itz .r)hv‘;'*'!'a)rw'h o Mo, 10 2010 /
v arnicesa Ly, fmappines, A iU, 2ULY,

HON. .THONY FARREGAS
Punong arangay

COPY FURNISHED:

EDGAR PACANA, SAMUEL PACANA

A fAQAYATS TRA /ANy s
AU WAL, & LR LREY L5

Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido Palawan
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Of the more than ONE (1) hectare left of Lot No. 928 after Santiago’s death,
the present occupants are the following:

1. About FIVE THOUSAND (5,000) square meters is presently being
occupied by the Villa Libertad Elementary School.

2. An area of more or less FOUR THOUSAND EIGHTY TWO (4,082) square
meters, situated across the barangay road facing the elementary school,
are being occupied by:

a. Benjamin Ramirez;

b. Liberty Tumbokon;

(Benjamin and Liberty have acquired their respective portions
from the late Santiago Pacana.)

c. Samuel Pacana and his heirs;

d. The heirs of Cesar O. Pacana.

e. A number of small market stalls, privately constructed by
traditional merchants (makeshift sari-sari stores) and small wet market
vendors (talipapa). The Barangay Government of Villa Libertad is
charging them minimal amount of fee for permit in order for them to
operate;

f. Some commercial spaces along the north national highway, also
privately constructed, presently being occupied and used personally by
some individuals and barangay officials including Punong Barangay
Jhony Fabregas and an incumbent barangay kagawad for commercial
purposes (as per result of the ocular inspection of the contested lot).
The Villa Libertad Barangay Government is likewise collecting from these
individuals payment of permit fee to operate their business;

8. A wooden structure previously used by the barangay as a cockpit
(sabungan) area;

3. The remainder of the area is now p@t of the road right of way (north
national highway).

Sometime in 1996, the heirs (with their mother) questioned the occupation
by the Villa Libertad Elementary School of a portion of FIVE THOUSAND (5,000)
square meters of Lot No. 928. It is the portion where the school buildings and
other facilities are located. During the hearing, the heirs were told that the said
portion was allegedly sold or donated by Santiago Pacana. But when asked to
present the deed of conveyance signed by Santiago, the school authorities
miserably failed to produce it. At any rate, even if assuming the portion was truly
sold or donated to the school, the same was made by Santiago without the

consent of his wife, thus, the portion legally conveyed was only one half (1/2) of
the FIVE THOUSAND (5,000) square meters.

However, as act of act of generosity and for the community well-being, the
protestants together with their mother and other co-heir, entered into a
compromise agreement with the school authorities on May 8, 1996. In said




i

compromise, they accepted the offer of the school authorities to give EACH heir
(Edgardo, Samuel, Oscar & Cesar) ONE HUNDRED (100) square meters (or a total
of FOUR HUNDRED [400] square meters) to be taken or segregated from the FIVE
THOUSAND (5,000) square meters occupied by the school. As a result of the
signing of the compromise agreement, the protestants agreed to drop the
complaint. However, despite the lapse of time and up to the present time, the
school authorities never made good of their commitment to give FOUR HUNDRED
(400) square meters to the heirs of Santiago Pacana. A copy of the compromise
agreement dated May 8, 1996 is attached in the original complaint as Annex “B”.

Sometime in 2017, the heirs decided to have the remaining FOUR
THOUSAND EIGHTY TWO (4,082) square meters titled in their names but to their
surprise they were informed by CENRO personnel in Taytay, Palawan, that the
area was already surveyed for the Barangay Government of Villa Libertad, the
Villa Libertad Elementary School and Liberty Tumbokon, et al. They were given a
copy of the subdivision plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D (attached as Annex “C” in
the original complaint), which was approved on August 31, 2004. The survey and
its subsequent approval were made without the knowledge and consent of the
heirs of Santiago Pacana. In fact, the one who gave conformity to the survey was
Feguracion Dalabajan who signed the survey as land owner. Dalabajan has no
right whatsoever to initiate the subdivision survey or to sign the conformity
because she was not in any way authorized by the Heirs of Santiago Pacana.

In the questioned approved subdivision survey, the Villa Libertad
Elementary School was awarded a portion of SEVEN HUNDRED THIRTY SEVEN
(737) square meters, (in addition to the 5,000 square meters physically occupied
by the elementary school and subject of the compromise agreement on May 8,
1996) — this 737 square meters was awarded to the school despite the fact that
the area was already physically occupied by the heirs of Santiago Pacana at the
time of the alleged survey on July 18, 2004; while the Barangay Government of
Villa Libertad was given ONE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED THIRTEEN (1,813)

square meters. The remaining portions were awarded to Liberty Tumbokon, et al.
who are occupying it.

The approval of the survey in so far as the Villa Libertad Elementary School
and the Barangay Government of Villa Libertad are patently illegal and thus void
because the heirs of Santiago Pacana never waived, donated or even sold portion
of the property allotted to them. They have no right whatsoever to the said areas.

ISSUE

The only issue in this case is who has the better on the remaining portion of
Lot No. 928, now identified as Lot No. 1115, Cad 1037-D, with an area of 4,082
square meters.




DISCUSSION

There is no question that Lot No. 928 was surveyed and awarded to
Santiago Pacana during the Bacuit (El Nido) Public Land Subdivision (Case-2)
conducted in 1955. There is no question either that Lot No. 1115, Cad 1037-D, is
part and parcel of the bigger Lot No. 928.

During the lifetime of Santiago Pacana he had physically occupied Lot No.
928 or what is left of it after several disposals of portions of his property. When
he died in 1970, his heirs continued to occupy what is left of the property as
evidenced by the physical occupation of Samuel Pacana and his children and the
heirs of Cesar Pacana. The Pacanas never relinquished their active possession of
the property since the early 1950s and up to the present time.

As proof of the Pacanas active physical possession of the property, some of
the heirs of Santiago Pacana executed a sworn statement testifying to the fact
that they either born or raised there and have been actively and physically in
possession of the property from the time they were born and up to the present
time. They continued the possession of Santiago as his compulsory heirs. We are
submitting herewith the following “Malayang Salaysay” executed by:

1. Mercenario D. Pacana and Sheryll Pacana - Annex “A”
2. Ronnie V. Pacana - Annex “B”
3. Samuel Pacana and Rosalinda Pacana - Annex “C”
4. Sanny V. Pacana, Jr. - Annex “D”
5. Garry V. Pacana - Annex “E”
6. Imelda Pacana Daquer - Annex “F”
7. Edgar O. Pacana, Sr. - Annex “G”
8. Edgar B. Pacana, Jr. - Annex “H”
9. Emily Kay B. Pacana - Annex “1”
10. Eden B. Pacana - Annex “})”
11.Jessa B. Pacana - Annex “K”

The survey of the property in the name of the Barangay Government of
Villa Libertad and the Villa Libertad Elementary School in 2004 was done
surreptitiously without the knowledge and consent of the Pacanas.

The Pacanas absolutely did not execute any sale or donation in favor of the

barangay government or the elementary school in order to give them the right to
have it surveyed in their names.

Even during the initial confrontation at the Office of the CENR in Taytay,
Palawan, protestees failed to show any proof that they had validly acquired the
property from the Pacanas by showing any document of cohveyance in their
favor. It only shows that they are illegally claiming the property of the Pacanas
who have inherited it from their predecessor-in-interest Santiago Pacana, who
was the rightful claimant and in possession of the property since the early 1950s
until the time of his death in 1970. After his death, his possession of the property




was continued by his children and grandchildren who have never wavered in their
rightful claim over the property left by Santiago.

Findings during the
Ocular Inspection

The ocular inspection of the subject property clearly shows the active
physical possession of the Pacanas. They have residential houses inside the

property and/or actively in possession of the portions being claimed by them as
their share in the estate left by Santiago Pacana.

Significantly, it was found out that the portion surveyed to the Villa
Libertad Elementary School (737 square meters) is being occupied by the Pacanas.
There is absolutely NO school building or facility inside the 737 square meters
EXCEPT the houses and structures erected by the Pacanas.

On the other hand, in the 1,813 square meters surveyed in the name of the
Barangay Government of Villa Libertad, there is also NO barangay government
structures found therein. What are found inside are the following:

1. avacant wooden structure used in the past as a cockpit area;

2. several wet market stalls (talipapa) and traditional makeshift sari-
sari stores, which are all privately constructed:

3. Several privately constructed commercial structures along the
highway, one of which is owned by the incumbent Punong
Barangay Jhony Fabregas and another is owned by an incumbent
barangay kagawad;

4. The remainder of the area surveyed for the barangay government
is now presently a portion of the north national highway.

The fact that, as per ocular inspection, there is no barangay government
structure found inside the area surveyed for Villa Libertad only shows that here is
no governmental use for the property. The barangay government is only fighting
to claim for it in order for them to continue collecting business permit fees. They
are using it for proprietary purposes and NOT for essential government functions.

Significance of the
Compromise Agreement
Between the Pacanas
And the Villa Libertad
Elementary School

When the heirs of Santiago Pacana questioned the occupation by the Villa
Libertad Elementary School of a portion of about 5,000 square meters of Lot 928
in 1996, the school authorities offered a compromise of giving the heirs 400

square meters in exchange for the dropping of the claim, which the heirs
accepted in the spirit of community well-being.

T —




This compromise agreement only strenghten the claim of the Pacanas over
the subject property. By offering a compromise and signing the agreement the
school authorities impliedly admitted the validity of the claim of the Pacanas.
They are now therefore estopped from claiming otherwise.

Documentary exhibits/evidences

To prove the validity of their claim the Pacanas submitted the following
documentary exhibits/evidences, to wit:

1. The 1955 Bacuit (El Nido) Public Land Subdivision (Case-2), Pls-31
(PHILCUSA-FOA) — attached in the original protest as Annex “A”

Purpose of offer: To prove that the subject property was
validly surveyed in the name of Santiago Pacana as
claimant/occupant in 1955.

2. Compromise agreement dated May 8, 1996 between the heirs of
Santiago Pacana and the Villa Libertad Elementary School —
attached in the original protest as Annex “B”

Purpose of offer: To show that the Villa Libertad Elementary
School impliedly admitted the validity of the claim of the
Pacanas over the subject property.

3. Subdivision plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D - attached in the original
protest as Annex “C”

Purpose of offer: To show that indeed the survey was
conducted on July 18, 2004 and approved on August 31, 2004
giving rise to the cause of action of the Pacanas to move for
the partial cancellation of the survey.

4. The sworn affidavits of the heirs of Santiago Pacana — attached in
this position paper as Annexes “D” to “N”

Purpose of offer: To prove that the Pacanas are in continuous
physical possession of the subject property from the early
1950s and up to the present time.
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Conclusion

The survey of the subject property in 2004 was made without the
knowledge of the Pacanas. At the time of the questioned survey they were in
possession of the property yet they were not informed of it, resulting to their
damage and prejudice. The survey was therefore conducted illegally and must be
invalidated in order to give way to another government survey to reconvey the
subject property to the Pacanas.

Prayer

The heirs of Santiago Pacana are praying for the partial cancellation of CSD-
4-025364-D (Subdivision Plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D, El Nido) insofar as Lot
1115-A (Area=737 square meters for Villa Libertad Elementary School) and Lot
1115-D (Area=1,813 square meters for the Barangay Government of Villa

Libertad) AND for the RECONVEYANCE of the questioned portions to the heirs of
Santiago Pacana.

Puerto Princesa City for CENR Office, Taytay, Palawan, May 12, 2020.

ROBERT Y. PENEYRA

Counsel for the Protestants

Gabuco Road corner TS Paredes Road
Bgy. Bagong Sikat, Pto. Prin. City
Contact No.: 09153076516

Email: bobpen07@yahoo.com

Copy furnished:

The Teacher-in-Charge
Villa Libertad Elementary School
Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas
Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan
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MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Kami, MERCENARIO D. PACANA at SHERYLL F. PACANA, nasa hustong
gulang, mag-asawa, mga mangangalakal, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa
Libertad, El Nido, Palawan, matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad
ng mga sumusunod:

1

Na, kami bilang mag-asawa, ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa
Libertad, El Nido, Palawan; at sa katunayan ay doon na kami
ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at nagasawa;

. Na, ako (Mercenario) ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang

nagmamayari ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7)
ektarya na matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

. Na, sa katunayan ako (Mercenario) ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang

nasasakupan ng Lot 928 at sa ngayun kami ay kasaluyang nakatira sa
natitira pang bahagi ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming
yumaong lolo na si Santiago;

. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay

ay sakop ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacana family at ng
barangay government ng Bgy. Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary
School;
Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;
Na, ginawa namin ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi
ni Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aming nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5
ng Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

—
MERCENARIO D. PACANA SHERYXW/F. PACANA
05 2018

JU
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this c&ay of July 2019 in

E! Nido. Palawan

by Mercenario D. Pacana with VIN 5312-0082A-H0277MDP-

1000 and Sheryll F. Pacana with VIN 5312-0082A-G0877SFP2000.
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MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, RONNIE V. PACARJA, nasa hustong gulang, walang asawa, isang maliit
na mangangalakal, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido,

Palawan, matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga
sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
kasaluyang nagnenegosyo:

2. Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang nagmamayari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, £l Nido:

3. Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang nasasakupan ng
Lot 928 at sa ngayun ako ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay ay
sakop ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacana family at ng barangay
government ng Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School:

>. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

6. Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTQO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng

Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.
RéNNiE V. PACANA

JUL 65 2019
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of July 2019 in

ElLRido, Palawan by Ronnie V. Pacana with Community Tax Certificate No.

issued on in Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan,
showing his name and signature as competent proof of his identity.
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MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Kami, SAMUEL O. PACANA at ROSALINDA H. PACANA, mga nasa hustong
gulang, mag-asawa, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan, matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga
sumusunod:

1. Na, kami ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako (Samuel) ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
nakapagasawa;

2. Na, ako (Samuel) ay anak ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang
nagmamayari ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7)
ektarya na matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

3. Na, sa katunayan ako (Samuel) ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang
nasasakupan ng Lot 928 at sa ngayun kami ay kasaluyang nakatira sa
natitira pang bahagi ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aking
yumaong ama na si Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay ay
sakop ng lupang kasalukuyang pinagtatalunan ng Pacafna family at ng
barangay government ng Bgy. Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary
School;

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aking ama na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

6. Na, ginawa namin ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi
ni Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aming nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5

ng Hulyo 2019 sa El Nndo Palawan
j, ﬁ@m&
SAR o PACANA ROSALINDA H. PACANA
juL, 05 2018

SUBS’R%BED AND SWORN to before me this ___dayofluly 2019 in

] N

El Nide, Palowan by Samuel Pacana with Senior Citizen’s ID No. 0185 and
Ro;ai nda H. Pacaha with VIN 5312-0084A-H1076RPH20000-0 showing their
respective name, picture and signature as competent proof of their identity.
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MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, SANNY V. PACANA, Jr., nasa hustong gulang, may asawa, isang
construction worker, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido

Palawan, matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga
sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
kasaluyang nagtatatrabaho:

2. Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang nagmamavari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong17) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido:

3.

Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang nasasakupan ng
Lot 928 at sa ngayun kami ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aking kasalukuyang bahay ay sakop
ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacana family at ng barangay government
ng Bgy. Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School;

>. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

6. Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni

Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming

complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa

lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng

Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.
SAN Y V. PACANA, ..

§ “L . "Jur 05 2018
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this "~ "day of July 2019 in
Yoita by Sanny V. Pacana, Jr. with PhilHealth ID No. 23-002074067-9
showing his name and signature as competent proof of his identity.
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MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, GARRY V. PACANA, nasa hustong gulang, walang asawa, isang
construction worker, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan, matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga
sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
kasaluyang nagtatatrabaho;

2. Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang nagmamayari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

3. Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang nasasakupan ng
Lot 928 at sa ngayun kami ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aking kasalukuyang bahay ay sakop
ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacana family at ng barangay government
ng Bgy. Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School;

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

6. Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingar ang sinasabi ni
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacaria family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng
Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

GARRY/V. PACANA

Jup 95 2018
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ___ day of July 2019 in

Cl Nido Polowan by Garry V. Pacana with Community Tax Certificate No.
31070658 issued on June 31, 2019 in Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan,
showing his name and signature as competent proof of his identity.
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MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, IMELDA PACANA DAQUER, nasa hustong gulang, may-asawa, isang
mangangalakal, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan,
matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
nakapagasawa;

2. Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang nagmamayari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, £l Nido;

3. Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang nasasakupan ng
Lot 928 at sa ngayun kami ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay at ang
aking maliit na tindahan ay sakop ng lupang kasalukuyang
pinagtatalunan ng Pacaha family at ng barangay government ng Bgy.
Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School:

>. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona:

6. Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi n
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacafia family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng
Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

IMELWA DAQUER

Jut 05 2018
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ___ day of July 2019 in

Cin Polmwen by imelda Pacana Daquer with Postal Identity Card No. 3009605
showing her name, picture and signature as competent proof of her identity.
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MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, EDGAR O. PACANA, Sr., isang senior citizen, may asawa, at
kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, £l Nido, Palawan, matapos manumpa
nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
nakapagasawa;

2. Na, ako ay anak ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang nagmamavari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

3. Na, sa katunayan ako at ang aking mga kapatid ay doon na ipinanganak
sa lupang nasasakupan ng Lot 928 at sa ngayun ako at ang aking asawa
at mga anak ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi ng Lot. No.
928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aking yumaong ama na si Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay ay
sakop ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacaha family at ng barangay
government ng Bgy. Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School:

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacaha family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aking ama na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

6. Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacafa family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng
Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

P

EDGAR O. PACANA, sr.

JuL 05 2018
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this __dayof July 2019 in

by Edgar O. Pacafa, Sr. with Senior Citizen’s ID No. 2679 issued
onlune 9, 2015 in El Nido, Palawan, showing his name and signature as
competent proof of his identity.
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )

.

J
PROVINCE OF PALAWAN ) /jmi’lf 4 IL /
CITY/MUNICIPALITY OF EL NIDO )S.S.

MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, EDGAR B. PACANA, Jr., nasa hustong gulang, walang asawa, isang self-
employed, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan,
matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan:
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
kasaluyang nagtatatrabaho;

2. Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacafia na siyang nagmamayari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

3. Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang nasasakupan ng
Lot 928 at sa ngayun ako ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay ay
sakop ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacafa family at ng barangay
government ng Bgy. Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School:

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

6. Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng
Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

"’MU “w

fx B. PACANA Jr.

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this_ U3y of%iy 2019 in

o _Palawan by Edgar B. Pacana, Jr. with Community Tax Certificate No.
31070816 issued on June 25, 2019 in Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan,
showing his name and signature as competent proof of his identity.

F‘.“éi
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES ) N
PROVINCE OF PALAWAN ) nex L /
CITY/MUNICIPALITY OF EL NIDO)S.S.

MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, EDEN B. PACANA, nasa hustong gulang, walang asawa, isang seli-
employed, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan,
matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
kasaluyang nagtatatrabaho;

2. Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang nagmamayari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

3. Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang nasasakupan ng
Lot 928 at sa ngayun ako ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay ay
sakop ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacaha family at ng barangay
government ng Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School;

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacaria family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona:

6. Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacafna family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTQO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng
Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

g
EDERT. PRCARA

/ UL 05 2019
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ____dayoflJuly 2019 in
E' Nido, Palawan by Eden B. Pacana with TIN 356-833-458-000 issued on March
22, 2019 in El Nido, Palawan, with her name, picture and signature on it as
competent proof of his identity.
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
PROVINCE OF PALAWAN ) L
CITY/MUNICIPALITY OF EL NIDO)S.S. n M

MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, JESSA B. PACANA, nasa hustong gulang, isang self-employed, at
kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan, matapos manumpa
nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
kasaluyang nagtatatrabaho;

2. Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang nagmamavyari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

3. Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang nasasakupan ng
Lot 928 at sa ngayun ako ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 528 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay ay
sakop ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacafia family at ng barangay
government ng Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School:

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona:

6. Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng
Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

JESSAB. PACANA

~ JUL 05 20
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this "~ day of July 2019 in

-t Nigg, P by Jessa B. Pacaha with PhilHealth ID No. 09-252966944-7 with
her name, picture and signature on itas competent proof of her identity.
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
PROVINCE OF PALAWAN )

\\
f M
CITY/MUNICIPALITY OF EL NIDO)S.S. /§Mﬂ6¥ A/

MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, EMILY KAY B. PACARJA, nasa hustong gulang, walang asawa, isang
government employee, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido,

Palawan, matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga
sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
kasaluyang nagtatatrabaho;

2. Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacaha na siyang nagmamayari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, £l Nido;

3. Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa fupang nasasakupan ng
Lot 928 at sa ngayun ako ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay ay
sakop ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacana family at ng barangay
government ng Bgy. Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School;

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy

simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang

sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni

Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming

complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng
Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

PACANA

T/ JUL 85 2018
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me thié ___ day of July 2019 in

£'Miga Paisves by Emily Kay B. Pacaha with PhilHealth ID No. 09-252966945-5
with her name, picture and signature on it as competent proof of her identity.
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COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

EDGARD O.PACANA, SAMUEL O. CASE NO. 0510
PACANA & OSCAR O. PACANA,
Protestants/Complainants.

-Versus- for:

BGY. GOVERNMENT OF VILLA LIBERTAD, “FOR CANCELLATION OF CSD-04-

rep. by its Punong Barangay JHONY 025364-D (Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D,
FABREGAS & VILLA LIBERTAD ELEMEN- EL NIDO, PALAWAN"

TARY SCHOOL, rep. by its Head Teacher

BELEN S. CABUTIHAN,

Protestees/Respondents.

REPLY WITH MOTION
TO DECLARE PROTESTEES BGY. GOVERNMENT OF
VILLA LIBERTAD AND VILLA LIBERTAD
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL AS IN DEFAULT

PROTESTANTS/COMPLAINANTS by themselves and unto this Honorable

Office most respectfully file this reply on the late answer filed by Punong Bgy.
Jhony Fabregas: .

1.  The late answer signed and submitted by Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas
was made without any authority of the barangay council. The case was
filed against the barangay government of Villa Libertad and not against
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas. Hence, the answer should have been made
by the barangay government and not by PB Fabregas on his own. The
answer therefore submitted by PB Fabregas is a mere scrap of paper,

thus, it is as if no answer was ever filed in behalf of the prostestee
barangay government of Bgy. Vill Libertad;

. Protestee Villa Libertad Elementary School was not able to file any
answer despite having been served a copy of the complaint and being
ordered by this Honorable Office to submit its comment;




4. Be that as it may however, prostestants would like to take exception to
the statement made by PB Fabregas that “Santiago Pacaha and his heirs
have lost possession of the property, as such they have also lost their
right over the property in favour the present occupants.” This statement
is absolutely not true because the Pacanas are still very much in
possession of the subject property except for some portions which was
unlawfully occupied the barangay government. We are therefore
submitting the sworn affidavits of the Pacanas in order to show our
continuous and uniteruppted possession of the subject property;

5. Lot No. 928 is an alienable and disposable public land and it was
surveyed in favour of Santiago Pacaha way back in 1955. This only shows
that the government recognizes the right of Santiago Pacana as the true
owner of the property. In fact one the witnesses (Pablito Tumbokon)
who executed an affidavit attached to the answer of PB Fabregas is the
father of Maria Liberty C. Tumbokon who purchased a portion of the
property from the Pacanas. The barangay government of Villa Libertad
could not therefore deny that the residents of Bgy. Libertad recognizes
the Pacanas as the owner of the subject property.

WHEREFORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, it is respectfully prayed of this

Honorable Office to consider the protestees in default for their failure to submit
the required answer on time.

Respectfully submitted.

El Nido, Palawan, for CENRO Taytay, Palawan, July 5, 2019.

ED Aé 0. PACANA SAMUﬁ“g. ACANA

\ S A
CAR O. PACANA

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ____ day of September 2018

., by Edgar O. Pacana with OSCA ID No. 2679; Samuel 0.




their identity.




CITY/MUNICIPALITY OF EL NIDO)S.S.

MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, EDGAR O. PACANA, Sr., isang senior citizen, may asawa, at
kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan, matapos manumpa
nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
nakapagasawa;

2. Na, ako ay anak ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang nagmamayari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

3. Na, sa katunayan ako at ang aking mga kapatid ay doon na ipinanganak
sa lupang nasasakupan ng Lot 928 at sa ngayun ako at ang aking asawa
at mga anak ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi ng Lot. No.
928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aking yumaong ama na si Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay ay
sakop ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacana family at ng barangay
government ng Bgy. Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School;

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacaha family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aking ama na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

6. Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng
Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

fok . -
EDGAR 0. PACANA Sr
Jup 65 201
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this o July 2019 in
Falawan by Edgar O. Pacana, Sr. with Senior Citizen’s ID No. 2679 issued
onJune 9, 2015 in El Nido, Palawan, showing his name and signature as
competent proof of his |dentrty
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CITY/MUNICIPALITY OF EL NIDO )S.S.

MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Kami, SAMUEL O. PACANA at ROSALINDA H. PACANA, mga nasa hustong
gulang, mag-asawa, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan, matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga
sumusunod:

1. Na, kami ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako (Samuel) ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at

nakapagasawa;
2. Na, ako (Samuel) ay anak ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang

nagmamayari ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7)

ektarya na matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

3. Na, sa katunayan ako (Samuel) ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang
nasasakupan ng Lot 928 at sa ngayun kami ay kasaluyang nakatira sa
natitira pang bahagi ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aking
yumaong ama na si Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay ay
sakop ng lupang kasalukuyang pinagtatalunan ng Pacafa family at ng

barangay government ng Bgy. Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary

School;

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aking ama na si Santiago hanggang

sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

6. Na, ginawa namin ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi

ni Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aming nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5
ng Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan
gA

UEL O. PACANA ROSALINDA H. g%CANA
JuL 05 2019
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ___dayof July 2019 in

i by Samuel Pacana with Senior Citizen’s ID No. 0185 and
Rosalmda H. Pacaha with VIN 5312-0084A-H1076RPH20000-0 showing their
respective name, picture and signature as competent proof of their identity.
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CITY/MUNICIPALITY OF EL NIDO )S.S.

MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, IMELDA PACANA DAQUER, nasa hustong gulang, may-asawa, isang
mangangalakal, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan,
matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
nakapagasawa;

2. Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang nagmamavyari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

3. Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang nasasakupan ng
Lot 928 at sa ngayun kami ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay at ang
aking maliit na tindahan ay sakop ng lupang kasalukuyang
pinagtatalunan ng Pacana family at ng barangay government ng Bgy.
Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School;

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

6. Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng
Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

IMELDA PACANA DAQUER

JUL 05 2019
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this da; of July 2019 in

Y Palnivan by Imelda Pacana Daquer with Postal Identity Card No. 3009605
showing her name, picture and signature as competent proof of her identity.
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
PROVINCE OF PALAWAN )
CITY/MUNICIPALITY OF EL NIDO)S.S.

MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Kami, MERCENARIO D. PACANA at SHERYLL F. PACANA, nasa hustong
gulang, mag-asawa, mga mangangalakal, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa
Libertad, El Nido, Palawan, matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad
ng mga sumusunod:

1. Na, kami bilang mag-asawa, ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa
Libertad, El Nido, Palawan; at sa katunayan ay doon na kami
ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at nagasawa,

. Na, ako (Mercenario) ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacaia na siyang
nagmamayari ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7)
ektarya na matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

3. Na, sa katunayan ako (Mercenario) ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang
nasasakupan ng Lot 928 at sa ngayun kami ay kasaluyang nakatira sa
natitira pang bahagi ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming
yumaong lolo na si Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay

ay sakop ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacana family at ng

barangay government ng Bgy. Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary
School;

(]

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

6. Na, ginawa namin ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi
ni Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aming nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5
ng Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

/’
MERCENARIO D. PACANA SHERYXVF. PACANA

85 2013

SUBSCR!BED AND SWORN to before me this day of July 2019 in

> alawar by Mercenario D. Pacana with VIN 5312-0082A-H0277MDP-
1000 and Sheryll F. Pacana with VIN 5312-0082A-G08775FP2000.
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
PROVINCE OF PALAWAN )
CITY/MUNICIPALITY OF EL NIDO )S.S.

MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, EDGAR B. PACAf\'JA, Jr., nasa hustong gulang, walang asawa, isang self-
employed, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan,
matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
kasaluyang nagtatatrabaho;

2. Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacafa na siyang nagmamayari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

3. Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang nasasakupan ng
Lot 928 at sa ngayun ako ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay ay
sakop ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacana family at ng barangay
government ng Bgy. Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School;

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacaha family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

6. Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng
Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

/Nu A
EDGAR B PACANA, Jr.
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this_““Ldady’ofdly 2019 in

: by Edgar B. Pacana, Jr. with Community Tax Certificate No.
31070816 issued on June 25, 2019 in Bgy. Villa Libertad, E| Nido, Palawan,
showing his name and signature as competent proof of his identity.
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
PROVINCE OF PALAWAN )
CITY/MUNICIPALITY OF EL NIDO)S.S.

MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, RONNIE V. PACA’NA, nasa hustong gulang, walang asawa, isang maliit
na mangangalakal, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan, matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga
sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
kasaluyang nagnenegosyo;

2. Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang nagmamayari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

3. Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang nasasakupan ng
Lot 928 at sa ngayun ako ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay ay
sakop ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacana family at ng barangay
government ng Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School;

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

6. Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng
Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

Y

RONNIE V. PACANA

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ___ day of July 2019'in

y kg en o

Ly by Ronnie V. Pacana with Community Tax Certificate No.

issued on in Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan,
showing his name and signature as competent proof of his identity.
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
PROVINCE OF PALAWAN )
CITY/MUNICIPALITY OF EL NIDO)S.S.

MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, SANNY V. PACAr{lA, Jr., nasa hustong gulang, may asawa, isang
construction worker, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan, matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga
sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
kasaluyang nagtatatrabaho;

2. Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang nagmamayari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong {7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

3. Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang nasasakupan ng
Lot 928 at sa ngayun kami ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aking kasalukuyang bahay ay sakop
ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacana family at ng barangay government
ng Bgy. Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School;

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

6. Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOQO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng
Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

SANNY V. PACANA,

“wy 05 2018
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before rhe this " day of July 2019 in
by Sanny V. Pacana, Jr. with PhilHealth ID No. 23-002074067-9,

showma his name and sugnature as competent proof of his identity.
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
PROVINCE OF PALAWAN )
CITY/MUNICIPALITY OF EL NIDO)S.S.

MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, EDEN B. PACAI\TA nasa hustong gulang, walang asawa, isang self-
employed, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan,
matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
kasaluyang nagtatatrabaho;

2. Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang nagmamayari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido,

3. Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang nasasakupan ng
Lot 928 at sa ngayun ako ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay ay
sakop ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacana family at ng barangay
government ng Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School;

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

6. Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng
Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

g

Unand ~
EDEN\B PACANA

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of Juty 2019 in

NGA by Eden B. Pacahia with TIN 356-833-458-000 issued on March
22,2019 in El Nido, Palawan, with her name, picture and signature on it as
competent proof of his :dentxty
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
PROVINCE OF PALAWAN )
CITY/MUNINCIPALITY OF EL NIDO) S.S.

MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, GARRY V. PACANA, nasa hustong gulang, walang asawa, isang
construction worker, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan, matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga
sumusunod:

i

Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
kasaluyang nagtatatrabaho;

Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang nagmamayari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

. Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang nasasakupan ng

Lot 928 at sa ngayun kami ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aking kasalukuyang bahay ay sakop
ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacana family at ng barangay government
ng Bgy. Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School;

Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng
Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

GARRY/V. PACANA

;'M’ ] 5 2""“‘

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of July 2019 in

by Garry V. Pacana with Community Tax Certificate No.

31070658 issued on June 31, 2019 in Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan,
showing his name and signature as competent proof of his identity.
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
PROVINCE OF PALAWAN )
CITY/MUNICIPALITY OF EL NIDO)S.S.

MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, EMILY KAY B. PACANA, nasa hustong gulang, walang asawa, isang
government employee, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan, matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga
sumusunod:

1.

Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
kasaluyang nagtatatrabaho;

. Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang nagmamayari

ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang nasasakupan ng
Lot 928 at sa ngayun ako ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay ay
sakop ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacana family at ng barangay
government ng Bgy. Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School;

. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy

simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng
Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

o

(
EMILY kﬂ%ACANA

Juyi 8 5 2019

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me thné day of July 2019 in

by Emily Kay B. Pacana with PhilHealth ID No. 09-252966945-5

w;th her name picture and signature on it as competent proof of her identity.
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
PROVINCE OF PALAWAN )

GITY /MUNICPALIT Y QEEIENIDO )S

MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, GARLENA PACAﬁA COLEGIO, nasa hustong gulang, may asawa, isang
maybahay, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan,
matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
nakapagasawa,

2. Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang nagmamayari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

3. Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang nasasakupan ng
Lot 928 at sa ngayun ako ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay ay
sakop ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacana family at ng barangay
government ng Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School;

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

6. Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATQOTQO, ay aking mlagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ikd} 5 HES
Hulyo 2019 sa MiNid& PElawan. ©iLINCESA

__,/ - :\
o \

Pl VI
GARLENQ PACANA COLEGIO
D
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this qf 0,1!?8?19 in

o iwﬁbrtena Pacana Colegio with drlver s license No. D11-15-
000422, showmg her name, picture and signature as comipgtent proof of her

identity.
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
PROVINCE OF PALAWAN )
CITY/MUNICIPALITY OF EL NIDOJS.S.

MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, JESSA B. PACANA, nasa hustong gulang, isang self-employed, at
kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan, matapos manumpa
nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
kasaluyang nagtatatrabaho;

2. Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang nagmamayari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido;

3. Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang nasasakupan ng
Lot 928 at sa ngayun ako ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay ay
sakop ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacana family at ng barangay
government ng Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School;

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

6. Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming
complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngayung ika - 5 ng
Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

JEBQ%B PACANA
JUL 05 %13
SUBSCR!BED AND SWORN to before me this ___day of July 2019 in

o an by Jessa B. Pacana with PhilHealth ID No. 09-252966944-7 with
her name, picture and signature on itas competent proof of her identity.

™.
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
PROVINCE OF PALAWAN )

CITFADE RUERTOUPRINCESRL N1DO )S.S.

MALAYANG SALAYSAY

Ako, ERLYN PACANA SIMBULAN, nasa hustong gulang, may asawa, isang
businesswoman, at kasalukuyang nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan,
matapos manumpa nang ayon sa batas ay nagsasaad ng mga sumusunod:

1. Na, ako ay matagal ng nakatira sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;
at sa katunayan ay doon na ako ipinanganak, lumaki, nagaral at
kasaluyang nagnenegosyo;

2. Na, ako ay apo ng yumaong si Santiago Pacana na siyang nagmamayari
ng Lot No. 928 na may sukat humigit kumulang pitong (7) ektarya na
matatagpuan sa Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido:

3. Na, sa katunayan ako ay doon na ipinanganak sa lupang nasasakupan ng
Lot 928 at sa ngayun ako ay kasaluyang nakatira sa natitira pang bahagi
ng Lot. No. 928 na hindi pa naibenta ng aming yumaong lolo na si
Santiago;

4. Na, ang lupa kung saan nakatirik ang aming kasalukuyang bahay ay
sakop ng lupang pinagtatalunan ng Pacaha family at ng barangay
government ng Villa Libertad at Bgy. Libertad Elementary School;

5. Na, ang possession ng Pacana family sa nabanggit na lupa ay nagpatuloy
simula pa ng ito ay masurvey para sa aming lolo na si Santiago hanggang
sa kasalukuyan at ni minsan ay hindi namin ito inabandona;

6. Na, ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito para pasinungalingan ang sinasabi ni
Punong Bgy. Jhony Fabregas sa kaniyang sagot o “answer” sa aming

complaint na diumano ang Pacana family ay nawalan ng possession sa
lupang aming pinagtatalunan.

BILANG PATOTOO, ay aking nilagdaan ang salaysay na ito ngés,myg 1“(50- '28&9
Hulyo 2019 sa El Nido, Palawan.

ERLYN PACARA SIMBULAN

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before mew&sl_gdzmﬁ July 2019 in

by Erlyn Pacana Simbulan with TIN 714-412-428-000 issued on
January 15, 2019 in El Nido, Palawan, with her name, pictur i

as competent proof of her identity.

ature on it
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Mr. PABLO |. CRUZ

OIC-CENRO n T a AN

Taytay, Palawan LY e D
Nl

SR e ‘?\“g/ﬁgalr\? H_BOK

We are submitting for your appropriate action our protest/complaint over the
approval of the subdivision plan survey of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D, El Nido, Palawan,
under Csd-04-025364-D. The survey was conducted for the Barangay Government
of Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan, et al. A certain Feguracion Dalabajan signed in
the conformity ciause as the land owner.

As stated in our protest, the property surveyed was Lot No. 928 which was
surveyed for our late father, Santiago Pacana, in 1955 in the Bacuit Public Land

Subdivision (Case-2), Pls 31 (PHILCUSA-FOA), as the legitimate claimant and
owner.

We have not given any authority to Feguracion Dalabajan to have our inherited
property surveyed for the barangay government of Villa Libertad and the Villa
Libertad Elementary School, hence, our protest.

We are anticipating your immiediate action in this regard.

Thank you and more power.

Sincerely yours,

] SAMUEL O. PACANA OSCAR O. PACANA
National Highway, Villa Libertad
El Nido, Palawan
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Republic of the Philippines
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Region IV — MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE

5312 Taytay, Palawan

0. PACANA, SAMUEL O. CASE NO.

PACANA & OSCAR O. PACANA,

Protestants/Complainants.

-Versus- for:

BGY. GOVERNMENT OF VILLA LIBERTAD, “FOR CANCELLATION OF CSD-04-
rep. by its Punong Barangay JHONY 025364-D (Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D,
FABREGAS & VILLA LIBERTAD ELEMEN- EL NIDO, PALAWAN"

TARY SCHOOL, rep. by its Head Teacher

BELEN S. CABUTIHAN,

Protestees/Respondents.

VERIFIED PROTEST/COMPLAINT

PROTESTANTS/COMPLAINANTS by themselves and unto this Honorable

Office most respectfully file this protest on the approval of Csd-04-025363-D and
hereby further state that:

iy

_-—*

They are all Filipino citizens and more than sixty (60) years old, farmers,
married and residents of Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan, where

they may be served with notices and orders coming from this Honorable
Office;

. Protestees/respondents Bgy. Government of Villa Libertad, El Nido,

Palawan, and Villa Libertad Elementary School are government entities
represented herein by their respective heads that are all based in Bgy.
Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan, where they may be served with
summons, notices and orders of this Honorable Office;

. Protestants Oscar O. Pacana, Edgar O. Pacana and Samuel O. Pacana,

together with their late brother, Cesar O, Pacana, are the only legitimate

and compulsory heirs of Santiago Pacana, who died intestate on October
13, 1970 in Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;




4. During his lifetime, Santiago Pacana was the legitimate and only
claimant and possessor of Lot No. 928 with an area of more or less
seven (7) hectares located in Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan. Said
property was surveyed in his name sometime in the year 1955 in the
Bacuit (El Nido) Public Land Subdivision (Case -2), Pls-31 (PHILCUSA -
FOA). As evidence we are submitting herewith as Annex “A” the said
Bacuit Public Land Subdivision which is made as an integral part of this
protest;

5. Over the years and during the lifetime of Santiago Pacana, portions of
Lot No. 928 were either sold or conveyed to several individuals such that
only a little over one (1) hectare was left after the death of Santiago;

6. Of the more than one (1) hectare left after Santiago’s death, about five
thousand (5,000) square meters is being presently occupied by the Villa
Libertad Elementary School while the remaining four thousand and
eighty two (4,082) square meters, situated across the barangay road
facing the elementary school, are being presently occupied by Benjamin
Ramirez, Liberty Tumbokon, Samuel O. Pacana and the heirs of Cesar O.
Pacana. A number of small market stalls (talipapa), facing the north
national highway, are also inside which are being rented out by the
barangay government to several vendors together with some small
commercial structures occupied by some individuals. The remaining
areas are now part of the road right of way (north national highway);

7. Sometime in 1996, the heirs questioned the occupation by the Villa
Libertad Elementary School of a portion of about five thousand (5,000)
square meters of Lot No. 928. It is the portion where the school
buildings and other facilities are located. The heirs were told that the
said portion was allegedly sold or donated by Santiago Pacana but no
document of conveyance was ever shown to them. At any rate, even if
assuming the portion was truly sold or donated to the school, the same
was made by Santiago without the consent of his wife, thus, the portion

legally conveyed was only one half of the five thousand (5,000) square
meters;

8. To solve the issue on the five thousand (5,000) square meters and as an
act of generosity and for the community well being, the protestants,
together with their mother and other co-heir, entered into a
compromise agreement with the school authorities on May 8, 1996. In
said compromise they agreed to drop their complaint on the school’s
occupation of the 5,000 square meters in exchange of the offer of the
school to give them one hundred (100) square meters each to be taken
from the area being claimed and occupied by the school. This promise
was never complied with by the Villa Libertad Elementary School. We

—




are attaching hereto the compromise agreement dated May 8, 1996 as
Annex “B” hereof;

9. Sometime in 2017, the heirs decided to have the remaining 4,082 square
meters titled in their name but to their surprise they were informed by
the CENRO personnel in Taytay, Palawan, that the area was already
surveyed for the barangay government of Villa Libertad, the Villa
Libertad Elementary School and Liberty Tumbokon, et al. They were
given a copy of the subdivision plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D, which was
approved on August 31, 2004. A copy of said subdivision plan is hereto
attached as Annex “C” and is made as an integral part of this protest;

10. In said approved subdivision survey, Villa Libertad Elementary School
was given a portion of SEVEN HUNDRED THIRTY SEVEN (737) square
meters while the Barangay Government of Villa Libertad was given ONE
THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED THIRTEEN (1,813) square meters. The
remaining portions were surveyed for Liberty Tumbokon (400 square
meters), Gabina Pacana (400 square meters), Benjamin Ramirez (133
square meters, and Samuel Pacaha (267 square meters);

11.The approved surveys for Villa Libertad Elementary School and the
Barangay Government of Villa Libertad are patently illegal and thus void
because the heirs of Santiago Pacafia never waived, donated or sold a
portion of the property to them, and hence they have no right
whatsoever to the areas allotted to them. The remaining portions
allotted to Liberty Tumbokon, et al. are not being questioned by the
heirs in this protest because they have a right to their respective
portions either as legal heirs or vendees;

12. The subdivision survey was likewise made without the knowledge and
consent of the Heirs of Santiago Pacana. In fact, the one who gave
conformity to the survey was Feguracion Dalabajan who signed the
survey as the land owner. Dalabajan has no right whatsoever to initiate

the subdivision survey or to sign the conformity to the survey because
she was not in any way authorize by the heirs.

WHEREFORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, it is most respectfully prayed of this

Honorable Office to render judgment in favour of the protestants/complainants
and against the protestees/respondents —

1. by partially invalidating the approval of CSD-4-025364-D (Subdivision
Plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D, El Nido) insofar as Lot 1115-A (Area=737
square meters Villa Libertad Elementary School) and Lot 1115-D

(Area=1,813 sQquare meters Barangay Government of Villa Libertad, El
Nido), are concerned; and




2. to reconvey the said questioned portions to the Heirs of Santiago
Pacana.

Other reliefs and remedies just and equitable under the circumstances are
likewise prayed for.

Puerto Princesa City for El Nido, Palawan, September 10, 2018.

4 . = > 7 r(' %&
AR O. PACANA SAMUEL O fA)C/EﬁZ\j
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VERIFICATION WITH CERTIFICATION OF
NON-FORUM SHOPPING

We, EDGAR O. PACAKJA, OSCAR O. PACAI:IA and SAMUEL O. PACANA, all
of legal age (senior citizens), Filipinos, with address at Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan, after having been sworn to in accordance with law, hereby depose and
state:

1. We are the protestants/complainants in the case on which this
verification with certification of non-forum shopping is attached;

2. We have caused the preparation and filing of this protest as Heirs of
Santiago Pacana;

3. We have not commenced any other action or proceeding involving the
same issues in the Supreme Court, the Court of Appeals, or any other
lower court, tribunal or agency,

4. To our knowledge, no other such action or proceeding is pending in any
judicial court or other tribunal or agency in the Philippines involving the
same issues, claims or parties;

5. Should it come to our knowledge that a similar action or proceeding has
been filed or is pending before any court, tribunal or agency in the
Philippines, we hereby undertake to notify this Office within five days
from receipt of such knowledge.

Puerto Princesa City, September 10, 2018.

ED AR)%.(/;;;;EA %Mﬁﬁﬁ?

i s
OSCAR O. PACANA

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before m‘esgw}?sJ 0 20Bof september 2018
in Pu?rto Princesa City, by Edgar O. Pacana with OSCA ID No. 2679; Samuel O.
Pacana with OSCA ID No. 0185 and Oscar O. Pacaha with OSCA ID No. 2295,

containing their respective name, picture and signature as competent proof of
their identity.

Doc. No. I8C; MARTINE RUELD
Page No. %€ ; m'mNﬂ!'A!?Y PUBLIC

: 0 ’ PTR NO. 4960333 R-12/19-2017-P.P.C.
Series of 2018. IBP NO. 1023688-12/11/2017-P.P.C.

RM. 18 2/F CAPITOL COMMERCIAL COMPLE
FERNANDEZ ST., PUERTO PRINCESA CIFY
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KNOW. ALL MEN BY THESE PRaSENIS: W
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“1ity of El'Nido,'Palawan herein referred to as the PARTY OF THuwilRSL:PARI;

o

=2 Y| o

The Villa:livertad wlementary wchool of pgy. Villa Libertad, £1 Nido,
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Republic of the Philippines

/ Department of Environment and Natural Resoufc‘e‘s NmNBA REC SRS SrATION

MIMAROPA Region B % o J %/ E ~ W
5w PROVINCIAL ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCE OF?I E‘™ ~- - s ot

0 Bgy. Sta. Monica, Puerto Princesa City, Palaw: £y aran

- Telfax No. (048) 434 - 8791 ¢ ALy R

Email Add: penropalawan@denr.gov.ph
YiING NG [} OUTGOINQ
v e DATS NO.

 S—

May 11,2022 —

MEMORANDUM
FOR : The Regional Executive Director
DENR - MIMAROPA, 1515 L&S Building
Roxas, Blvd., Ermita, Manila
FROM : The Provincial Environment and
Natural Resources Officer
SUBJECT COMPLETE STAFF WORK (CSW) ON LAND CASE NO. 0510

RE: EDGAR O. PACANA, SAMUEL O. PACANA AND OSCAR
O. PACANA (PROTESTANT) VERSUS THE CLAIM OF
BARANGAY GOVERNMENT OF VILLA LIBERTAD REP. BY
PUNONG BARANGAY JHONY FABRIGAS AND VILLA
LIBERTAD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL EP. BY HEAD
TEACHER BELEN S. CABUTIHAN (PROTESTEE) SITUATED
AT BARANGAY VILLA LIBERTAD, EL NIDO, PALAWAN

Forwarded is the Memorandum from CENRO — Taytay, Palawan dated March 31,
2022 along with the Final Investigation Report of Special Investigator I Jones Manoel Y.
Lafuente with enclosures relative to the above-entitled case.

For information, review and resolution.
For the PENR Officer:

]

FRANKIIN é HERNANDEZ
Chief, Management Services Division

In-Chargé, Office of the I?R\o&

Ce: DENR-PALAWAN
PENRO-RECORDS
CENRO - Taytay, Palawan R E L EhA S E D
i S
TSD/File *kkv. By -
Doc. Rlcf‘. No. ;022-3839@ Date: , __,.,_QCN,&J-LM

Rl I v LULL



Republic of the Philippines '
& Department of Environment and Natural Resources
MIMAROPA Region

—F PROVINCIAL ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE

s Gta Monica, Puerto Princesa City

DOCUMENT ACTION INFORMATION FORM
Doc. Ref. No.: 2022-3890 Date and Time received: 05/06/2022 11:53:41 AM

From: ALAN L. VALLE Document Type: Memorandums

CENRO TAYTAY, PALAWAN

Subject: 1294 COMPLETE STAFF WORK (CSW) ON LAND CASE NO. 0510, , EDGAR O. PACAN, SAMUEL O. PACANA AND
OSCAR O PACANA (PROTESTANT) -VS- THE CLAIM OF BRGY. GOVERNMENT OF VILLA LIBERTAD REP. BY
PUNONG BARANAGY JHONY FABRIGAS AND VILLA LIBERTAD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL REP.

Attachment(s): WITH ATTACHMENTS (1 FOLDER) Earmarked As :
Date: ‘ ‘ From: ‘ T<r) To: ‘ P’)/\/,'u o fag %fu/ﬂ
Action Recommended/Required: Processing Time: Other Instruction(s):
: For Review/ Urgent
For Act g
[] For Action Recommendation ] (wiin the day) — /f/f res/yea ﬁ
For Approval For Information, Record
[ and File [ Priority crrlorser<~
D ;g;rtr)‘zt\:tursement/ For Indorsement to pefn s dae) — QRyfesf / ‘4 et ot S
For Official Release concermed Rarly(es Complrex7 d Y /
D [:] Return to Payee/Sender __v‘x”llr:‘ zoa asys or ’7) ZW 7
I:] For Signature shorter

Wiin ____days or shorter

N £ 220 G 29 X = KT ol

Action Recomménded}Requwed Processing Time: Other Instruction 5)
D For Action For Review/ r__] Urgent il ‘ QV p W \,)
Recommendation (w/in the day)

For Approval For Information, Record ’ AN
L and File [ Priority “
D For Disbursement/ E (w/in 3 days)

Payment or Indorsement @o ‘

Complex
concerned Party(ies
D For Official Release wiin 7 days
D Return to Payee/Sender —wilin 20 days or
D For Signature shorter

Win days or shorter ’M' % 12?_: “;; L;SEE'Q"_J g{,/

Date: I l From: I To I

Action Recommended/Required: Processing Time: Ofper Insjryctiond: », %5
; For Review/ Urgent '

E] Foreton Recommendation (w/in the day) M " ( 4/4 /{ / h 42 .

[] For Approval For Information, Record . <
For Disb " and File L—_l Priority o
L__‘ or Disbursemen Forliidorsementio (w/in 3 days)
Payment ; Complex
concerned Party(ies ple
D For Official Release w/in 7 days
D Return to Payee/Sender —w/in 20 days or
D For Signature short
Wiin days or shorter
Date: l [From: l To:
Action Recommended/Required: Processing Time: Other Instruction(s):
; For Review/ Urgent
D For, Actlon Recommendation D (w/in the day)
D For Approval For Information, Record .
_— " and File D Priority
D or Disbursemen R (w/in 3 days)
Payment ; Complex
concerned Party(ies P
D For Official Release ___wiin 7 days
D Return to Payee/Sender w/m 20 days or
D For Signature shorte

Wiin days or shorter

Printed on  05/06/2022 11:53:56AM Received at: OFFICE OF THE PENR( Received by: ALMINE, ALYSSA

DENR PALAWAN DOCUMENT ACTION TRACKING SYSTEM v.2




= Region IV- MIMAROPA o e
COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RE%@B’R ‘

5312 Taytay, Palawan
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BY:

MEMORANDUM

FOR

FROM

SUBJECT

COMAYORT01 |

March 31, 2022

Tt

The Provincial Environment and Natural Resources Officer
Brgy. Sta. Monica, Puerto Princesa City. Palawan

The Community Environment and Natural Resources Officer
Brgy. Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan

COMPLETE STAFF WORK (CSW) ON LAND CASE NO.
0510, EDGAR O. PACANA, SAMUEL O. PACANA, AND
OSCAR O. PACANA (PROTESTANT) VERSUS THE
CLAIM OF BRGY. GOVERNMENT OF VILLA LIBERTAD
REP. BY PUNONG BARANGAY JHONY FABRIGAS AND
VILLA LIBERTAD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL REP. BY
HEAD TEACHER BELEN S. CABUTIHAN (PROTESTEE)
SITUATED AT BRGY. VILLA LIBERTAD EL NIDO,
PALAWAN

1.

This case stemmed from the protest /complaint filed by siblings Edgar, Samuel, and
Oscar, all with surname Pacafia on September 14, 2018, for cancellation of Plan Csd-04-025364-
Dof Lot 1115-A & Lot 1115-D, Cad 1037-D in Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan.

I FACTUAL BACKGROUND

Records of this Office disclosed that from December 31, 1953, to December 14, 1954,

Pls-31 was surveyed and approved on November 10, 1955. The subject lot identified as
Lot 928, Pls-31 is listed to Santiago Pacafia containing a total area of Seventy-one
Thousand Three Hundred Thirty-two (71,332) square meters;

On April 19, 1955, Pacifico Orense filed a public land application for lot 928, Pls-31

under Homestead Patent Application 2-1582 with a total area of six (6) hectares located
at the above-mentioned area. However, the carpeta/folder containing the application of
Orense was not found on file;

Lot 928, Pls-31 was covered by lots No. 1113, 1114, 1115, 1116, 1188 and 1189 of Cad

1037-D. As per survey dated on June 2 — August 6, 1991, the listed survey claimants of
the above-mentioned lots are as follows:

Lot No.

Survey Claimant

Area

Remarks

1113

Pls-31 (Lot 928, Pls-31

Portion)

23,881

*Lot 1113 was claimed by
Cristituto Valdez

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312

nrotaytaypal@yahoo.com.ph
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*Thus lot was covered by various

isolated surveys

1114 | Ten Knots Philippines,

Inc.

4,358

Lot 1114 was claimed by
Cristituto Valdez
*This lot is covered by isolated

surveys

1115 | Ten Knots Philippines,

Inc.

4,082

* Lot 1115 being the subject of this
case was claimed by the Hrs. of
Santiago Pacafia

*This lot is occupied by the
Barangay Local Government of
Villa Libertad

It is subdivided under Csd-04-
025364-D in favor of the Barangay
Local Government of Villa
Libertad, et.al.

*Although Ten Knots Philippines,
Inc. was the listed claimant during
the cadastral survey, a notation on
the approved survey plan stated that
the subject lot is not one of the
properties owned by the company.
This was executed by Alberto A.
Lim —President of Ten Kbnots

Philippines, Inc. thru a notarized
Affidavit dated August 21, 2002.

1116 | School Site vs C.
Valdez

*Lot 1116 was occupied by Villa
Libertad Elementary School

1188 | Road

9,567

Lot 1188 is a Provincial Road

1189 | Santiago Pacafia

24,632

Lot 1189 was
Cristituto Valdez

claimed by

*It is covered by isolated surveys

4. That sometime in 1996, the heirs of Santiago questioned the occupation of Villa Libertad
Elementary School over the portion of Lot 1115, Cad 841-D with an area of 5,000 sq.m.
where the school buildings and other facilities are located (see verified protest).

5. That on May 8, 1996, the heirs of Santiago Pacafia and Teacher-in-Charge Belen S.
Cabutihan entered into a Compromise Agreement and both parties agreed on the

following:

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312
emailad: cenrotaytaypal@yahoo.com.ph
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“That the HEIRS shall WITHDRAW and QUIT their claim in the contested

portion of one (1) hectare school site in exchange of below concession:

1. SAMUEL, OSCAR and EDGAR, all surnamed PACANA shall be given, free
from any renumeration, a 10x10 meters residential lot each;

2. GABINA ARZAGA — PACANA, wife of the heir of CESAR PACANA shall be
accorded property rights over her present residential occupation™.

. Lot subject of this case is Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D containing an area of Four Thousand
Eighty-two (4,082) square meters, surveyed for Ten Knots Philippines, Inc.

a. That on July 5, 2004, Marcelino B. Pagliawan submitted his
investigation/inspection report on Lot 1115, Cad 841-D subject to the issuance of
Survey Authority;

b. That on July 16, 2004, Survey Authority was issued in favor of the Brgy.
Government of Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan under SA No. 107-2004;

c. That on July 18, 2004, the subject lot was surveyed by Engr. Romeo d.R. Manojo
and it was approved on August 31, 2004; and

d. The subject lot was subdivided under Csd-04-025364-D in favor of the Barangay
Government, et.al. with six (6) resultant lots:
1. Lot 1115-A  Area: 737 sq. m. - surveyed for Villa Libertad Elementary

School

ii. Lot1115-B  Area: 400 sq. m. - surveyed for Ma. Liberty Tumbokon and
covered by Free Patent No. 045312-09-26030 of Maria Liberty C.
Tumbokon issued on July 16, 2009

ni. Lot1115-C  Area: 400 sq. m. - surveyed for Gabina Pacafia and covered
by Residential Free Patent Application No. 045312-230 of Gabina A.
Pacafia filed on January 26, 2015

iv. Lot1115-D  Area: 1,813 sq. m. - surveyed for Barangay Government of
Villa Libertad,;

v. Lot1115-E  Area: 133 sq. m. — surveyed for Benjamin Ramirez

vi. Lot 1115-F  Area: 267 sq. m. — appeared no name on the claimant but is
covered by Free Patent Application No. 045312-922-A of Manuel S.
Valdez filed on April 29, 2013.

. That on September 14, 2018, the siblings Edgar, Samuel, and Oscar, all with the surname
Pacafia filed a protest/complaint about the cancellation of Plan Csd-04-025364-D over
Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D in Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;

a. That, the Protestants together with their late brother Cesar O. Pacafia are the
legitimate and compulsory heirs of Santiago Pacafia, who died intestate on
October 13, 1970, in Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312
emailad: cenrotaytaypal@yahoo.com.ph
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. That, Santiago Pacaiia (Santiago for brevity) was the listed claimant and processor
of Lot 928, Pls-31 containing an area of more or less seven (7) hectares during
Bacuit (El Nido) Public Land Survey some time in 1955;

That, over the years and during the lifetime of Santiago, portions of Lot 928, Pls-
31 were either sold or conveyed by Santiago to several individuals such that only
a little over one (1) hectare was left after his death;

That, in this little over one (1) hectare, 5,000 sq.m. is occupied by Villa Libertad
Elementary School while the remaining 4,082 sq.m. is occupied by Benjamin
Ramirez, Liberty Tumbokon, Samuel Pacafia, heirs of Cesar O. Pacafia and
Barangay Market (talipapa);

That, sometime in 1996, the heirs of Santiago questioned the occupation of Villa
Libertad Elementary School over the portion of 5,000 sq.m. where the school
buildings and other facilities are located. The heirs were told that the said portion
was allegedly sold/donated by Santiago to school but no document of conveyance
was ever shown to them. At any rate, even if assuming the portion was truly sold
or donated to the school, the same was made by Santiago without the consent of
his wife, thus, the portion legally conveyed was only one-half of the five thousand
(5,000) square meters;

That, to resolve the issue on the five thousand (5,000) square meters and as an act
of generosity and for community well-being, the heirs of Santiago, entered into a
compromise agreement (Annex “C” of the final investigation report) with the
school authorities on May 8, 1996, to drop their complaint on the school’s
occupation of the 5,000 sq.m. in exchange of the offer of the school to give them
100 sq.m. each to be taken from the area being claimed and occupied by the
school. But the school never complied with the said agreement;

That, sometime in 2017, the heirs decided to have the remaining 4,082 square
meter titled in their names but were surprised when they were informed by DENR
CENRO Taytay that the area was already surveyed for the Barangay Government
of Villa Libertad, Villa Libertad Elementary School and Liberty Tumbokon, et.al.
They were given a copy of the subdivision plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D which
was approved on August 31, 2004 (see Annex “B” of the final investigation
report).

That, in the said approved subdivision survey, Villa Libertad Elementary School
was given a portion of Seven Hundred Thirty-seven (737) square meters while the
Barangay Government of Villa Libertad was given One Thousand Eight Hundred
Thirteen (1,813) square meters. The remaining portions were surveyed for Liberty
Tumbokon (400 Square meters), Gabina Pacafia (400 square meters), Benjamin
Ramirez (133 square meters), and Samuel Pacafia (267 square meters);

That, the approved survey for Villa Libertad Elementary School and Barangay
Government of Villa Libertad is patently illegal and thus void because the heirs of
Santiago never waived, donated, or sold portions of the property to them, and
hence they have no right whatsoever to the areas allotted to them. The remaining
portions allotted to Liberty Tumbokon, et.al. are not being questioned by the heirs

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312
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in this protest since they have a right to their respective portions either as legal
heirs or vendees;

J.  That, the subdivision survey was executed without the knowledge and consent of
the heirs of Santiago. In fact, the one who gave conformity to the survey was
Feguracion Dalabajan who signed the survey as the landowner. Dalabajan has no
right whatsoever to initiate the subdivision survey or to sign the conformity to the
survey because she was not in any way authorized by the heirs.

8. On February 28, 2018, an Order of Investigation was issued by the OIC-PENRO Eriberto
B, Safios directing the designated LIO to conduct an investigation and to submit a report
and recommendation pursuant to DAO 2016-31 dated December 29, 2016;

a. That, Protestants just anchored their claims on the Bacuit (El Nido) Public Land
Subdivision (Case 2), Pls-31 (PHILCUSA-FOA) sometime in the year 1955 as
stated in their complaint. However, it is not a sufficient basis to establish their
claim in the concept of ownership.

b. That, the subject property was never covered by a Title under their name, so much
so that the right of the Protestant over the said property is merely inchoate, a mere
privilege granted by the State subject to their continuous possession of the

property.

c. That, based on the evidence presented, Santiago and his heirs have lost their
possession of the property, as such, they have also lost their right over the
property in favor of the present occupants, In order to perfect their rights, the
possession should have been in the continuous, adverse and exclusive. Protestants
failed to prove this.

d. That, in fact, Villa Libertad Elementary School and the Barangay Government are
the actual occupant of the said property since 1980 and for a long period of time.
However, there is no legal documents on the transfer of rights between the Villa
Elementary School and the Barangay Government of Villa Libertad considering
that the Villa Libertad Elementary School represented by Head Teacher, Belen S.
Cabutihan was the one who enter into a Compromise Agreement between the
Heirs of Pacaiia.

e. That, Paragraph 7 of the Protest (see Annex “A) stated “Sometime in 1996, the
heirs questioned the occupation by the Villa Libertad Elementary School of a
portion of about five thousand (5,000) square meters of Lot 928. It is the portion
where the school buildings and other facilities are located. The heirs were told
that the said portion was allegedly sold or donated by Santiago Pacafia but no
document of conveyance was ever shown to them. At any rate, even if assuming
the portion was truly sold or donated to the school, the same was made by
Santiago without the consent of his wife, thus, the portion legally conveyed was
only one-half of the five thousand (5,000) square meters”

This argument is simply misplaced. Santiago and his heirs never regained
ownership over the property. It is therefore not material on whether or not Santiago made

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312
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conveyances during his lifetime. Simply put, one cannot sell or convey what one does not
own.

f. That, Protestants failed to present evidence to overcome the presumption of
regulatory, subdivision plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D in the name of Barangay
Government of Villa Libertad made by DENR is presumed valid and regular
unless proven otherwise.

g. That, to prove occupancy and continuous possession for a better right over the
property, other Protestee such as the representative of Villa Libertad Elementary
School and Head Teacher, Belen S. Cabutihan, former Barangay Chairperson and
member of Barangay Council, Feguracion C, Dalabajan and Pablito Tumbokon
provided their Sinumpaang Salaysay (Annexes “D” to “D;” ) and other pertinent
documents Tax Declaration 18-13-017-0584 issued to Barangay Government of
Villa Libertad (Annex “E” of the final investigation report) and Land Tax
Verification Slip (Annex “F” of the final investigation report).

IL ISSUE/S

1. Whether or not the approved subdivision plan Csd-04-025364-D of Lot 1115, Cad
1037-D is valid insofar as Lot 1115-A and Lot 1115-D are concerned.

2. Whether or not the issue of who has the better right on the remaining portion of Lot
No. 928, Pls-31, now identified as a portion of Lot No. 1115, Cad 1037-D, with an
area of 4,082 square meters is relevant to the case filed by the Protestant on the
cancellation of Plan Csd-04-025364-D (Lot 1115-A & Lot 1115-D, Cad 1037-D).

III. LEGAL BASIS

1. Republic Act No. 386 Civil Code of the Philippines

Gadrinab vs. Salamanca et al., G.R. No. 194560, June 11, 2014
Section 50 of Department (DENR) Administrative Order 2007-29
Article 1137 of the New Civil Code of the Philippines

RN

IV. ANALYSIS

On the foregoing premises, the claim of Santiago over Lot 928, Pls-31 rest solely on the
PLS-31 Survey in 1953-1954 indicating the name Santiago Pacafia as the survey claimant
(Annex “J” of the investigation report). There were no more details that will remark significantly
on the claim and possession of Santiago after he was named as the claimant. Merely being the
listed claimant does not conclusively prove that Santiago owns Lot 928, Pls-31. It is noteworthy
that in order to make a claim valid, the person claiming an unregistered portion of land who by
themselves or through their predecessors-in-interest have been in open, continuous, exclusive,
and notorious possession and occupation, under a bona fide claim of acquisition or ownership,

for at least thirty years immediately preceding the filing of the application for confirmation of
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title except when prevented by war or force majeure actual possession. In this instance, the heirs
failed to present evidence/s such as the intention of Santiago to apply for title and/or payment of
annual tax to substantiate their claim that Santiago was indeed the processor of the land named

after him.

During the length of occupation and possession of the school and barangay in the portion
of Lot 928, Pls-31 particularly on the area now covered by Lots 1115 and 1116, Cad 1037-D, the
filing of the protest by the heirs is very surprising because they have entered into a compromise
agreement with the school that they will drop their protest in 1996 with the same allegation with
that filed on 2018. The said compromise agreement formed the basis for the subdivision of Lot
1115, Cad 1037-D under Csd-04-025364-D. The Supreme Court held that “A judgment on
compromise agreement is a judgment on the merits. It has the effect of res judicata, and is
immediately final and executory unless set aside because of falsity or vices of consent.”
(Gadrinab vs. Salamanca et al., G.R. No. 194560, June 11, 2014).

The Protestants’ wish to partially invalidate the approved subdivision plan Csd-04-
025364-D is not possible or even the complete cancellation of the said plan. Section 50 of DAO
2007-29 or otherwise known as Revised Regulations on Land Survey, the cancellation of
approved plan only occurs if it is proven to be erroneous and/or spuriously approved and not in
accordance with the purpose for which it is was authorized. The Csd-04-025364-D was done
according to the compromise agreement the heirs entered into with the school. Nothing has been
violated and it has been approved according to purpose.

The Protestant takes the form of collateral attack on Protestee’s approved subdivision
plan. The latter action is to nullify the approved subdivision plan, and thus challenge who has the
better right on the remaining portion of Lot No. 928, Pls-31, now identified as a portion of Lot
No. 1115, Cad 1037-D, with an area of 4,082 square meters. The attack is direct when the object
of an action or proceeding is to annul or set aside the approved subdivision plan. On the other
hand, the attack is indirect or collateral when, in an action to obtain a different relief, an attack
on the approved subdivision plan is nevertheless made as an incident thereof,

In the present case, the attack on the approved subdivision plan is definitely merely
collateral as the relief being sought by Protestants in their action was the recovery of the real
right of possession.

In view of the above circumstances, considering that the protestant failed to prove any
irregularities on the approval of the subdivision plan Csd-04-025364-D, the undersigned
recommends the dismissal of the case without prejudice on the filing of a separate case relevant
to the issue raised by the protestant. The undersigned also concurs with the recommendation of
the assigned LIO to give weight the claimed of BLGU and Villa Libertad Elementary School.

For information and record.

\Aé'A ALLE
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EDGAR O. PACANA. SAMUEL O. PACANA Land Case No. 0510
AND OSCAR O. PACANA
Protestant
For cancellation of Plan
-versus- Csd-04-025364-D

(Lots 1115-A & 1115-B,

Cad 1037-D), Brgy. Villa
THE CLAIM OF BARANGAY GOVERNMENT Libertad, El Nido, Palawan
OF VILLA LIBERTAD Rep.by Punong Barangay
Jhony Fabrigas and VILLA LIBERTAD ELEMENTARY
SCHOOL Rep. by Head Teacher Belen s. Cabutihan

Prostestee

FINAL INVESTIGATION REPORT P

This case stemmed from the protest /complaint (Annex “A”) filed by siblings Edgar,
Samuel and Oscar, all with surname Pacafia on September 14, 2018 for can;:ellafion of Plan Csd-
04-025364-D (Annex “B”) over Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D in Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido,

Palawan.

ALLEGATIONS OF THE PROTESTANTS
1. That, the Protestants together with their late brother Cesar O. Pacaiia are the legitimate and

compulsory heirs of Santiago Pacafia, who died intestate on October 13, 1970 in Villa

Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;

2. That, Santiago Pacafia (Santiago for brevity) was the listed claimant and processor of Lot
928, Pls-31 containing an area of more or less seven (7) hectares during Bacuit (El Nido)

Public Land Survey sometime in 1955;

3. That, over the years and during the lifetime of Santiago, portions of Lot 928, Pls-31 were
either sold or conveyed by Santiago to several individual such that only a little over one

(1) hectare was left after his death;

4. That, in this little over one (1) hectare, 5,000 sq.m. is occupied by Villa Libertad
Elementary School while the remaining 4,082 sq.m. is occupied by Benjamin Ramirez,
Liberty Tumbokon, Samuel Pacafia, heirs of Cesar O. Pacafia and Barangay Market

(talipapa);,

.
-
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. That, sometime in 1996, the heirs of Santiago questioned the occupation of Villa Libertad
Elementary School over the portion of 5,000 sq.m. where the school buildings and other
facilities are located. The heirs were told that the said portion was allegedly sold/donated
by Santiago to school but no document of conveyance was ever shown to them. At any
rate, even if assuming the portion was truly sold or donated to the school, the same was
made by Santiago without the consent of his wife, thus, the portion legally conveyed was

only one half of the five thousand (5,000) square meters;

. That, to resolve the issue on the five thousand (5,000) square meters and as an act of
generosity and for community well-being, the heirs of Santiago, entered into a compromise
agreement (Annex “C”) with the school authorities on May 8, 1996 to drop their complaint
on the school’s occupation of the 5,000 sq.m. in exchange of the offer of the school to give
them 100 sq.m. each to be taken from the area being claimed and occupied by the school.

But the school never complied with the said agreement;

. That, sometime in 2017, the heirs decided to have the remaining 4,082 square meter titled
in their names but surprised when they were informed by DENR CENRO Taytay that the
area was already surveyed for the Barangay Government of Villa Libertad, Villa Libertad
Elementary School and Liberty Tumbokon, et.al. They were given a copy of the
subdivision plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D which was approved on August 31, 2004 (see
Annex “B”).

. That, in the said approved subdivision survey, Villa Libertad Elementary School was given
a portion of Seven Hundred Thirty-seven (737) square meters while the Barangay
Governmenet of Villa Libertad was given One Thousand Eight Hundred Thirteen (1,813)
square meter. The remaining portions were surveyed for Liberty Tumbokon (400 Square
meters), Gabina Pacaiia (400 square meters), Benjamin Ramirez (133 square meters), and

Samuel Pacafia (267 square meter);

. That, the approved survey for Villa Libertad Elementary School and Barangay Government
of Villa Libertad is patently illegal and thus void because the heirs of Santiago never
waived, donated or sold portions of the property to them, and hence they have no right
whatsoever to the areas alloteed to them. The remaining portions allotted to Liberty
Tumbokon, et.al. are not being questioned by the heirs in this protest because they have a

right to their respective portions either as legal heirs or vendees;
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10. That, the subdivision survey was executed without the knowledge and consent of the heirs
of Santiago. In fact, the one who gave conformity to the survey was Feguracion Dalabajan
who signed the survey as the land owner. Dalabajan has no right whatsoever to initiate the
subdivision survey or to sign the conformity to the survey because she was not in any way

authorize by the heirs.
PROTESTEE’S ANSWER

On May 25, 2019, Hon. Jhony Fabrigas submitted a verified answer to the the protest filed
by the heirs of Santiago which was duly received by DENR CENRO Taytay on May 31, 2019 and
on September 11, 2019 Mrs Belen S. Cabutihan, Head Teacher of Villa Libertad Elementary also
submitted her answer received by the Office on September 16, 2019 . Hon. Fabrigas and Mrs
Cabutihan both deny the allegations contained in the Verified Protest/Complaint for lack of basis

in fact and in law.

1. That, Protestant just anchored their claims on the Bacuit (El Nido) Public Land Subdivision
(Case 2), Pls-31 (PHILCUSA-FOA) sometime in the year 1955 as stated in their complaint.
It is not sufficient basis to establish legal right.

2. That, the subject property was never covered by a Title under their name, so much so that
the right of the Protestant over the said property in merely inchoate, a mere privilege

granted by the State subject to their continuous possession of the property.

3. That, based on evidence presented, Santiago and his heirs have lost their possession of the
property, as such they have also lost their right over the property in favor of present
occupants, In order to perfect their rights, the possession should have been in the

continuous, adverse and exclusive. Protestants failed to prove this.

4. That, in fact, Villa Elementary School and the Barangay Government are the actual

occupant of the said property for a long period of time.

5. That, Paragraph 7 of the Protest (see Annex “A) stated “Sometime in 1996, the heirs
questioned the occupation by the Villa Libertad Elementary School of a portion of about
Jfive thousand (5,000) square meters of Lot 928. It is the portion where the school buildings
and other facilities are located. The heirs were told that the said portion was allegedly sold
or donated by Santiago Pacaiia but no document of conveyance was ever shown to them.

At any rate, even if assuming the portion was truly sold or donated to the school, the same
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was made by Santiago without the consent of his wife, thus, the portion legally conveyed

was only one half of the five thousand (5,000) square meters”

This argument is simply misplaced. Santiago and his heirs never regained
ownership over the property. It is therefore not material on whether or not Santiago made
conveyances during his lifetime. Simply put, one cannot sell or convey what one does not

own.

6. That, Protestants failed to present evidence to overcome the presumption of regulatory,
subdivision plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D in the name of Barangay Government of Villa

Libertad made by DENR is presumed valid and regular unless proven otherwise.

7. That, to prove occupancy and continuous possession for a better right over the property,
other Protestee such as the representative of Villa Libertad Elementary School and Head
Teacher, Belen S. Cabutihan, former Barangay Chairperson and member of Barangay
Council, Feguracion C, Dalabajan and Pablito Tumbokon provided their Sinumpaang
Salaysay (Annexes “D” to “D3;” ) and other pertinent documents Tax Declaration 18-13-
017-0584 issued to Barangay Government of Villa Libertad (Annex “E”) and Land Tax
Verification Slip (Annex “F”).

ISSUE/S
1. Partially cancel the approved subdivision plan Csd-04-025364-D of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-
D insofar as Lot 1115-A and Lot 1115-D are concerned; and

2. Reconvey the questioned portions in favor of the heir of Santiago Pacaiia.

RECORDS VERIFICATION

Per records verification, the subject area of the case is portion of Lot 928, Pls-31 containing
an area of 7.1332 hectares and surveyed for Santiago Pacaiia. Based on the Allocation Book kept
on Records, portion of this lot covering six (6) hectares is covered by Homestead Patent
Application 2-1582 of Pacifico Orense filed on April 19, 1955. However, the carpeta/folder
containing the application of Orense was not found on file. Further, Lot 928, Pls-31 was resurveyed
under El Nido Cadastre and in this lot are Cadastral Lots No. 1113, 1114, 1115, 1116, 1188 and
1189, Cad 1037-D (Annex “G”).



Lot No. Survey Claimant Area Remarks
1113 Pls-31 (Lot 928, Pls- 23,881 sclaimed by Cristituto Valdez
31 Portion) scovered by various isolated surveys
1114 Ten Knots 4,358 eclaimed by  Cristituto  Valdez
Philippines, Inc. scovered by isolated surveys
1115 Ten Knots 4,082 claimed by the Hrs. of Santiago Pacaiia
Philippines, Inc. soccupied by the Barangay Local
Government  of  Villa  Libertad
*subdivided under Csd-04-025364-D in
favor of the Barangay Local Government
of Villa Libertad, et.al.
1116 School Site vs C. 4,358 coccupied by Villa Libertad Elelemntary
Valdez School
1188 Road 9,567 *Provincial Road
1189 Santiago Pacafia 24,632 eclaimed by  Cristituto  Valdez
ecovered by isolated surveys

Lot subject of this case is Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D containing an area of Four Thousand

Eighty-two (4,082) square meters and surveyed for Ten Knots Philippines, Inc. However, Alberto

A. Lim —President of Ten Knots Philippines, Inc. executed an affidavit dated August 21, 2002

stating that Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D was not one of the property of TKPI, this was placed on the

“Note” of the approved plan. It was subdivided under Csd-04-025364-D in favor of the Barangay

Government, et.al. with six (6) resultant lots:

Lot 1115-A  Area: 737 sq.m. - surveyed for Villa Libertad Elementary School

Lot 1115-B  Area: 400 sq.m. - surveyed for Ma. Liberty Tumbokon and covered by Free
Patent No. 045312-09-26030 of Maria Liberty C. Tumbokon issued on July 16, 2009

Lot 1115-C  Area: 400 sq.m. - surveyed for Gabina Pacaiia and covered by Residential
Free Patent Application No. 045312-230 of Gabina A. Pacaiia filed on January 26, 2015
Lot 1115-D  Area: 1,813 sq.m. - surveyed for Barangay Government of Villa Libertad;
Lot 1115-E  Area: 133 sq.m. — surveyed for Benjamin Ramirez

Lot 1115-F  Area: 267 sq.m. — appeared no name on claimant is covered by Free Patent

Application No. 045312-922-A of Manuel S. Valdez filed on April 29, 2013.

Further, Lot 1116, Cad 1037-D and Lot 1115-A, Csd-04-025364-D has a pending request

for issuance for Special Patent as of May 18, 2011 (Annex “H”).
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OCULAR INSPECTION

The first ocular inspection was headed by the RPS, OIC-Chief Cocjen on January 31, 2020
while the herein investigator together with the assistance from Records Officer Base and PMF
Casel conducted an ocular inspection, investigation and verification of the subject area dated April

15, 2021.

31/01/2020
14509 am

First Ocular Inspection

e —— (GRS[connecting™

Second Ocular Inspection

The Villa Libertad Elementary is already well established on Lot 1116, Cad 1037-D and
ac the school and surrounded by fence

o

the schools’ claimed portion of Lot 1115 is kept v

o

ant by

e

while there is an on-going
issue here. However, there
is a notable damaged part
of the fence within the
boundary of Lots 1115-A
and 1115-F and an under
construction of house
within the part of Lot
1115-A which according

Lot claimed by the Villa Libertad Elementary School (Lot 115-A)

-
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to the school’s representative belongs to the child of Samuel Pacafia (Samuel), one of the heirs of

Santiago and among the Protestant.

§

Altitude - © ©
64.m

On-going construction of house by Samuel’s child

Lot 1115-B is occupied by Liberty Tumbokon and family, evidenced by the established house and
store within. Meanwhile, Lot 1115-C is being occupied by Gabina Pacafia and children, family of
late Cesar Pacafia who is also one of the heirs of Santiago but not part of the Protest. Next to it is
1115-E being occupied by Mrs. Tita Ramirez, wife of Benjamin Ramirez, who bought the lot share
of Oscar Pacafia prior to the subdivision of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D. Mrs Ramirez also bought
portion of Lot 1115-F containing an area of one hundred thirty-three (133) square meters, lot share
of Edgar Pacaiia, as evidenced by the Deed of Conveyance and Waiver of Rights Over a Parcel of
Land executed by Edgar O. Pacaifia in favor of Tita Novelo-Ramirez on November 12, 2010
(Annex “I).

Ty

Lot Claimed by Tita Ramirez wife of Benjamin
Ramirez on Lot 1115-E and portion of Lot 1115-F
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Only one hundred thirty-four (134) square meters is left in Lot 1115-F which is lot share
of Samuel. But according to Mrs Ramirez even this remaining portion has been sold as well. Lot
1115-D is being occupied by the Barangay Local Government Unit of Villa Libertad as market

containing an area of one thousand eight hundred thirteen (1,813) square meters. This was

traversed by the Barangay Road with approximate length of ten (10) meters from the Provincial
Road

e it P v i P ‘.; =
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LEGAL BASIS

1. Republic Act No. 386 Civil Code of the Philippines
2. Gadrinab vs. Salamanca et al., G.R. No. 194560, June 11, 2014
3. Section 50 of Department (DENR) Administrative Order 2007-29

DISCUSSION, OBSERVATION AND FINDINGS

On the foregoing premises, the claim of Santiago over Lot 928, Pls-31 rest solely on PLS-
31 Survey in 1953-1954 indicating the name Santiago Pacafia as survey claimant (Annex “J”).
There were no more details that will remark significantly on the claim and possession of Santiago
after he was named as claimant. Merely being the listed claimant does not conclusively prove that
Santiago owns Lot 928, Pls-31. It is noteworthy that in order to make a claim effective, the person
claiming a real property adversely must be in actual possession of the property. In this instance,
the heirs failed to present evidence/s such as intention of Santiago to apply for title and/or payment
of annual tax to substantiate their claim that Santiago was indeed the processor of the land named
after him.

Instead, one Pacifico Orense (Orense) bear out evidences of rights over the land via
recorded Homestead Patent Application 2-1582 filed on April 19, 1955 covering 6 hectares.

However, carpeta/folder containing his application is not found on file despite exhaustive search.

.
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Hence, herein investigator cannot determine how Santiago’s right was waived in favor of Orense.
But nonetheless, Orense’s succession over the land is valid since there is no recorded conflict

between Santiago and Orense. Further, Orense was also issued with Tax Declaration in 1963
(Annex “K”).

From this six (6) hectares claim of Orense where the claim of Cristituto Valdez was
originated covering Cadastral Lots 1113, 1114, 1188 and 1189, Cad 1037-D. The remaining one
(1) hectare more or less covering Lots 1115 and 1116, Cad 1037-D is what the Villa Libertad
Elementary School allegedly purchased from Santiago and where the school itself has been built

since 1969 and other part is being occupied by the barangay since 1980.

During the length of occupation and possession of the school and barangay in the portion
of Lot 928, Pls-31 particularly on the area now covered by Lots 1115 and 1116, Cad 1037-D, the
filing of the protest by the heirs is very surprising because they have entered into a compromise
agreement with the school that they will drop their protest in 199? yvith the same allegation with
that filed on 2018. The said comp\romise agreement forrﬁed the basis for the subdivision of Lot
1115, Cad 1037-D under Csd-04-025364-D. The Supreme Court held that “A judgment on
compromise agreement is a judgment on the merits. It has the effect of res judicata, and is
immediately final and executory unless set aside because of falsity or vices of consent.”

(Gadrinab vs. Salamanca et al., G.R. No. 194560, June 11, 2014).

The Protestants’ wish to partially invalidating the approved subdivision plan Csd-04-
025364-D is not possible or even the complete cancellation of the said plan. Section 50 of DAO
2007-29 or otherwise known as Revised Regulations on Land Survey, the cancellation of approved
plan only occurs if it is proven to be erroneous and/or spuriously approved and not in accordance
with the purpose for which it is was authorized. The Csd-04-025364-D was done according to the
_ compromise agreement the heirs entered into with the school. Nothing has violated and it has been

approved according to purpose.
RECOMMENDATION

The herein investigator give weight to the claims of the Barangay Local Government of
Villa Libertad and Villa Libertad Elementary School. The length of their possession and
occupation based on tax declaration presented prove that the school and the barangay government

have the rightful claim over the lot subject of the protest.

AFUENTE

9|Page
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Republic of the Philippines
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Region IV — MIMAROPA
COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

EDGARI 0. PACANA, SAMUEL O. CASE NO.
PACANA & OSCAR O. PACANA,
Protestants/Complainants.

-Versus- for:

BGY. GOVERNMENT OF VILLA LIBERTAD, “FOR CANCELLATION OF CSD-04-
rep. by its Punong Barangay JHONY 025364-D (Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D,
FABREGAS & VILLA LIBERTAD ELEMEN- EL NIDO, PALAWAN"
TARY SCHOOL, rep. by its Head Teacher
BELEN S. CABUTIHAN,

Protestees/Respondents.

VERIFIED PROTEST/COMPLAINT

PROTESTANTS/COMPLAINANTS by themselves and unto this Honorable

Office most respectfully file this protest on the approval of Csd-04-025363-D and
hereby further state that:

1. They are all Filipino citizens and more than sixty (60) years old, farmers,
married and residents of Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan, where

they may be served with notices and orders coming from this Honorable
Office;

2. Protestees/respondents Bgy. Government of Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan, and Villa Libertad Elementary School are government entities
represented herein by their respective heads that are all based in Bgy.
Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan, where they may be served with
summons, notices and orders of this Honorable Office;

- Protestants Oscar O. Pacana, Edgar O. Pacana and Samuel O. Pacana,
together with their late brother, Cesar O. Pacana, are the only legitimate

and compulsory heirs of Santiago Pacana, who died intestate on October
13, 1970 in Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;

_——




4. During his lifetime, Santiago Pacaha was the legitimate and only
claimant and possessor of Lot No. 928 with an area of more or less
seven (7) hectares located in Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan. Said
property was surveyed in his name sometime in the year 1955 in the
Bacuit (El Nido) Public Land Subdivision (Case -2), Pls-31 (PHILCUSA —
FOA). As evidence we are submitting herewith as Annex “A” the said
Bacuit Public Land Subdivision which is made as an integral part of this
protest;

5. Over the years and during the lifetime of Santiago Pacana, portions of
Lot No. 928 were either sold or conveyed to several individuals such that
only a little over one (1) hectare was left after the death of Santiago;

6. Of the more than one (1) hectare left after Santiago’s death, about five
thousand (5,000) square meters is being presently occupied by the Villa
Libertad Elementary School while the remaining four thousand and
eighty two (4,082) square meters, situated across the barangay road
facing the elementary school, are being presently occupied by Benjamin
Ramirez, Liberty Tumbokon, Samuel O. Pacana and the heirs of Cesar O.
Pacafha. A number of small market stalls (talipapa), facing the north
national highway, are also inside which are being rented out by the
barangay government to several vendors together with some small
commercial structures occupied by some individuals. The remaining
areas are now part of the road right of way (north national highway);

7. Sometime in 1996, the heirs questioned the occupation by the Villa
Libertad Elementary School of a portion of about five thousand (5,000)
square meters of Lot No. 928. It is the portion where the school
buildings and other facilities are located. The heirs were told that the
said portion was allegedly sold or donated by Santiago Pacana but no
document of conveyance was ever shown to them. At any rate, even if
assuming the portion was truly sold or donated to the school, the same
was made by Santiago without the consent of his wife, thus, the portion

legally conveyed was only one half of the five thousand (5,000) square
meters;

8. To solve the issue on the five thousand (5,000) square meters and as an
act of generosity and for the community well being, the protestants,
together with their mother and other co-heir, entered into a
compromise agreement with the school authorities on May 8, 1996. In
said compromise they agreed to drop their complaint on the school’s
occupation of the 5,000 square meters in exchange of the offer of the
school to give them one hundred (100) square meters each to be taken
from the area being claimed and occupied by the school. This promise
was never complied with by the Villa Libertad Elementary School. We




are attaching hereto the compromise agreement dated May 8, 1996 as
Annex “B” hereof;

9. Sometime in 2017, the heirs decided to have the remaining 4,082 square
meters titled in their name but to their surprise they were informed by
the CENRO personnel in Taytay, Palawan, that the area was already
surveyed for the barangay government of Villa Libertad, the Villa
Libertad Elementary School and Liberty Tumbokon, et al. They were
given a copy of the subdivision plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D, which was
approved on August 31, 2004, A copy of said subdivision plan is hereto
attached as Annex “C” and is made as an integral part of this protest;

10. In said approved subdivision survey, Villa Libertad Elementary School
was given a portion of SEVEN HUNDRED THIRTY SEVEN (737) square
meters while the Barangay Government of Villa Libertad was given ONE
THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED THIRTEEN (1,813) square meters. The
remaining portions were surveyed for Liberty Tumbokon (400 square
meters), Gabina Pacafia (400 square meters), Benjamin Ramirez (133
square meters, and Samuel Pacafa (267 square meters);

11.The approved surveys for Villa Libertad Elementary School and the
Barangay Government of Villa Libertad are patently illegal and thus void
because the heirs of Santiago Pacafia never waived, donated or sold a
portion of the property to them, and hence they have no right
whatsoever to the areas allotted to them. The remaining portions
allotted to Liberty Tumbokon, et al. are not being questioned by the
heirs in this protest because they have a right to their respective
portions either as legal heirs or vendees;

12. The subdivision survey was likewise made without the knowledge and
consent of the Heirs of Santiago Pacana. In fact, the one who gave
conformity to the survey was Feguracion Dalabajan who signed the
survey as the land owner. Dalabajan has no right whatsoever to initiate

the subdivision survey or to sign the conformity to the survey because
she was not in any way authorize by the heirs.

WHEREFORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, it is most respectfully prayed of this

Honorable Office to render judgment in favour of the protestants/complainants
and against the protestees/respondents —

1. by partially invalidating the approval of CSD-4-025364-D (Subdivision
Plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D, El Nido) insofar as Lot 1115-A (Area=737
square meters Villa Libertad Elementary School) and Lot 1115-D

(Area=1,813 square meters Barangay Government of Villa Libertad, El
Nido), are concerned; and ’




2. to reconvey the said questioned portions to the Heirs of Santiago
Pacana.

Other reliefs and remedies just and equitable under the circumstances are
likewise prayed for.

Puerto Princesa City for El Nido, Palawan, September 10, 2018.
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VERIFICATION WITH CERTIFICATION OF
NON-FORUM SHOPPING

We, EDGAR O. PACANA, OSCAR O. PACANA and SAMUEL O. PACANA, all
of legal age (senior citizens), Filipinos, with address at Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan, after having been sworn to in accordance with law, hereby depose and
state:

1. We are the protestants/complainants in the case on which this
verification with certification of non-forum shopping is attached;

2. We have caused the preparation and filing of this protest as Heirs of
Santiago Pacana;

3. We have not commenced any other action or proceeding involving the
same issues in the Supreme Court, the Court of Appeals, or any other
lower court, tribunal or agency,

4. To our knowledge, no other such action or proceeding is pending in any
judicial court or other tribunal or agency in the Philippines involving the
same issues, claims or parties;

5. Should it come to our knowledge that a similar action or proceeding has
been filed or is pending before any court, tribunal or agency in the
Philippines, we hereby undertake to notify this Office within five days
from receipt of such knowledge.

Puerto Princesa City, September 10, 2018.

S e = e
EDEAR O. PACANA %Mfﬁ’m

-

e
OSCAR O. PACANA

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before nriesgﬁsJ 0 &wof September 2018
in Pu?rto Princesa City, by Edgar O. Pacana with OSCA ID No. 2679; Samuel O.
Pacana with OSCA ID No. 0185 and Oscar O. Pacafa with OSCA ID No. 2295,

containing their respective name, picture and signature as competent proof of
their identity.

Doc. No. [8C . . MARTINE RUELD
Page No. %% l; umﬂ?’géﬁg\’?ﬂﬂm
el MBER 31, 2019
i . el ALY PTR NO. 4960833 R-12/19-20(7-P.P.C.
eries of 2018. IBP NO. 10285688-12/11/2017-p.P.C.

RM. 18 2/F CAPITOL COMMERCIAL COMPLE)
FERNANDEZ ST., PUERTO PRINCESA CITY
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Republic of the Philippines)
Puerto Princesa City ) S.8.

SINUMPAANG SALAYSAY

| ANNEXD

Ako si Gng. BELEN S. CABUTIHAN, nasa tamang edad, Pilipino, may asawa
at naninirahan sa Barangay Villa Libertad El1 Nido, Palawan, matapos
manumpa ng naayon sa batas ay malayang isinasaad ang mga sumusunod:

1,

2,

Na ako ay nagtuturo bilang guro sa Paaralang Elementarya
ng Barangay Villa Libertad;

Na noong 1996 nagkasundo ang mga miyembro ng Parents
Teachers Association ng Paaralang Elementarya ng Villa
Libertad na bakurin ang school site, ngunit hinaharang po
kami ni Gng. Gabina Pacafia dahil ito daw ay lupa nila, at
matagal na silang naninirahan dito. Kung kaya idinulog ko
ito sa Barangay dahil sa pagkaalam ko na-survey na ito ng
Cadastral sa school (Lot 1115);

Na nakarating ang problemang ito sa CENRO kung kaya
nagkaroon ng imbestigasyon at nangyari ang Compromise
Agreement. Agad kaming nagrequest ng survey order,
ngunit hindi ito nabigyan agad ng kasagutan.

Nagrequest na naman kami ng survey order ngunit ayon sa
kanila ito ay pag-aari ng 10 Knots Phil.. Kung kava
nagkaroon nanaman ng imbestigasyon. Ayon kay Mr. Lim
ng 10 Knots, hindi nila ito pag-aari, kaya nagrequest uli
kami ng survey.

Noong 2004 nais ng PTA na bakurin na ang kabuoang area
ng school, ngunit patuloy paring hinaharangan ni Gng.
Gabina Pacafia, dahil doon siya nakatira sa area Lot 1115
na pag-aari ng school. Kaya idinulog uli namin sa
Barangay. Para matapos na ang problemang
ito,nagkasundo ang dalawang partido na bigyan ng tig
1000 sq. meter ang school at Pacafa at ang remaining area
ay napunta sa barangay. Ito ay sa pamumuno ni Ex-
Kapitan Feguracion Dalabajan.

Sa Pacana Family nagkasundo na bibigyan ng 10 x 10 sina
Edgar, Oscar, at Samuel, (300 sq. m) at ang remaining area
ay kay Gng. Gabina Pacaiia. Ito ay ayon din sa Compromise
Agreement noong 1996, kaya na survey ito.

Aking pinapatunayan na ang nakasaad sa salaysay na ito
ay pawang katotohanan.




Nilagdaaan ko sa ngayong Mayo 28 2019 sa lungsod ng Puerto Princesa

i
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e
Gng. BELEN S. CABUTIHAN
May Salaysay
MAY 2 8 2019
SUBSCRIIBED AND SWORN TO before me this _ at Puerto Princesa
City, Philippines, affiant exhibited to me her 1D No._
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Republic of the Philippines)
Puerto Princesa City ) S.8.

SINUMPAANG SALAYSAY

ANNEX D,

Ako si Gng. FEGURACION C. DALABAJAN, nasa tamang edad, Pilipino,
biyudo at naninirahan sa Barangay Villa Libertad El Nido, Palawan, matapos

manumpa ng naayon sa batas ay malayang isinasaad ang mga sumusunod:

1.

Na ako ay naging Bgy. Kagawad ng Barangay Villa
Libertad, El Nido, Palawan noong July 1997- May 2001,
ang aming Punong Barangay ay si Diosdado B.
Villanueva ng Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan.

Na ako ay naging Punong Barangay mula June 2001-
November 2010 ng Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan;

Na noong ako ay Punong Barangay sa nasabing
Barangay, kami ng Villa Libertad Elementary School
Site at Bgy. Villa Libertad Government Site ay
nagpasukat ng lupa at ito ay napapaloob sa Tax
Declaration No0.13-017-0473 dahil may request sa
CENRO-DENR-Taytay, Palawan, ng authority to survey.
Na nagkaroon ng kasunduan or Agreement sa pagitan

ng heirs of Santiago Pacafia & family sa nasabing lupa,
at Mrs. Belen S. Cabutihan, Teacher-in-charge of Villa
Libertad Elementary School. Ang bawat heir of Santiago
Pacafna ay mayroon kaparti sina, Edgar Pacana, Oscar
Pacafia, Samuel Pacana, Crisencia Pacana asawa ni
Santiago Pacana at Gabina A. Pacana, asawa ni Cesar
Pacana, na sila ay naka pirma sa nasabing agreement
noong May 6, 1996. Pinatunayan ni P/B Jaime P.
Cabutihan at Brgy. Kagawad Pablito Tumbokon.

Na ako po ay nakapirma sa subdivision survey
conformity dahil ako ay Punong Barangay ng Bgy. Villa
Libertad, EI Nido, Palawan nang dumating ang
approved subdivision survey, ng Villa Libertad




Government Site at Villa Libertad Elementary School
Site. Lot No. 1115

6. Aking pinapatunayan na ang nakasaad sa salaysay na
ito ay pawang katotohanan.

Nilagdaaan ko sa ngayong Mayo 28 2019 sa lungsod ng Puerto Princesa

FEGURA@ON c:.‘"’éﬁaAJAN
May Salaysay

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this MAY 2 8 2018 4t puerto
Princesa City, Philippines, affiant exhibited to me her ID No.

Doc No, 330
Page No%@

Series of 2019

E V. ESCALA, UR,
NOTARY PUBLICFOR PALAWAN
AND PUERTD PRINCESA CiTy
UNTIL DECEMBER 31, 20i5
PTR NO. 5111375 03-30-13 PALAWD N
18P NO.I041463 0641415 PALAWAN
RULL AD. 65032




Republic of the Philippines)
Puerto Princesa City )} 8.8.

Ako si PABLITO S. TUMBOKON , nasa tamang edad, Pilipino,

SINUMPAANG SALAYSAY

ANNEX D;

at

naninirahan sa Barangay Villa Libertad El Nido, Palawan, matapos manumpa

ng naayon sa batas ay malayang isinasaad ang mga sumusunod:

I

Na ako ay nagging membro ng Barangay Council ng
Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan noong taong
1994-97 sa pamumuno ng aming Punong Barangay Hon.
Jaime P. Cabutihan.

. Na noong kasalukuyang opisyales kami ng nasabing

Barangay ay nagkaroon ng imbestigasyon sa lupang
kinatatayuan ng barangay Government at School Site- VS.
PACANA FAMILY

. NA: Noong nagkaroon ng imbestigasyon ang CENRO-Taytay,

hindi ako nakipag participate sa kadahilanang isa ako sa
nag occupy ng 20 x 20 sq.m. sa nasabing lupa, na kung saan
ay titulado na sa pangalan ng aking anak na si Maria Liberty
C. Tumbokon;

. Na pagkatapos ng imbestigasyon ng CENRO-Taytay ay

nagkaroon ng kasunduan o document ang school
authorities at Pacana Family;

. NA: Ayon sa kanilang kasunduan o document ay bahagihan

ng lupa na may sukat na 10 x 10 sq.m. sina Samuel Pacana,
Oscar Pacana, Edgar Pacafia at Gabina Uda de Pacana ay
mananatili sa kanyang kinatatayuan ng kanyang bahay na
sukat na 20 x 20 sq.m.

. NA: Bilang isang membro ng konseho, kung kaya’t isa ako

sa witness ng nasabing kasunduan o documneto ng school
authorities at PACANA FAMILY

. Aking pinapatunayan na ang nakasaad sa salaysay na ito ay

pawang katotohanan.




Nilagdaaan ko sa ngayong Mayo 28 2019 sa lungsod ng Puerto Princesa

mn

May Salaysay

9
SUBSCRIIBED AND SWORN TO before me this MAY 28 ng at Puerto
Princesa City, Philippines, affiant exhibited to me her ID No.

Doc No. 272
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L THITDECLARATION OF REAL PHUPERTY ANNEX E

This declaration is for real property taxation purposes only and the valuation indicated herein are based on the schedule of unit market values prepared for the

purpose and duly enacted into an Ordinance by the Sangguniang Panlalawigan under Ordinance No. 1914-2018 dated March 26, 2018. It does not and cannot
by itself alone confer any ownaership or legal titie to the property.

SWORN STATEMENT No.: - NONE -

SWORN STATEMENT Date: R

echie Votcton Pty Abaco . C Gabean 4003 by swzors | SERTIFED COMPUTER GENERATED COPY  DATE: 562019 |

Sec. Fee: 50

QR.No.. 1207183

O.R. Date. 5672019
Place PPCy

T.D.No: 18-13-017-0584 Property Identification No.. 066-13-017-09-168
Owner: BARANGAY GOVERNMENT OF VILLA LIBERTAD e S e T, S e
Address: VILLA LIBERTAD, ELNIDO, PALAWAN ~ ~ 777" """ TelephoneNo..
Administrator/Beneficial User:  C/O BARANGAYCRPTAIN G e RN e TN : )
Address: VILLA LIBERTAD, EL NIDO PALAWAN . Telephone No.: S e
Location of Property: : VlLLA UBERTAD ~ ELNIDO, PALAWMLI“ e
" (Number and Street) (Baranga ymfs!mt) {Mmucgaaﬁty & Province)
OCTITCTICLOA No. Survey No. CSD-04-025364-D, IDEN. ‘*ro LOT 11171, CAD-1037-DF
cer: Lot No. 1115-0 it .
Date: ! . e e Block No. ; e -
Boundaries: North: ALN 162, 163, 164 South: ALN 044, 045 "
East ALN 165, 167 - West:
KIND OF PROPERTY ASSESSED: :
LAND [[] MACHINERY
: Brief Description:
O BUILDING Others:
No. of Storeys: =
ShaE G Unit Assessment g
W o Value A e emae L e e EE e
RESIDENTIAL ; RESIDENTIAL
(R-1) 1,813.00 sq.m 1,100 © Php 1,894, 300.00 (Brgy. Site (Piaza)) 0% Php 199.430.00 EXEMPT
fowi . Tisbssanm Php 1,994,300.00 Gl R Php 199,436ﬁ66 o
Total Assessed Value ONE HUNDRED NINETY-NINE THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED THIRTY PESOS ‘ o
‘(Amount in Words)
Taxable [:] Exempt Effectivity of Assessment/Reassessment: 2049
. T
Approved by: By Authority of the Provincial Assessor:
(BGD) MA. CRESENCIA A. FERNANDEZ, REA  B19i2048
MUNICIPAL ASSESSOR Date
This declaration cancels TD No. 130170473 Previous AV, Php. 130 540 00 Previous PIN: 066 13—017 09—168 o
Previous Owner: BARANGAY GOVERNMENT OF VILLA LlBERTAD Prev. Admm CIO BARANGAY PrevucusArea 181 3 sq.m.
CAPTAIN . Bl Cam v E
s LI e s e e
i REVlSED PURSUANT TO SECT!ON 2190F R A 7180 AND SECTION 24 OF PROV]NCIAL ORDINANCE NO. 1914—2018 SERIES OF 2018
Note:
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LAND TAX VERIFICATION SLIP

Current Tax Dec. No. 2-/1-41)

Barangay. \If‘““ ¢C‘ W

Municipality Ef/w&o ?a,f

ANNEX F

Déclared Owner

s
Number

Taxable
Year

Assessed | Realty
Value

Tax
Due

Penalty

O.R.

Date

1945

1946

1947

1948

1949

1950

1951

1952

1953

1954

1955

1956

1957

1958

1959

1960

1961

1962

1963

1964

1965

1966

1967

1968

1569

1970

1971

1972

1973

1974

1975

1976

1977

1978

2979

o1l

-1980

E
>
=
9

1981

1982

1983

1984

peN

1985

2l , 24¢ N




}
| |
(i)eclared Owner T.D. Taxable | Assessed | Realty Tax Penalty O.R. Date §
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Republic of the Philippines
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
, Region IV-MIMAROPA
COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
Taytay, Palawan

May 18, 2011

MRS MYRNA H. GRIPON
Municipal Planning and Development Coordinator
El Nido, Palawan

Sir

We bring you the greetings of blissful days.

This pertains to the documentation to the issuance of special patent over the land occupied by
DepEd-Villa Libertad Elementary School surveyed as Lot 1116, Cad 1037-D with an area of
four thousand, seven hundred sixty-five (4,765) square meters and Lot No. 1115-A, Csd-04-
025364-D with an area of seven hundred thirty-seven (737) square meters.

With due respect, w request your precious clearance and endorsement on the issuance of special
patent to the land in favor of Department of Education-Villa Libertad Elementary School.

Thank you for the usual accommodation.

Very truly yours,

)
MARIANO P. LHANG, JR.

Focal person on Special Patents documentation

Attached: Draft Clearance

Attached: Draft Clearance

/\amda the essence of Life-...... Tracking 430051811
<_h__/




+ Republic of the Philippines
§ a Department of Environment and Natural Resources

Region IV-MIMAROPA
1 COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
e Taytay, Palawan
MAY 18, 2011

HON RUBEN V. ARZAGA
Barangay Captain
Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

Madam, ~AE vy TR =
We bring you the greetings of blissful days.
This pertains to the documentation to the issuance of spécial patent over the land occupied by
DepEd-Villa Libertad Elementary School surveyed as Lot ‘1116, Cad 1037-D with an area of
four thousand, seven hundred sixty-five (4,765) square meters and Lot No. 1115-A, Csd-04-
025364-D with an area of seven hundred thirty-seven (737) square meters.

With due respect, w request your precious clearance and endorsement on the issuance of special
patent to the land in favor of Department of Education-Villa Libertad Elementary School.

Thank you for the usual accommodation.

Very truly yours,

MARIANO'P. LILANG, JR.
Chief Land agement Services
Focal person on Special Patents documentation

Attached: Draft Clearance

/\ andy; the essence of life...... Tracking 429051811
(\J




Republic of the Philippines
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Region IV-MIMAROPA
COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
Taytay, Palawan

May 18, 2011
The District Engineer

Palawan 1’st Engineering District
Barangay 3, Roxas, Palawan

Sir,

We bring you the greetings of blissful days.

This pertains to the documentation to the issuance of spécial patent over the land occupied by
DepEd-Villa Libertad Elementary School surveyed as Lot ‘1116, Cad 1037-D with an area of
four thousand, seven hundred sixty-five (4,765) square meters and Lot No. 1115-A, Csd-04-
025364-D with an area of seven hundred thirty-seven (737) square meters.

With due respect, w request your precious clearance and endorsement on the issuance of special
patent to the land in favor of Department of Education-Villa Libertad Elementary School.

Thank you for the usual accommodation.

Very truly yours,

Chief Land Management_Services
Focal person on Special Patents documentation

Attached: Draft Clearance

/unds; the essence of life...... Tracking 428051811




< a Republic of the Philippines
Department of Environment and Natural Resources

e Region IV-MIMAROPA
-—-‘F COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
Taytay, Palawan

May 18, 2011

DR.CESAR G. RIVERA, M.D.
Municipal Health Officer
El Nido, Palawan .

Dear Doctor,

We bring you the greetings of blissful days.

This pertains to the documentation to the issuance of special patent over the land occupied by
DepEd-Villa Libertad Elementary School surveyed as Lot 1116, Cad 1037-D with an area of
four thousand, seven hundred sixty-five (4,765) square meters and Lot No. 1115-A, Csd-04-
025364-D with an area of seven hundred thirty-seven (737) square meters.

With due respect, w request your precious clearance and endorsement on the issuance of special

patent to the land in favor of Department of Education-Villa Libertad Elementary School.

Thank you for the usual accommodation.

Very truly yours,

/\ ands; the essence of Life...... Tracking 427051811




s B EUT AID A~ AL RESOURCE
/ &; . DEPARTH T OF ENVIRONMENT AHD HA™ Al RESOURCES

PR i REGION IV - MIMAROP/!
el B a Mo D X

il DENE by the Bay, 1515 Koxas Boulevard, Ernuts, Mamis
SURJECT :

Reguest for  the issuance of Special Pateni covering
Lot No. 1116, 1115-D Cad. 18371, Csd 04 8253664 D

TO: The CENE Cificer o
¥l Nido, Palawan SEP 17 2012

SIRMADAM :

In order that fusther appropriste action on the above-uited Request/PetitionResolution can be faken
leading to the issusnce of a Presidential Proclamstion over a parcel of land identified as (Lot/s snd Survey Nos)

tn be reserved { purpose of Special Patent) as site for Villa Libheriad Fleuentary School, as sitmated in
Brgy. Villa Libertad, Municipabity El Nido, Province of Palawan.

Tn this regard, please comply with the mandatesirequirements prescribed under the following memoranda,
to wat

1 DENE Memorandmm Cirenlar No. 9702, dated 08 Jamuary 1997, requires the
commenisirecommendation of the following concerned government agencies (NOTE: Please comply only on item

with marked “ X7}
X 11 Drovinos Heslth Officer duly concuved or recommended by the Regional Health
Diirector and Secretery of Health;
X i3  Disirict Engineer of DFWH, duly concurred or recommended by the Regional
Divector and Secretary of DFWH

i3 District Citv/Superintendent of the Schoel in ease of School Site Reservation duly
concusred or recommended by the Secvetary of Depariment of Education |
14  Philippine Port Authority in case of the land abuts on the sea, fske or  mavigable niver
duly concwrred or recommendad by the Secretery of DOTC.
X 2 Approved Plas of the land to be reserved verified anid cerlifiad comect techmical descaiphion.
21 Certification ac to whether the land is within the Aliensble and Dispossbie (A&D) Lands.
3 Cesiified photographs (or visusl documentation) showing panorapic view of the area subject of the
proposed Special Patent;

4. Beport pursuant fo Presidential Proclamation Aemorandum Circolar No. 24 dated 07 dugust 2002
following the tenets of Completed 5taff Work (CSW) Diraft memorendum chould incorporste the (1)
Tustification (2 Legal Basiz (3) Agencies Invelved (4.} Coordinstion with concerned agencies and their
comments and (3.) Potentisl Problem, if any.

X 5. Namative Report of Investigation with recommendation officiaily indorsed fo the Rezional Execufive
Thrector. (ATTN: RTD for Lands)

THEREFORE, it iz reguested that you coordinate with the proponent of the proposed
Proclamation/Special Patent so thet the “Completed 5taff Work {CSW)” 2 designed standard operating procedurs
ini the processing of all requesiz for proclamshion can be asccomprshed.

Please he guided accordingly.

Very truly youss

-
—
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"AR . DOMINGUEEL
zional Technical Director
s, DENR IV-B, MIMARCOF.

The FENER Officer Lﬂs
Sta honica, Pro., Brincessa City /YN td //.ll”/"”L /
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ANNEX |

DEED OF CONVEYANCE AND WAIVER OF RIGHTS
OVER A PARCEL OF LAND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

This Deed of Conveyance and Waiver of Rights Over a Parcel of Land made

and executed in El Nido, Palawan, Philippines by:

EDGAR O. PACANA, of legal age, Filipino, married to LINA
PACANA. with residence and postal address at Brgy. Masagana, El

Nido, Palawan, hereinafter referred to as the TRANSFEROR-
WAIVOR:

- and -

TITA NOVELO-RAMIREZ, of legal age, Filipino, widow, with

residence and postal address at Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan,
hereinafter referred to as the TRANSFEREE-WAIVEE;

WITNESSETH:

That the TRANSFEROR-WAIVOR is the claimant and possessor of the
following parcel of land:

A parcel of land situated in Brgy. Villa Libertad. EI Nido,
Palawan, designated as Lot No. 1115-F, containing an area of ONE
HUNDRED THIRTY-THREE (133) SQUARE METERS. A
photocopy of the Certification of the Office of the Punong Bamngay
dated October 16, 2007 to the effect that the transferor-waivor is the
actual occupant is hereto attached as Annex A to form an integral part
hereot

That the TRANSFEROR-WAIVOR agreed to relinquish his rights over the
abonve-mentioned parcel of land for a consideration, which the TRANSFEREE-
WAIVEE agreed.

NOW THEREFORE. for and in consideration of amount of THIRTY-NINE
THOUSAND (P39,900.00) PESOS, Philippine Currency. in hand paid by l?k‘.
TRANSFEREL-WAIVEL, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged to the entire
satisfaction of the herein transferor-waivor EDGAR 0. PACANA who by these
presents CEDES, WAIVES, TRANSFERS and CONVEYS, in a manner absolute
and irrevocable. all his rights. claims and interests over the above-mentioned parcels

of land. together with all the improvements found and existing therein, in favor of the

transferee-waivee TITA NOVELO-RAMIREZ. her heirs, successors-in-interests,
and assigns.

That the TRANSFEROR-WAIVOR hereby covenants and agrees with the
TRANSFEREE-WAIVEE that he has a perfect right to waive and dispose all his
rights over the above-described portion of a parcel of land; that the same is free from
all liens and encumbrances. and that he will forever defend the rights of the
TRANSFEREE-WAIVEE by virtue hereof, against any and all lawful claj 2
person whomsoever; ms y

[N WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands thig {5
November, 2010 at El Nido. Palawan. Philippines. 3 12% day of
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EDEAR O. PACANA Vi
Jransferor-Waivor Transferee-Waivee

With my marital consent:

L P
LINA PACANA
Wife of the Transferor-Waivor

Signed In The Presence Of:

1. ARYEL L. ABARIL 2. MAGELYN B. ULTRA

Brgy. Barotuan, Brgy. Maligaya
El Nido, Palawan El Nido, Palawan
ACKNOWLEDGMENT

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
PROVINCE OF PALAWAN ISS
CITY OF PUERTO PRINCESA )

BEFORE ME, Notary Public for and in the Province of Palawan, Philippines,
this 12" day of November. 2010 personally appeared exhibiting their respective
Community lax Certificates, as follows:

Name C1C NO. DATE ISSUED  PLACE ISSUED

FDGAR O PACANA
LINA PACANA

TITA N RAMIREZ 12811473 Jan 6, 2010 El Nido, Palawan

known 1o me to be the same persons who executed and signed the foregoing Deed of
Comveyance and Waiver of Rights Over a Parcel of [Land consisting of two (2) pages
mcluding this page. signed by the parties and the instrumental witnesses on each and
every page thereot. and the parties acknowledged to me

that the same are their free
and voluntury act

Atty. OLEGARIO S, © AYETANO JR.
: Notary Public
Until December 3 1, 2011
PIR No. 5281653 04/01.2019, PALAWAN

P No. 777307, 29/1 3000 ;
PGl PALAWAN

_ ks JLL NO. 41250
MCLE Complisnse No, I11.- 0015735, May 25. 2010
Doc. No.
Page Mo .
ook No i\
Series of 2010
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Republic of the Philippines

Department of Environment and Natural Resources

MIMAROPA Region

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

ATTENDANCE

Edgat Pacaiia, Samuel Pacaiia , and Oscar Pacaiia
Versus
Villa Libertad Elementaray School ¢ BLgV a villa Libertn

January 31, 2020 (Inspection)

No. NAME SEX (M/F) ADDRESS CONTACT NUMBER SIGNATURE
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Region IV - MIHAROPA
COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

January 15, 2020

EDGAR O. PACANA

SAMUEL O. PACANA and

OSCAR O. PACANA

Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

Versus

VILLA LIBERTAD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL SeEnl & v . g

Rep. by Head Teacher Belen S. Cabutihan o P ot

Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan -3 1@» o
or[[ o120

e

and

BLGU OF VILLA LIBERTAD

Rep. by Hon. Johny Fabregas

Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan
Dear Sir/ Ma’am,

Environmental greetings!

This is in relation to the second formal hearing on your conflict conducted dated
September 17, 2019 that did not result to amicable settlement. As per DAO No. 2016-31
(Procedure in the Investigation and Resolution on Land Claims and Conflicts Cases), cases
that did not reach settlement during the second hearing will be subjected to a mandatory
ocular inspection in the subject area.

Hence, representative from this office will be conducting an ocular inspection on
January 31, 2020 at 10:30 o’clock in the morning.

Your presence is highly needed then. Thank you.

Very truly yours,

For and inhe absence of the CENRO

MARIANQ P G, JR.
Development Management Officer IV
In Charge, ffice of the CENRO

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan
emailadd: cearotatavpald {
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Re of the Philippines '
t of Environment and Natural Resou
Region IV - MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

January 15, 2020

EDGAR O. PACANA

SAMUEL O. PACANA and
OSCAR 0. PACANA

Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

Versus
VILLA LIBERTAD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

Rep. by Head Teacher Belen S. Cabutihan
Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

and

BLGU OF VILLA LIBERTAD

Rep. by Hon, Johny Fabregas

Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan
Dear Sir/ Ma’am,

Environmental greetings!

This is in relation to the second formal hearing on your conflict conducted dated
September 17, 2019 that did not result to amicable settlement. As per DAO No. 2016-31
(Procedure in the Investigation and Resolution on Land Claims and Conflicts Cases), cases
that did not reach settlement during the second hearing will be subjected to a mandatory
ocular inspection in the subject area.

Hence, representative from this office will be conducting an ocular inspection on
January 31, 2020 at 10:30 o’clock in the morning.

Your presence is highly needed then. Thank you.

Very truly vours,

I]/\ A ? VM nih For and in the absence of the CENRO
\p‘a"N n <L 7
Y LHO MARIA TLANG, JR.
M 9 L/ 12 Development Mz nt Officer IV

|

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312
emailadd: cenrolaytaypal@yahioo comm.ph
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. \ ®
Republic of the Philippines

' Department of Environment and Natural Resources

Region 1V ~ MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESQURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

October 10, 2019

MR. EDGAR PACANA

MR. SAMUEL PACANA

MR. OSCAR PACANA

Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan
Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

- VERSUS -

| HON. JHONY FABREGAS
Punong Barangay
Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

MS. BELEN S. CABUTIHAN
Head Teacher
‘ Villa Libertad Elementary School
{ Barangay Vila Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

Sir/ Ma’am,
Greetings!

This pertains to scheduled ocular inspection tomorrow, October 11, 2019 at 2:00 o’clock
in the afternoon on the area subject of claims and conflicts between the parties.

Please be informed that Atty. Robert Peneyra, counsel of Pacafa, sent a letter to this
Office thru e-mail today, October 10, 2019, requesting for cancellation and resetting of the said
inspection due to an important matter to be attended in the City of Manila, hence, he will be
available on the said date. The request is considerable and hereby granted.

Please be informed further that Land Management Officer Il David Dalino, the hearing
officer in this case, is now officially transferred to the Provincial Environment and Natural
Resources Office (PENRO) in Puerto Princesa City; hence, the schedule of ocular inspection will

be set upon designation of succeeding Hearing Officer and you will be notified.

Please bear with us on this. Thank you.

ALAN ALLE
Engifeer V/ OIC, CENRO

N

N

R
“

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan S312
email ady consotainvgal § it

E——— ; .




Request/motion for cancellation and resetting of ocutar inspection scheduled on October 11

Yahoo/inbox

Robert Peneyra <bobpend? @icloud . com>

To:cenrotaytaypal@yahoo.com.ph s R 55
. 4 g
00 at 847 am . . ¥ .
' . :
To the Honorable Hearing Officer : - %ﬂ_ e
CENRO Taytay Palawan ' : "
y L _w..ta‘lq L ’QT‘
SIR:

myimpmetmmmmmmgdmmmmanhme, El
Nido, scheduled on October 11.

Due to a very important matter to be attended by this representation in the City of Mania, | would not
available on said date.

Thus, | am respectfully praying for its cancellation and resetting.
This request for resetting is not in anyway intended to delay the proceedings in this case.

| am hoping for your kind understanding. Thank very much.
Very truly yours,

Atty. ROBERT Y. PENEYRA




Republic of the Philippines
Department of Environment and Natural Resources

Region IV- MIMAROPA
COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE

5312 Taytay, Palawan

September 19, 2019

Subject: OCULAR INSPECTION ON LOT PLAN CSD-04-025364-D
(LOT 1115-A & LOT 1115-B, CAD 1037-D) INVOLVED ON
THE CASE AMONG EDGAR PACANA, ET.AL. ~VS-BARANGAY
LOCAL GOVT. UNIT AND VILLA LIBERTAD ELEMENTARY
SCHOOL

MR, EDGAR PACANA = /1% ila
Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

HON. JOHNY FABR -

Punong Barangay '4/ Ye / i
Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palavan

MRS. BELEN CABUTIHA qlw llq
Head Teacher

Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

Please be informed that the ocular inspection on September 27, 2019 is reset to
October 11 2019 at 2:00 o’ clock in the afternoon. The resetting is due to mandatory
attendance of Land Management Officer III David F. Dalino in the training on
September 25-28, 2019; the notice thereof having just received yesterday.

Please be guided. Thank you.

Very truly yours,
For and in the absence of the CENRO

g 4

TRA
MARIANG ¥. LILANG, JR.
DMO 1V/In charge, Office of the CENRO

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312

T




Republic of the Philippines
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Region IV- MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

September 19, 2019

Subject: OCULAR INSPECTION ON LOT PLAN CSD-04-025364-D
(LOT 1115-A & LOT 1115-B, CAD 1037-D) INVOLVED ON
THE CASE AMONG EDGAR PACANA, ET.AL. -VS-BARANGAY
LOCAL GOVT. UNIT AND VILLA LIBERTAD ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL
MR. EDGAR PACANA
Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan DENR CENRO
TAYTAY, PALAWAN
HON. JOHNY FABRIGAS RELEASE D
Punong Barangay bl s
Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan ﬁA?&;ﬁ s T 2T

MRS. BELEN CABUTIHAN
Head Teacher
Villa Libertad, E! Nido, Palawan

Please be informed that the ocular inspection on September 27, 2019 is reset to
October 14, 2019 at 2:00 o’ clock in the afternoon. The resetting is due to mandatory
attendance of Land Management Officer III David F. Dalino in the training on
September 25-28, 2019; the notice thereof having just received yesterday.

Please be guided. Thank you.

Very truly yours,
For and, in the absence of the CENRO

sty

| e

LN\
MARIA‘\ « LILANG, JR.
DMO IV/Intharge, Office of the CENRO

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312

(3

email ad: cenrptaviaypal@vahoo. o
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Repu f the Philippines
Demt of Environment and Natural Resources

Region IV —~ MIMAROPA
COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

September 17, 2019

EDGAR 0. PACANA

SAMUEL 0. PACANA and DENR ConED

OSCAR 0. PACANA +RENE CENBO

Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan ¥, L \ Al
RELEASED

BLGU OF VILLA LIBERTAD BY: %‘@

DATE: (4-11-0%(9 CN A%

Rep. by Hon. Johny Fabregas
Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

and
VILLA LIBERTAD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
Rep. by Head Teacher Belen S. Cabutihan
Brgy. Villa Libertad. El Nido. Palawan
Dear Sir/ Ma’am,

Environmental greetings!

This 1s in relation to the 2" formal hearing on your conflict conducted today that did
not result to amicable setilement. As per DAO No. 2016-31 (Procedure in the Investigation
and Resolution on Land Claims and Conflicts Cases), cases that did not reach settlement

during the second hearing will be subjected to a mandatory ocular inspection in the subject
area.

Hence, please be reminded of the schedule of ocular inspection as agreed on
September 27. 2019 at 2:00 o’clock in the afternoon.

Your presence is highly needed then. Thank you.

Verv truly vours,

For and in the absence of the CENRO

by the National Hnghway Pobiamon Taytay Palawan 58
emailadd: ««




Republic of the Philippines :
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
“ Region IV - MIMAROPA

. COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

fotis 7
bl

ATTENDANCE
CENRO Taytay
Edgar Pacaifia, Samuel Pacaiia, & Oscar Pacaia
VS.
BLGU of Villa Libertad and Villa Libertad Elementary School
September 17, 2019- 2:00 PM (2nd Formal Hearing)

NO. NAME CONTACT NUMBER Sl(l‘,NATURE

N g1 202284 i e

2 I PELEN Q- CABUTIHAN ‘ 092997655306 /@W”‘

? | JONAm P Cft&\?’f\\mk 094894 32 9uo ‘(D,/

TR o T

[ < frarga 0 094¢ 4364020

© | M#ryem C. Ponssy 0948109026 & ol

T | MLt wt D PARANGUE TV Lising

B | ADETA Y- AMeACA M;{nqu&? /' (XA~

o | 2 b 0950 (| 2 Ged - b

e =

8| Guetds, P Dgoner 4YIRGrts | [ hegan

- t;&w wed D yF’? % )JW/T o
pAdnped O Aclhig 2 et 2o

B | E£0¢Ar D Faomdq /M =

14 |MEROBNARID D - PACHTA oqz9atcgogo | s

() [ VIpwortE Ve e cnnp g | CUZ3m5m| Vo

16 R_{)_M({ 5.;,, bt (an \\r 072(’0@]4?}3 ::? o

7t & Pane 0 9300309%%) Aecor ]
18 | Low ., Daave + U/Z//
19 | REWIe vAIPes Rl e —
20 ﬂ’%, JEHENIER, 04(d 507 b1 L o Y
21 8
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the Philippines *
t of Environment and Matural Resourcas
Regmn IV — MIMAROPA
COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE

5312 Taytay, Palawan
CDENR & ﬁ i§ 5240
A YAN

August 27, 2019 RE L%&SE”

EDGAR O. PACANA

SAMUEL 0. PACANA and ‘W't 2900 CN_J7 X
OSCAR 0. PACANA
Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido. Palawan
= P_r_q!is@_rg ' For cancellation of Plan CSD-04-
025364-D (Lot 1115-A & Lot
-Versus- Re: 1115-B. Cad 1037-D) in Brgy.

Villa Libertad, El Nido. Palawan
THE CLAIM OF BARANGAY GOVERNMENT

OF VILLA LIBERTAD rep. by PUNONG BARANGAY
JOHNY FABREGAS and VILLA LIBERTAD ,
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL rep. by HEAD TEACHER Mo "““"1 b / (j {
BELEN S. CABUTTHAN
Brgy. Villa Labertad, El Nido, Palawan

Respondents )L Q
Lecurnes
| T | lw 19

INVITATION

This is in continuation of the proceedings conducted on July 25, 2019 relative 1o the above-
captioned case subject for formal investigation and hearing of this Office in compliance to the
ORDER OF INVESTIGATION issued by the Provincial Environment and Natural
Resources Office (PENRO) in Sta. Monica, Puerto Princesa City dated February 28. 2019
and received by this Office dated March 11, 2019.

In view thereof, you are invited to appear in this Office before Land Management Officer 111/
Chief, RPS David F. Dalino for the 2" hearing on September 17, 2019 at 2:00 o’clock in
the afternoon to shed light on the matter. Please bring with vou any additional proof of
ownership documents conceming the land subject of the case.

Fail not to come.

Very truly yours.

For apd in the absence of the CENRQO

JR.
Develppmient M'maaemem Officer IV
in Charge| Office of the CENRO

by the National H|ghway Pobiacson Taytay Palawan 5312
emaitadd:




Repub:=— f the Philippines
Department of Environment and Natural Resourt@

Region IV — MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

August 28, 2019

BLGU OF VILLA LIBERTAD
Rep. by Hon. Johny Fabregas
Bregv. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

VILLA LIBERTAD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL Tg‘ﬁrﬁé)’ ;J;%Lﬁ@ggw

Rep. by Head Teacher Belen S. Cabutihan

Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan R EL % SED

m TE: E: BR-3075 CN 7 2

SR A

Dear Sir/ Ma’am,

Environmental greetings!

This is to furnish vou the copy of Reply with motion to declare protestees Brgy.
Government of Ville Libertad and Villa Libertad Elementary School as in default
submitted by the protestants/ complainants dated July 25, 2019.

You may submit vour comment. Thank vou.

Very truly vours,

For and in the absence of the CENRO

MARIAN

L

by the National Hkghway, Pobtacaon Taytay Paiawan 5312
emailadd: ¢ 3




Re of the Philippines
Deﬁmwt of Environment and Natural Resourcis
Region IV — MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

DENR CRdiO

August 27, 2019 ;;E’z‘" PALAWAN

EDGAR O. PACANA BY: 'g S E o
SAMUEL 0. PACANA and :

OSCAR 0. PACANA PATE: 08 21 9011 CN D2

Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido. Palaw:

e I‘e’rore—._sggg! T For cancellation of Plan CSD-04-

025364-D (Lot 1115-A & Lot

-Versus- Re: 1115-B, Cad 1037-D) in Brgy.

Villa Libertad. El Nido, Palawan
THE CLAIM OF BARANGAY GOVERNMENT

OF VILLA LIBERTAD rep. by PUNONG BARANGAY
JOHNY FABREGAS and VILLA LIBERTAD
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL rep. by HEAD TEACHER
BELEN S. CABUTIHAN
Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

Respondents

INVITATION

This is in continuation of the proceedings conducted on July 25, 2019 relative to the above-

captioned case subject for formal investigation and hearing of this Office in compliance 10 the

ORDER OF INVESTIGATION issued by the Provincial Environment and Natural

Resources Office (PENRO) in Sta. Monica, Puerto Princesa City dated February 28, 2019 ~
and received by this Office dated March 11, 2019

In view thereof, you are invited to appear in this Office before Land Management Officer 111/
Chief. RPS David F. Dalino for the 2" hearing on September 17, 2019 at 2:00 o’clock in ;
the afternoon to shed light on the matter. Please bring with vou any additional proof of o
ownership documents concerning the land subject of the case.

Fail not to come.

Very truly vours,

For and in the absence of the CENRO -




Repwii  of the Philippines R '4‘
Depdititient of Environment and Natural Resources et "9 a)p\}
Region IV — MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

R

AR AT A
TAYTAY, PALAWAN

R%L%%E@

August 27, 2019

EDGAR O. PACANA BY:
SAMUEL O. PACANA and 15 BT 09 CN_ 204
OSCAR 0. PACANA DATE - =L 2
Brgy. Villa Libertad. El Nido, Palawan :
Protestant For cancellation of Plan CSD-04-
025364-D (Lot 1115-A & Lot
-Versus- Re: 1115-B, Cad 1037-D) in Brgy.

Villa Libertad. El Nido, Palawan
THE CLAIM OF BARANGAY GOVERMNMENT

OF VILLA LIBERTAD rep. by PUNONG BARANGAY
JOHNY FABREGAS and VILLA LIBERTAD
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL rep. by HEAD TEACHER
BELEN S. CABUTIHAN

Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

Respondents

INVITATION

This 1s in continuation of the proceedings conducted on July 25, 2019 relative to the above-
captioned case subject for formal investigation and hearing of this Office in compliance to the
ORDER OF INVESTIGATION issued by the Provincial Environment and Natural
Resources Office (PENRO) in Sta. Monica, Puerto Princesa City dated February 28, 2019
and received by this Office dated March 11, 2019.

In view thereof, vou are invited to appear in this Office before Land Management Officer 111/
Chief, RPS David F. Dalino for the 2™ hearing on September 17, 2019 at 2:00 o’clock in
the aftemoon to shed light on the matter. Please bring with you any additional proof of
ownership documents conceming the land subject of the case.

Fail not to come.

Very truly vours,

For and in the absence of the CENRQO

by the National Highway,

oblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312
emailadd: cenrotaviavosid Yanoo. comn.oh

SRR
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T

Republic of the Philippines

5312 Taytay, Palawan

' , Department of Environment and Natural Resources
womwee Region IV - MIMAROPA
S COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE

ATTENDANCE
CENRO Taytay

Edgar Pacafia, Samuel Pacafia, & Oscar Pacaiia

V8.

BLGU and Elementary Schoel of Villa Libertad
Julv 25, 2019- 2:00 PM (1st FORMAL HEARING)

+

NO. NAME CONTACT NUMBER SIGNATURE
Y VN Daguer NI 7IR2y091 (A an
2 |Mercepsrio 0. PAchgla TI% 120 A4 1€ e
> loseAar o - [PAChRL ﬂ
4 | EBDGAR (- PACA A ZMW
5 Sam ihf}‘r -0 PAC/-;;{:,\, P ” 5
6 M&.r’ Boacata @;@5\\”
T lbeens v Aestan [ A”X“-’S("
s oty n_ P oqtoumasd |- O
? | Mmatie W) @m%g« 47 (X GTR Y FALL / Y. 24 /}
10 /MAM . %ﬁﬂm I F et //ir‘/\‘&z&\,_
U lpewt S CABUTIHAN OIS BD K ";M\
2 | (A By X R | O 30760 K Ve
13 IQWUZ(,) §/},qj>MW :) ™ (’ﬁ.—_—__»::;a
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
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Re of the Philippines

Department of Environment and Natural Resources

Region IV — MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

July 9, 2019 b LAt
~3ED
; EDG“‘R 0. PACAﬁé t 200 ..; s, ol Gtuat 350k
" SAMUEL O. PACANA and BY: 3,5 .
OSCAR 0. PACANA DATE 7]-1F204 €N 99|
Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan . “ L
HoE. YA lbfi‘r(?testam s For cancellation of Plan CSD-04-
025364-D (Lot 1115-A & Lot
-Versus- Re: 1115-B, Cad 1037-D) in Brgy.

Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan
THE CLAIM OF BARANGAY GOVERNMENT

- OF VILLA LIBERTAD rep. by PUNONG BARANGAY
JOHNY FABREGAS and VILLA LIBERTAD
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL rep. by HEAD TEACHER
BELEN S. CABUTIHAN
Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

Respondents

INVITATION

The above-captioned case is now for formal investigation and hearing of this Office in
compliance to the ORDER OF INVESTIGATION issued by the Provincial Environment
and Natural Resources Office (PENRO) in Sta. Monica, Puerto Princesa City dated February
28, 2019 and received by this Office dated March 11, 2019

In view thereof, you are invited to appear in this Office before Land Management Officer 111/
Chief, RPS David F. Dalino on July 25, 2019 at 2:00 o’clock in the afternoon to shed light on
the matter. Please bring with you any additional proof of ownership documents concerning
the land subject of the case.

Fail not to come.

Very truly yours,

ENGR. AL . VALLE

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312
emalladd: cenrotavtavsaiBvah S CO0 PO
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Department of Enviranment and Natural Resources

Region IV - MIMAROPA
5312 Taytay, Palawan
e R R S
. Jaly 9, 2019
EDGAR O. PACANA .
SAMUEL O. PACANA and 8Y: ?J :
« OSCAR O.PACANA DATE: 01-l-201 G ?‘%@I
Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan
i @f’w For cancellation of Plan CSD-04-
025364-D (Lot 1115-A & Lot
~VEersiis- Re: 1115-B, Cad 1037-D) in Brgy.
Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

THE CLAIM OF BARANGAY GOVERNMENT
o _joan|  OF VILLA LIBERTAD rep. by PUNONG BARANGAY
JOHNY FABREGAS and VILLA LIBERTAD
: ELEMENTARY SCHOOL rep. by HEAD TEACHER
gv BELEN S. CABUTIHAN
Brgy. Villa Libertad, EI Nido, Palawan
Re. nis

INVITATION

The above-captioned case is now for formal investigation and hearing of this Office in
compliance to the ORDER OF INVESTIGATION issued by the Provincial Environment
and Natural Resources Office (PENRO) in Sta. Monica, Puerto Princesa City dated February
28, 2019 and received by this Office dated March 11, 2019

In view thereof, you are invited to appear in this Office before Land Management Officer 111/
Chief, RPS David F. Dalino on July 25, 2019 at 2:00 o’clock in the afternoon to shed light on

v

the matter. Please bring with you any additional proof of ownership documents concerning

the land subject of the case.

Fail not to come.

Very truly yours, \3\3}”) -9
ENGR. A VALLE

OIC, CENR

e 4

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312




Rm the Philippines .
Depa t of Environment and Natural Resources

Region IV — MIMAROPA
COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENY AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

July 9,2019

EDGAR O. PACARA g

SAMUEL O. PACANA and BY:___ 7™

OSCAR 0. PACANA DATE: 91 308_CH. 1))

Brey. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Pal :

W e For cancellation of Plan CSD-04-

025364-D (Lot 1115-A & Lot

~VEersus- Re: 1115-B, Cad 1037-D) in Brgy.

Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

THE CLAIM OF BARANGAY GOVERNMENT N
OF VILLA LIBERTAD rep. by PUNONG BARANGAY /
JOHNY FABREGAS and VILLA LIBERTAD ?’ J ¢ Waﬁ o 1-1.14
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL rep. by HEAD TEACHER |
BELEN 8. CABUTIHAN
Brgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan

Respondents

INVITATION

The above-captioned case is now for formal investigation and hearing of this Office in
compliance to the ORDER OF INVESTIGATION issued by the Provincial Environment
and Natural Resources Office (PENRO) in Sta. Monica, Puerto Princesa City dated February
28,2019 and received by this Office dated March 11, 2019

In view thereof, you are invited to appear in this Office before Land Management Officer 111/
Chief, RPS David F. Dalino on July 25, 2019 at 2:00 o’clock in the afternoon to shed light on
the matter. Please bring with you any additional proof of ownership documents concerning
the land subject of the case.

Fail not to come.

Very truly yours,

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312

@Mﬂb DUM: M%“% By (.
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Republic of the Philippines

Department of Environment and Natural Resources

Region IV- MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

EENR- G N
TAYTAY, PALAWAN

RELEASED

EDGAR O. PACANA, SAMUEL O. BY: N =/

PACANA and OSCAROF;rz?eCStA;‘: DATE 721 AICN_ O3
Land Case No. 0510

-versus-

FOR CANCELLATION OF PLAN
CSD-04-025364-D (Lot 1115-A &

THE CLAIM OF BARANGAY GOVERNMENT OF Lot 1115-B, CAD 1037-D)

VILLA LIBERTAD rep. by PUNONG BARANGAY VILLA LIBERTAD, EL NIDO

JHONY FABREGAS and VILLA LIBERTAD PALAWAN

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL rep. by HEAD TEACHER
BELEN S. CABUTIHAN

Protestee
b e e X
March 12, 2019
Hon. Jhony Fabregas - & - $a~im
Punong Barangay : ~

Ms. Belen S. Cabutihan - mb@l*/v(—n@% g
Head Teacher

Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido

Palawan

Dear Sir/madam,
Greetings!

Attached is a copy of the Protest consisting eight (8) pages including the annexes of Edgar O.
Pacafia, Samuel O. Pacafia and Oscar O. Pacafa against you concerning Plan Csd-040025364-D
(Lot Nos. 1115-A and 1115-B all of Cad 1037-D) in Bgy. Tiniguiban, El Nido, Palawan. This case
has already attained an Order of Investigation issued by the Provincial Environment and Natural
Resources Officer on February 28, 2019 (copy attached).

Pursuant to Section 7 and 8 of Department (DENR) Administrative Order 2016-31, you are
hereby advised to file your Verified Answer to the Protest within fifteen (15) days from your
receipt hereof, containing the material facts supported by documentary evidences, including an
enumeration of Maximum of three (3) witnesses with the respective addresses. The Answer

must be submitted to this Office in three (3) copies with the proof of service of a copy to the
Protestant.

Failure to do so shall mean’ a waiver in your part and the case shall be submitted for resolution.

\
S

Very truly yours,

. - ¥ JRD
DMO [IV/In charge of Office

Copy ished:
The P, nt (this letter only)
The P

RO-Palawan




Republic of the Philippines

Region IV- MIMAROPA

5312 Taytay, Palawan

Department of Environment and Natural Resources

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE

o~

EDGAR Q. PACANA, SAMUEL O.
PACANA and OSCAR O. PACANA
Protestant

-Versus-

THE CLAIM OF BARANGAY GOVERNMENT OF
VILLA LIBERTAD rep. by PUNONG BARANGAY
JHONY FABREGAS and VILLA LIBERTAD
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL rep. by HEAD TEACHER
BELEN S. CABUTIHAN

Protestee

March 12, 2019

Hon. Jhony Fabregas - v Qe - $2-1a0
Punong Barangay >~
Ms. Belen S. Cabutihan
Head Teacher

Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido
Palawan

~ 4

W’”\b@'h»t 14

Dear Sirfmadam,

Greetings!

TAYTAY, PALAWAN
RELEASED

BY: e
DATE: (-]l 94

Land Case No. 0510

FOR CANCELLATION OF PLAN
CSD-04-025364-D (Lot 1115-A &
Lot 1115-B, CAD 1037-D)

VILLA LIBERTAD, EL NIDO
PALAWAN

Attached is a copy of the Protest consisting eight (8) pages including the annexes of Edgar O.
Pacana, Samuel O. Pacafia and Oscar O. Pacafia against you concemning Plan Csd-040025364-D
(Lot Nos. 1115-A and 1115-B all of Cad 1037-D) in Bgy. Tiniguiban, El Nido, Palawan. This case
has already attained an Order of Investigation issued by the Provincial Environment and Natural

Resources Officer on February 28, 2019 (copy attached).

Pursuant to Section 7 and 8 of Department (DENR) Administrative Order 2016-31, you are
hereby advised to file your Verified Answer to the Protest within fifteen (15) days from vour
receipt hereof, containing the material facts supported by documentary evidences, including an
enumeration of Maximum of three (3) witnesses with the respective addresses. The Answer
must be submitted to this Office in three (3) copies with the proof of service of a copy to the

Protestant.

Failure to do so shall mean’ a waiver in your part and the case shall be submitted for resolution,

\x

Very truly yours,
For and in thgﬁquance of the CENRQO:

- -

' et /‘/

- %
MARtAm:[IUXNG, IR,

DMO [IV/In charge of Office
Copy furnished:

The Protestant (this letter only)
The PENRO-Palawan

¥




a Republic of the Philippines
§ Department of Environment and Natural Resources
W MIMAROPA REGION
e  PROVINCIAL ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE

EDGAR O. PACANA, SAMUEL O.

PACANA, and OSCAR O. PACANA Land Case No. OS/TU
, Protestant,
i
Y“)o c r, | -versus-
e \' FOR CANCELLATION OF
v PLAN CSD-04-025364-D
THE CLAIM OF BARANGAY GOVERNMENT OF (Lot 1115-A & Lot 1115-B,
VILLA LIBERTAD rep. by PUNONG BARANGAY CAD 1037-D) '
JHONY FABREGAS and VILLA LIBERTAD Villa Libertad, EI Nido,
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL rep. by HEAD TEACHER Palawan
DENR CENRO
BELEN S. CABUTIHAN TAYTH? Sai Av AN
Protestee . el
5 2 - J
x ----------------------------------------- x F - /," \*r:\(. e
B\': ”://

ORDER OF INVESTIGATION  GATE: 7= CN_Z

A protest was filed by Edgar O. Pacafia, Samuel O. Pacafa and Oscar O. Pacafa against
the approval of CSD-04-025363-D situated in Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan.

The Protestants are the surviving children and compulsory heirs of Santiago
Pacafia, who died intestate on October 13, 1970; that during his lifetime, Santiago
Pacafa is the legimate and only claimant of Lot No. 928 with an area of more or less
seven hectares located in Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawn wherein it was
surveyed in his name under Bacuit (El Nido) Public Land Subdivision (Case-2) PLS-31;
that portions of Lot No. 928 were either sold or conveyed to other individuals wherein
only a little over one hectare was left after the death of Santiago; on May 8, 1996, the
heirs of Santiago Pacafia entered into a compromised agreement with Villa Libertad
Elementary School covering 5000 square meters of Lot No. 928 but the said school
never complied with the said agreement; in 2017, the heirs decided to apply for titling
for the remaining 4,082 square meters of the subject lot but surprised when they were
informed that it has already an approved subdivision survey for Villa Libertad
Elementary School, Barangay Government of Villa Libertad and other individuals; the
heirs contested that the patents issued to Villa Libertad Elementary School and
Barangay Government of Villa Libertad were illegally obtained since they never waived,
donated nor sold a portion of the said property to them.

Per verification, the protest is sufficient in form and substance and the required
protest fee has been paid under OR Number 0134494-T dated September 14, 2018.

WHEREFORE, CENRO Taytay, Palawan thru its designated LIO is directed to

conduct investigation and to submit report and recommendation pursuant to DAO 2016-
31 dated December 29, 2016.

SO ORDERED, 28 FEBRUARY 2019.

ERIBERTO B SANOS, CESE

OIC- PENRO
/kkva*2019-1432

L o ﬂ 7 s Barangay Sta. Monica, Puerto Princesa C ity, Palawan
\ Telfax No (048!41) 5638

Email Address




Republic of the Philippines

Department of Environment and Natural Resources

Region IV- MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

IS

B L o e e

February 14, 2019
(_,"
ol/ZC/q /7'/%"
FOR : The Provincial Environment and Natural Resources Officer 819"
Santa Monica, Puerto Princesa City

MEMORANDUM

FROM : The Community Environment and Natural Resources Officer
Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan

SUBJECT : VERIFIED PROTEST LETTER FILED OF EDGAR O. PACANA
SAMUEL O. PACANA AND OSCAR PACANA VS. BARANGAY
GOVERNMENT OF VILLA LIBERTAD REP. BY JOHNY
FABRIGAS (PUNONG BARANGAY) AND VILLA LIBERTAD
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL REP. BY BELEN S. CABUTIHAN (HEAD
TEACHER) FOR CANCELLATION OF LOT CSD-04-025364-D

Respectfully forwarded is the above protest with attachments consistent with the
requirements under Sec. 4, Chapter I1 of Dao 2016-13 filed by Edgar O. Pacana,
Samuel O Pacana and Oscar O. Pacana versus Bgy. Government of Villa Libertad
rep. by Jhony Fabregas (Punong Barangay) and Libertad Elem. School rep. by Belen
S. Cabutihan (Head Teacher) for cancellation of Lot Csd-04-025364-D identical to Lot
No. 1115, Cad 1037-D located at Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan.

Please be informed that the case did not go through conciliation proceedings in the
barangay because « the respondent: is the Punong Barangay Jhony Fabrigas
himself representing the Barangay Government of Villa Libertad.

Preliminary conference (copy of report hereto-attached) among the contending
parties was held but did not result to amicable settlement. Hence, issuance of Order
of Investigation is hereby recommended.

b

For yourf\eference and approval.

x A
/) {RENR cEnRO
el B i St UG .“‘“;.’».

b i
ALA} ALLE B, o T et A
, VT8 Jajg p

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312
email ad:




Republic of the Philippines

Department of Environment and Natural Resources

Region IV- MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
Taytay. Palawan

Subject: VERIFIED PROTEST/COMPLAINT FILED BY EDGAR O. PACANA
SAMUEL O. PACANA AND OSCAR O. PACANA (PROTESTANTS)
AGAINST BGY. GOVT. OF VILLA LIBERTAD, REP. BY PUNONG
BARANGAY JHONY FABREGAS AND VILLA LIBERTAD ELEM.
SCHOOL, REP. BY HEAD TEACHER BELEN S. CABUTIHAN
(PROTESTEES) FOR CANCELLATION OF CSD-04-025364-D,
LOCATED AT BGY. LIBERTAD, EL NIDO, PALAWAN

February 11, 2019
DENR CENRO

The Community Environment and TAYTAY, PALAWAN

Natural Resources Officer S e

Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan PECEIVED
Ch - :

Siy: DA T AP TN DA

Relative to above verified protest/complaint submitted through undated letter of above
Protestants received by this office dated September 30, 2018, against Protestees
seeking for appropriate action on cancellation of Csd-04-025364-D identical to Lot No.
1115, Cad 1037-D as surveyed for Barangay Government, et. al., the hereto undersigned
is pleased to give his preliminary report on the matter, as follows:

That parcel of land directly involved in the case/issue was identified as approved
Subdivision Plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D, consisting Four Thousand and Eighty Two
(4,082) square meters with six (6) resultant lots Lot 1115-A to Lot 1115-F under Plan
Csd-04-025364, surveyed in the name of Barangay Government, et. al., situated at
Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan.

That on April 23, 2018 prior to formal submission of the verified protest/complaint by the
above Protestants, Edgar Pacana (one of the Protestants), previously wrote a letter dated
March 10, 2018 received by this office dated March 14, 2018 copy furnished the PENRO

requesting for cancellation or disapproval of Survey Plan of Survey Plan Csd-04-025364-
D.

That on April 23, 2018, this office received a PENRO Memo brought about by the said
letter request of one of the Protestants, Edgar O. Pacana with instructions to conduct
immediate in-depth verification and investigation on the issue.

Tha@ on May 15, 2018, Engineer II Marian B. Lachica of this office rendered her report of
findings in compliance to PENRO Memo. The same report was forwarded to PENRO and
a return MEMO dated June 5, 2018, received by this office on 20 of June 2018, per their

evaluation of the report, consequently, the request for cancellation of Plan Csd-04-
025364-D cannot be granted due to lack of basis.

That embe'dded on the same PENRO Memo was an instructions to initiate efforts for a
daaiogue with Mr. Pacana and affected lot claimants for possible amicable settlement and
to require complaining party to file protest/petition pursuant to DAQ 2016-31.

Page 1 of 2
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That on ywly ' 31, 2018 both opposing parties in response to notice of invitation (copy
attached), have shown up for an amicable settlement proceedings (photo and copy of
attendance hereto-attached) initiated by the undersigned, unfortunately, no settlement
agreement have been reached by both opposing parties, however, after the amicable

settlement ended an advise was made by the hereto undersigned to let Protestants file a
formal protest.

That on September 14, 2018 this office has received an undated letter filed by Protestants
Edgar O. Pacana, Samuel O. Pacana and Oscar O. Pacana against Barangay Government

of Villa Libertad represented by Punong Barangay Jhony M. Fabrigas and Villa Libertad

Elementary School represented by Belen S. Cabutihan for cancellation of Plan Csd-04-
025364-D.

I view of the foregoing, the hereto undersigned hereby recommends that above verified

protest/complaint be issued an ORDER OF INVESTIGATION leading to resolution of the
instant case/issue.

Very truly yours,

DAVID F. DALINO

LMO III/RPS-Chief

Page 2 of 2
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Repubiic of the Philippines

Department of Environment and Natural Resources

Region IV- MIMAROPA

COMMURNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

PEMR CENRO

Mr. Edgardo O. Pacana | THRY TAY, ?AQ_MWQM
sl R T RTED
6 2.
" T T
Belen §. Cabutihan Re: in the Case of Cancellation
Head Teacher, Villa Libertad of Csd-04-025364-D
Elementary School
Respondent
Jhony Fabregas

Hon. Punong Barangay,
Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido
Pailawan

Respondent

NOTICE OF INVITATION

Above-captioned case is for action of this Office brought about by the protest letter
dated March 10, 2018 of Edgar O. Pacana and received by this Office dated March 14,
2018 for the cancellation of Plan Csd-040025364-D involving the lot area of Vilia

Libertad Elementary School and the site of Barangay Hall of Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan.

In view thereof, you are invited to appear before Land Management Officer 111 David
F. Dalino of this office for a conference/ dialogue on dated July 31, 2018 at 2:00 pm to

shed light on the matter. Please bring with you any proof of ownership document as
evidence of your lawful claim of the land.

Fail not to come.

Very truly yours,

For and in the Absence of the CENRO:

MARIANO BYLILANG, JR.

DMO 1v/Office-in- Charge

§

\ i

Cfteg.
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PHOTO SHOWING THE AMICABLE SETTLEMENT PROCEEDINGS
OF THE OPPOSING PARTIES CONDUCTED DATED JULY 31, 2018
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Republic of the Philippines
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Region 1V - MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURC ES OFFICE

5312 Taytay, Palawan

ATTENDANCE

CENRO Taytay, Conference Room

Belen Cabutihan & Jhonny Fabregas

Edgardo Pacana
V5.

July 31, 2018 (2:00 PM)- 1st Hegring
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A AL s N R
Mr., PABLO ¢ CRUZ

OIC-CENRO

s

| dYlagy, F

oY)
o)

SER: s 2 (\§
K e
or your appropriate action our protest/complaint over the

bdivision plan survey of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D, El Nido, Palawan,
5364-D. The survey was conducted for the Barangay Government

ne caniormity clause as the land owner.

L in our protest, the property surveyed was Lot No. 928 which was
eyed for our late father, Santiago Pacana, in 1955 in the Bacuit Public Land
Hvision (Case-2), Pis 31 (PHILCUSA-FOA), as the legitimate claimant and

We have not given any authority to Feguracion Dalabajan to have our inherited
property surveyed for the barangay government of Villa Libertad and the Villa
Libertad Elementary School, hence, our protest.

We are anticipating your immediate action in this regard.

Thank you and more power.

Sincerely yours

A ; 7 R
fotoa P :
EDGAT ). PACAN OSCAR O. PACANA




AccountasLe Form No. 51-C
Revised January, 1992 (ORIGINAL)

Official Receipt
of the
Republic of the Philippines

N? 0134484 T

CENRD TOYTar, g/
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Recenved the amount stated above,
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Collecting Officer

NOTE: Write the number and date of this receipt on

the back of check or money order received




Mir. PABLO I. CRUZ Bl 70
OIC-CENRO P LE
Taytay, Palawan g i : *i” i3

We are submitting for your appropriate action our protest/complaint over the
approval of the subdivision plan survey of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D, El Nido, Palawan,
under Csd-04-025364-D. The survey was conducted for the Barangay Government
of Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan, et al. A certain Feguracion Dalabajan signed in
the conformity clause as the land owner.

As stated in our protest, the property surveyed was Lot No. 928 which was
surveyed for our late father, Santiago Pacana, in 1955 in the Bacuit Public Land
Subdivision (Case-2), Pls 31 (PHILCUSA-FOA), as the legitimate claimant and

owner.

We have not given any authority to Feguracion Dalabajan to have our inherited
property surveyed for the barangay government of Villa Libertad and the Villa
Libertad Elementary Schoo!, hence, our protest.

We are anticipating your imiiediate action in this regard.

Thank you and more power.

WW D _
SAMUEL O. PACANA™  OSCAR 0. PACANA

National Highway, Villa Libertad
E!l Nido, Palawan

Sincerely yours,




ACCOUNTABLE FORm No. 51-C
Revised January, 1992 (ORIGINAL)

Official Receipt
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Republic of the Philippines
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Republic of the Philippines
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Region IV = MIMAROPA
COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

EDGARI 0. PACANA, SAMUEL O. CASE NO.

PACANA & OSCAR 0. PACANA,
Protestants/Complainants.

-Versus- for:

BGY. GOVERNMENT OF VILLA LIBERTAD, “FOR CANCELLATION OF CSD-04-
rep. by its Punong Barangay JHONY 025364-D (Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D,
FABREGAS & VILLA LIBERTAD ELEMEN- EL NIDO, PALAWAN"

TARY SCHOOL, rep. by its Head Teacher

BELEN S. CABUTIHAN,
Protestees/Respondents.

VERIFIED PROTEST/COMPLAINT

PROTESTANTS/COMPLAINANTS by themselves and unto this Honorable
Office most respectfully file this protest on the approval of Csd-04-025363-D and
hereby further state that:

1. They are all Filipino citizens and more than sixty (60) years old, farmers,
married and residents of Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan, where

they may be served with notices and orders coming from this Honorable
Office;

2. Protestees/respondents Bgy. Government of Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan, and Villa Libertad Elementary School are government entities
represented herein by their respective heads that are all based in Bgy.
Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan, where they may be served with
summons, notices and orders of this Honorable Office;

3. Protestants Oscar O. Pacana, Edgar O. Pacana and Samuel O. Pacana,
together with their late brother, Cesar O, Pacana, are the only legitimate

and compulsory heirs of Santiago Pacana, who died intestate on October
13,1970 in Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;




e

4. During his lifetime, Santiago Pacanha was the legitimate and only
claimant and possessor of Lot No. 928 with an area of more or less
seven (7) hectares located in Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan. Said
property was surveyed in his name sometime in the year 1955 in the
Bacuit (El Nido) Public Land Subdivision (Case -2), Pls-31 (PHILCUSA —
FOA). As evidence we are submitting herewith as Annex “A” the said
Bacuit Public Land Subdivision which is made as an integral part of this
protest;

5. Over the years and during the lifetime of Santiago Pacana, portions of
Lot No. 928 were either sold or conveyed to several individuals such that
only a little over one (1) hectare was left after the death of Santiago;

N

Of the more than one (1) hectare left after Santiago’s death, about five
thousand (5,000) square meters is being presently occupied by the Villa
Libertad Elementary School while the remaining four thousand and
eighty two (4,082) square meters, situated across the barangay road
facing the elementary school, are being presently occupied by Benjamin
Ramirez, Liberty Tumbokon, Samuel O. Pacana and the heirs of Cesar O.
Pacaha. A number of small market stalls (talipapa), facing the north
national highway, are also inside which are being rented out by the
barangay government to several vendors together with some small
commercial structures occupied by some individuals. The remaining
areas are now part of the road right of way (north national highway);

7. Sometime in 1996, the heirs questioned the occupation by the Villa
Libertad Elementary School of a portion of about five thousand (5,000)
square meters of Lot No. 928. it is the portion where the school
buildings and other facilities are located. The heirs were told that the
said portion was allegedly sold or donated by Santiago Pacana but no
document of conveyance was ever shown to them. At any rate, even if
assuming the portion was truly sold or donated to the school, the same
was made by Santiago without the consent of his wife, thus, the portion

legally conveyed was only one half of the five thousand (5,000) square
meters;

8. To solve the issue on the five thousand (5,000) square meters and as an
act of generosity and for the community well being, the protestants,
together with their mother and other co-heir, entered into a
compromise agreement with the school authorities on May 8, 1996. In
said compromise they agreed to drop their complaint on the school’s
occupation of the 5,000 square meters in exchange of the offer of the
school to give them one hundred (100) square meters each to be taken
from the area being claimed and occupied by the school. This promise
was never complied with by the Villa Libertad Elementary School. We

S




are attaching hereto the compromise agreement dated May 8, 1996 as
Annex “B” hereof;

9. Sometime in 2017, the heirs decided to have the remaining 4,082 square
meters titled in their name but to their surprise they were informed by
the CENRO personnel in Taytay, Palawan, that the area was already
surveyed for the barangay government of Villa Libertad, the Villa
Libertad Elementary School and Liberty Tumbokon, et al. They were
given a copy of the subdivision plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D, which was
approved on August 31, 2004. A copy of said subdivision plan is hereto
attached as Annex “C” and is made as an integral part of this protest;

10. In said approved subdivision survey, Villa Libertad Elementary School
was given a portion of SEVEN HUNDRED THIRTY SEVEN (737) square
meters while the Barangay Government of Villa Libertad was given ONE
THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED THIRTEEN (1,813) square meters. The
remaining portions were surveyed for Liberty Tumbokon (400 square
meters), Gabina Pacana (400 square meters), Benjamin Ramirez (133
square meters, and Samuel Pacana (267 square meters);

11.The approved surveys for Villa Libertad Elementary School and the
Barangay Government of Villa Libertad are patently illegal and thus void
because the heirs of Santiago Pacafa never waived, donated or sold a
portion of the property to them, and hence they have no right
whatsoever to the areas allotted to them. The remaining portions
allotted to Liberty Tumbokon, et al. are not being questioned by the

heirs in this protest because they have a right to their respective
portions either as legal heirs or vendees;

12. The subdivision survey was likewise made without the knowledge and
consent of the Heirs of Santiago Pacana. In fact, the one who gave
conformity to the survey was Feguracion Dalabajan who signed the
survey as the land owner. Dalabajan has no right whatsoever to initiate

the subdivision survey or to sign the conformity to the survey because
she was not in any way authorize by the heirs.

WHEREFORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, it is most respectfully prayed of this

Honoraple Office to render judgment in favour of the protestants/complainants
and against the protestees/respondents —

1. by partially invalidating the approval of CSD-4-025364-D (Subdivision
Plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D, El Nido) insofar as Lot 1115-A (Area=737
square meters Villa Libertad Elementary School) and Lot 1115-D

(Area=1,813 square meters Barangay Government of Villa Libertad, El
Nido), are concerned; and ’




2. to reconvey the said questioned portions to the Heirs of Santiago
Pacana.

Other reliefs and remedies just and equitable under the circumstances are
likewise prayed for.

Puerto Princesa City for El Nido, Palawan, September 10, 2018.

//q

EpGAR 0. PACANA SAMUEL O\-PACANA

Bl

V7 S -
OSCAR O. PACANA




VERIFICATION WITH CERTIFICATION OF
NON-FORUM SHOPPING

- - -
We, EDGAR O. PACANA, OSCAR O. PACANA and SAMUEL O. PACANA, all
of legal age (senior citizens), Filipinos, with address at Bgy. Villa Libertad, Ei Nido,
Palawan, after having been sworn to in accordance with law, hereby depose and
state:

1. We are the protestants/complainants in the case on which this
verification with certification of non-forum shopping is attached;

2, We have caused the preparation and filing of this protest as Heirs of
Santiago Pacana;

3. We have not commenced any other action or proceeding involving the
same issues in the Supreme Court, the Court of Appeals, or any other
lower court, tribunal or agency,

4. To our knowledge, no other such action or proceeding is pending in any
judicial court or other tribunal or agency in the Philippines involving the
same issues, claims or parties:

5. Should it come to our knowledge that a similar action or proceeding has
been filed or is pending before any court, tribunal or agency in the
Philippines, we hereby undertake to notify this Office within five days
from receipt of such knowledge.

Puerto Princesa City, September 10, 2018.

ED AR/(OJmA F?ngﬁt’mf

TN i
o~ -4’:'::::“*
(L —

OSYCAR O. PACANA

| SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before mesg‘gs‘] 0 Z;Lwof September 2018
in Pu?rto Princesa City, by Edgar O. Pacana with OSCA ID No. 2679; Samuel O.
Pacana with OSCA ID No. 0185 and Oscar O. Pacaha with OSCA ID No. 2295,

containing their respective name, picture and signature as competent proof of
their identity.

Doc. No. 1€ . . MARTINE RUELD
Page No. %€ . NOTARY PUBLIC
BuokiNo. LXI/-; - NﬂUhigégEﬁghéﬁER/SL 2019
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a Republic of the | iiilippines
. 5 Department of Environment and Natural Resources
w

wasmapsmme MIMAROPA REGION

- PROVINCIAL ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
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*

EDGAR O. PACANA, SAMUEL O.
PACANA, and OSCAR O. PACANA
Protestant,

Land Case No._ 0810

h

p! \ 0,5?” | f,a) -versus-

7z

i FOR CANCELLATION OF
PLAN CSD-04-025364-D

THE CLAIM OF BARANGAY GOVERNMENT OF (Lot 1115-A & Lot 1115-B,

VILLA LIBERTAD rep. by PUNONG BARANGAY CAD 1037-D)

JHONY FABREGAS and VILLA LIBERTAD villa Libertad, El Nido,

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL rep. by HEAD TEACHER Palawan

BELEN S. CABUTIHAN uﬁm"ﬁ ,gqna
Protestee TAYT:"" ¥, 2% t..a?n‘hﬂ

X X

ORDER OF INVESTIGATION  CATE D00 e

A protest was filed by Edgar O. Pacafia, Samuel O. Pacafia and Oscar O. Pacafia against
the approval of CSD-04-025363-D situated in Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan.

The Protestants are the surviving children and compulsory heirs of Santiago
Pacafia, who died intestate on October 13, 1970; that during his lifetime, Santiago
Pacanfia is the legimate and only claimant of Lot No. 928 with an area of more or less
seven hectares located in Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawn wherein it was
surveyed in his name under Bacuit (El Nido) Public Land Subdivision (Case-2) PLS-31;
that portions of Lot No. 928 were either sold or conveyed to other individuals wherein
only a little over one hectare was left after the death of Santiago; on May 8, 1996, the
heirs of Santiago Pacafia entered into a compromised agreement with Villa Libertad
Elementary School covering 5000 square meters of Lot No. 928 but the said school
never complied with the said agreement; in 2017, the heirs decided to apply for titling
for the remaining 4,082 square meters of the subject lot but surprised when they were
informed that it has already an approved subdivision survey for Villa Libertad
Elementary School, Barangay Government of Villa Libertad and other individuals; the
heirs contested that the patents issued to Villa Libertad Elementary School and
Barangay Government of Villa Libertad were illegally obtained since they never waived,
donated nor sold a portion of the said property to them.

Per verification, the protest is sufficient in form and substance and the required
protest fee has been paid under OR Number 0134494-T dated September 14, 2018.

WHEREFORE, CENRO Taytay, Palawan thru its designated LIO is directed to

conduct investigation and to submit report and recommendation pursuant to DAO 2016-
31 dated December 29, 2016.

SO ORDERED, 28 FEBRUARY 2019.

ERIBERTO B.SANOS, CESE
OIC- PENRO

/kkva*2019-1432

Barangay Sta. Monica, Puerto Princesa City, Palawan
Telfax No. (048) 433-5638
Email Address: denmpalawandvaboo.com
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MEMORANDUM oo BT
— Joomre O
FOR : The Provincial Environment and Natural Resources Officer
Santa Monica, Puerto Princesa City

FROM : The Community Environment and Natural Resources Officer
i Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan

SUBJECT : VERIFIED PROTEST LETTER FILED OF EDGAR O. PACANA
SAMUEL O. PACANA AND OSCAR PACANA VS. BARANGAY
GOVERNMENT OF VILLA LIBERTAD REP. BY JOHNY
FABRIGAS (PUNONG BARANGAY) AND VILLA LIBERTAD
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL REP. BY BELEN S. CABUTIHAN (HEAD
TEACHER) FOR CANCELLATION OF LOT CSD-04-025364-D

Respectfully forwarded is the above protest with attachments consistent with the
requirements under Sec. 4, Chapter II of Dao 2016-13 filed by Edgar O. Pacana,
Samuel O Pacana and Oscar O. Pacana versus Bgy. Government of Villa Libertad
rep. by Jhony Fabregas (Punong Barangay) and Libertad Elem. School rep. by Belen
S. Cabutihan (Head Teacher) for cancellation of Lot Csd-04-025364-D identical to Lot
No. 1115, Cad 1037-D located at Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan.

Please be informed that the case did not go through conciliation proceedings in the
barangay because « the respondent is the Punong Barangay Jhony Fabrigas
himself representing the Barangay Government of Villa Libertad.

Preliminary conference (copy of report hereto-attached) among the contending
parties was held but did not result to amicable settlement. Hence, issuance of Order
of Investigation is hereby recommended.

For your reference and approval.

ALAN L. VALLE

AN

¥
"\.\\)

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312
email ad: cenrotaytaypalfyahoo.com




Republic of the Philippiv. . 3
Department of Environment and Natural Resources

Region IV- MIMAROPA

D s ; NMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
B gOMMUNlI“Y ENVIRONMENT AND NAT
n— aytay, Palawan

Subject: VERIFIED PROTEST/COMPLAINT FILED BY EDGAR O. PACANA
SAMUEL O. PACANA AND OSCAR O. PACANA (PROTESTANTS)
AGAINST BGY. GOVT. OF VILLA LIBERTAD, REP. BY PUNONG
BARANGAY JHONY FABREGAS AND VILLA LIBERTAD ELEM.
SCHOOL, REP. BY HEAD TEACHER BELEN S. CABUTIHAN
(PROTESTEES) FOR CANCELLATION OF CSD-04-025364-D,
LOCATED AT BGY. LIBERTAD, EL NIDO, PALAWAN

February 11, 2019 pepe R0
TAYYTAY. Pal AV AM
The Community Environment and e 3T
Natural Resources Officer Ei .,..(‘ i o T
Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan BY: -

Sir:

Relative to above verified protest/complaint submitted through undated letter of above
Protestants received by this office dated September 30, 2018, against Protestees
seeking for appropriate action on cancellation of Csd-04-025364-D identical to Lot No.
1115, Cad 1037-D as surveyed for Barangay Government, et. al., the hereto undersigned
is pleased to give his preliminary report on the matter, as follows:

That parcel of land directly involved in the case/issue was identified as approved
Subdivision Plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D, consisting Four Thousand and Eighty Two
(4,082) square meters with six (6) resultant lots Lot 1115-A to Lot 1115-F under Plan
Csd-04-025364, surveyed in the name of Barangay Government, et. al., situated at
Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan.

That on April 23, 2018 prior to formal submission of the verified protest/complaint by the
above Protestants, Edgar Pacana (one of the Protestants), previously wrote a letter dated
March 10, 2018 received by this office dated March 14, 2018 copy furnished the PENRO

requesting for cancellation or disapproval of Survey Plan of Survey Plan Csd-04-025364-
D,

That on April 23, 2018, this office received a PENRO Memo brought about by the said
letter request of one of the Protestants, Edgar O. Pacana with instructions to conduct
immediate in-depth verification and investigation on the issue.

That on May 15, 2018, Engineer II Marian B. Lachica of this office rendered her report of
findings in compliance to PENRO Memo. The same report was forwarded to PENRO and
a return MEMO dated June 5, 2018, received by this office on 20 of June 2018, per their

evaluation of the report, consequently, the request for cancellation of Plan Csd-04-
025364-D cannot be granted due to lack of basis.

T_hat embedded on the same PENRO Memo was an instructions to initiate efforts for a
dialogue with Mr. Pacana and affected lot claimants for possible amicable settlement and
to require complaining party to file protest/petition pursuant to DAO 2016-31.

=
1 Page 1 of 2
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That on Jw{u, 2018 both opposing parties in response to notice of invitation (copy
attached), have shown up for an amicable settlement proceedings (photo and copy of
attendance hereto-attached) initiated by the undersigned, unfortunately, no settlement
agreement have been reached by both opposing parties, however, after the amicable

settlement ended an advise was made by the hereto undersigned to let Protestants file a
formal protest.

That on September 14, 2018 this office has received an undated letter filed by Protestants
Edgar O. Pacana, Samuel O. Pacana and Oscar O. Pacana against Barangay Government
of Villa Libertad represented by Punong Barangay Jhony M. Fabrigas and Villa Libertad

Elementary School represented by Belen S. Cabutihan for cancellation of Plan Csd-04-
025364-D.

I view of the foregoing, the hereto undersigned hereby recommends that above verified

protest/complaint be issued an ORDER OF INVESTIGATION leading to resolution of the
instant case/issue.

Very truly yours,

__MV

AVJD F. DALINO
LMO III/RPS-Chief

Page 2 of 2

M




o

i
+

Republic of the Philippines
: : Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Region IV- MIMAROPA

WMMW COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
s 5312 Taytay, Palawan

S

. REMR CENRO
Mr. Edgardo O. Pacana TAYTAY, PQL&WAN
Protestant R o
BY: o
Vs ApTEsOF M- o08 CH_[06
Beien S. Cabutihan Re: in the Case of Cancellation
Head Teacher, Villa Libertad of Csd-04-025364-D
Elementary School
Respondent |
Jhony Fabregas
Hon. Punong Barangay,
Bgy. Villa Libertad, E! Nido
Palawan
Respondent
NOTICE OF INVITATION
Above-captioned case is for action of this Office brought about by the protest letter
dated March 10, 2018 of Edgar O. Pacana and received by this Office dated March 14,
2018 for the cancellation of Plan Csd-040025364-D involving the lot area of Villa
Libertad Elementary School and the site of Barangay Hall of Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan,
In view thereof, you are invited to appear before Land Management Officer III David
F. Dalino of this office for a conference/ dialogue on dated July 31, 2018 at 2:00 pm to
shed light on the matter. Please bring with you any proof of ownership document as
evidence of your lawful claim of the land.
Fail not to come.

Very truly yours,
For and in the Absence of the CENRO: .
e

g

MARIAHO BY IR.
DMO TV/Of in- Charge

v
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PHOTO SHOWING THE AMICABLE SETTLEMENT POCEED!NGS
OF THE OPPOSING PARTIES CONDUCTED DATED JULY 31, 2018
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Republic of the Philippines

Department of Environment and Natural Resources

Region IV - MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE

5312 Taytay, Palawan
ATTENDANCE
CENRO Taytay, Conference Room
Edgardo Pacana

Vi,
Belen Cabutiban & Jhonny Fabregas
July 31, 2018 (2:00 PM)- ¢l Hearing

NO. NAME CONTACT NUMBER S&FNATURE
LSO e AR | 09 20093<Y |
2| Bung, T @D\\wl,z 0|5 2663834 / l"’*‘ an

AY
3| Dusrddads B W(M OF707350( 275 Mmb
4 Rosaue 4. Ausivg ~0930(2 358/¢ L fy w/
S \meve - DUMALSIN 091019 8427 Ehfmlel)

6 | Beey ¢ cABUTIHAN 09997, 55 709 W

J &m\;nf Pacong | 01} 9169/20

5 |tmdola . Drapyor | 240486255 i% P

O |Adewiza v Arapen Ay i

0| Mheus C. prReo) Da4¢1 0902 @k Dl

U lRendd N Toorces T

12 onanye b. Cabddihan QA
13_|PRopNh MERCENARIO| 77:3T L1580 00
v\ METIR S MAlioh
15 |WodIE M - gacann

N6 EDGyn O ,9,:3;,4 /M—:- [
7_| Beter—Gavwithan |

i8




DENR CEMRO
Mr. PABLO I. CRUZ DENR CF.
OIC-CENRO TAYTAY. PALAYWAN

Y Lae e g
Taytay, Palawan E

e
S1R: DATE: ON "N

We are submitting for your appropriate action our protest/complaint over the
approval of the subdivision plan survey of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D, El Nido, Palawan,
under Csd-04-025364-D. The survey was conducted for the Barangay Government
of Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan, et al. A certain Feguracion Dalabajan signed in
the conformity clause as the land owner.

As stated in our protest, the property surveyed was Lot No. 928 which was
surveyed for our late father, Santiago Pacana, in 1955 in the Bacuit Public Land

Subdivision (Case-2), Pls 31 (PHILCUSA-FOA), as the legitimate claimant and
owner.

We have not given any authority to Feguracion Dalabajan to have our inherited
property surveyed for the barangay government of Villa Libertad and the Villa
Libertad Elementary School, hence, our protest.

We are anticipating your immediate action in this regard.

Thank you and more power.

Sincerely yours,

EBGAR O. PACANA SAMUEL O. PA‘CANA OSCAR 0. PACANA

National Highway, Villa Libertad
El Nido, Palawan




Accountasie Form No., 51-C

Revised January, 1992 (ORIGINAL)
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Republic of the Philippines
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Region IV - MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE

5312 Taytay, Palawan

0. PACAT\TA, SAMUEL O. CASE NO.

PACANA & OSCAR O. PACANA,

Protestants/Complainants.

-versus- for:

BGY. GOVERNMENT OF VILLA LIBERTAD, “FOR CANCELLATION OF CSD-04-
rep. by its Punong Barangay JHONY 025364-D (Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D,
FABREGAS & VILLA LIBERTAD ELEMEN- EL NIDO, PALAWAN"

TARY SCHOOL, rep. by its Head Teacher

BELEN S. CABUTIHAN,

Protestees/Respondents.

VERIFIED PROTEST/COMPLAINT

PROTESTANTS/COMPLAINANTS by themselves and unto this Honorable
Office most respectfully file this protest on the approval of Csd-04-025363-D and
hereby further state that:

1. They are all Filipino citizens and more than sixty (60) years old, farmers,

married and residents of Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan, where

they may be served with notices and orders coming from this Honorable
Office;

. Protestees/respondents Bgy. Government of Villa Libertad, E| Nido,

Palawan, and Villa Libertad Elementary School are government entities
represented herein by their respective heads that are all based in Bgy.
Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan, where they may be served with
summons, notices and orders of this Honorable Office;

. Protestants Oscar O. Pacana, Edgar O. Pacana and Samuel O. Pacana,

together with their late brother, Cesar O, Pacana, are the only legitimate

and compulsory heirs of Santiago Pacafa, who died intestate on October
13,1970 in Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan;




4. During his lifetime, Santiago Pacaha was the legitimate and only
claimant and possessor of Lot No. 928 with an area of more or less .
seven (7) hectares located in Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan. Said
property was surveyed in his name sometime in the year 1955 in the
Bacuit (El Nido) Public Land Subdivision (Case -2), Pls-31 (PHILCUSA -
FOA). As evidence we are submitting herewith as Annex “A” the said
Bacuit Public Land Subdivision which is made as an integral part of this
protest;

5. Over the years and during the lifetime of Santiago Pacafa, portions of
Lot No. 928 were either sold or conveyed to several individuals such that
only a little over one (1) hectare was left after the death of Santiago;

6. Of the more than one (1) hectare left after Santiago’s death, about five
thousand (5,000) square meters is being presently occupied by the Villa
Libertad Elementary School while the remaining four thousand and
eighty two (4,082) square meters, situated across the barangay road
facing the elementary school, are being presently occupied by Benjamin
Ramirez, Liberty Tumbokon, Samuel O. Pacana and the heirs of Cesar O.
Pacaha. A number of small market stalls (talipapa), facing the north
national highway, are also inside which are being rented out by the
barangay government to several vendors together with some small
commercial structures occupied by some individuals. The remaining
areas are now part of the road right of way (north national highway);

7. Sometime in 1996, the heirs questioned the occupation by the Villa
Libertad Elementary School of a portion of about five thousand (5,000)
square meters of Lot No. 928. It is the portion where the school
buildings and other facilities are located. The heirs were told that the
said portion was allegedly sold or donated by Santiago Pacana but no
document of conveyance was ever shown to them. At any rate, even if
assuming the portion was truly sold or donated to the school, the same
was made by Santiago without the consent of his wife, thus, the portion

legally conveyed was only one half of the five thousand (5,000) square
meters;

To solve the issue on the five thousand (5,000) square meters and as an
act of generosity and for the community well being, the protestants,
together with their mother and other co-heir, entered into a
compromise agreement with the school authorities on May 8, 1996. In
said compromise they agreed to drop their complaint on the school’s
occupation of the 5,000 square meters in exchange of the offer of the
school to give them one hundred (100) square meters each to be taken
from the area being claimed and occupied by the school. This promise
was never complied with by the Villa Libertad Elementary School. We




are attaching hereto the compromise agreement dated May 8, 1996 as
Annex “B” hereof;

9. Sometime in 2017, the heirs decided to have the remaining 4,082 square
meters titled in their name but to their surprise they were informed by
the CENRO personnel in Taytay, Palawan, that the area was already
surveyed for the barangay government of Villa Libertad, the Villa
Libertad Elementary School and Liberty Tumbokon, et al. They were
given a copy of the subdivision plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D, which was
approved on August 31, 2004. A copy of said subdivision plan is hereto
attached as Annex “C” and is made as an integral part of this protest;

10. In said approved subdivision survey, Villa Libertad Elementary School
was given a portion of SEVEN HUNDRED THIRTY SEVEN (737) square
meters while the Barangay Government of Villa Libertad was given ONE
THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED THIRTEEN (1,813) square meters. The
remaining portions were surveyed for Liberty Tumbokon (400 square
meters), Gabina Pacana (400 square meters), Benjamin Ramirez (133
square meters, and Samuel Pacana (267 square meters);

11.The approved surveys for Villa Libertad Elementary School and the
Barangay Government of Villa Libertad are patently illegal and thus void
because the heirs of Santiago Pacaha never waived, donated or sold a
portion of the property to them, and hence they have no right
whatsoever to the areas allotted to them. The remaining portions
allotted to Liberty Tumbokon, et al. are not being questioned by the
heirs in this protest because they have a right to their respective
portions either as legal heirs or vendees;

12. The subdivision survey was likewise made without the knowledge and
consent of the Heirs of Santiago Pacana. In fact, the one who gave
conformity to the survey was Feguracion Dalabajan who signed the
survey as the land owner. Dalabajan has no right whatsoever to initiate
the subdivision survey or to sign the conformity to the survey because
she was not in any way authorize by the heirs.

WHEREFORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, it is most respectfully prayed of this

Honorable Office to render judgment in favour of the protestants/complainants
and against the protestees/respondents —

1. by partially invalidating the approval of CSD-4-025364-D (Subdivision
Plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D, El Nido) insofar as Lot 1115-A (Area=737
square meters Villa Libertad Elementary School) and Lot 1115-D

(Area=1,813 square meters Barangay Government of Villa Libertad, El
Nido), are concerned; and




2. to reconvey the said questioned portions to the Heirs of Santiago
Pacafa.

Other reliefs and remedies just and equitable under the circumstances are
likewise prayed for.

Puerto Princesa City for El Nido, Palawan, September 10, 2018.

Sﬂﬂ—w /%%
EDGAR O. PACANA ELO ACANA

5—«—9\_,) i
OSCAR O. PACANA
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V;ERlFICATION WITH CERTIFICATION OF
NON-FORUM SHOPPING

We, EDGAR O. PACANA, OSCAR O. PACANA and SAMUEL O. PACANA, all
of legal age (senior citizens), Filipinos, with address at Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan, after having been sworn to in accordance with law, hereby depose and
state:

1. We are the protestants/complainants in the case on which this
verification with certification of non-forum shopping is attached;

2. We have caused the preparation and filing of this protest as Heirs of
Santiago Pacana;

3. We have not commenced any other action or proceeding involving the
same issues in the Supreme Court, the Court of Appeals, or any other
lower court, tribunal or agency,

4. To our knowledge, no other such action or proceeding is pending in any
judicial court or other tribunal or agency in the Philippines involving the
same issues, claims or parties;

5. Should it come to our knowledge that a similar action or proceeding has
been filed or is pending before any court, tribunal or agency in the

Philippines, we hereby undertake to notify this Office within five days
from receipt of such knowledge.

Puerto Princesa City, September 10, 2018.

W«—-‘;— /gd—% P P s
EDGAR O. PACANA AMUEL O. PACANA

OSCAR 0. PACANA

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before "§£81151 0 Zin/ of September 2018

in Puizrto Princesa City, by Edgar O. Pacana with OSCA ID No. 2679; Samuel O.
Pacana with OSCA ID No. 0185 and Oscar O. Pacana with OSCA ID No. 2295,

containing their respective name, picture and signature as competent proof of
their identity.

Doc. No. I8¢ .
Page No. 38 .

Book No. LX) .
Series of 2018.
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Republico’the Philippines ‘

Department of Environment and Natural Resources

Region IV- MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

: HAACRMe a2 ¢ rd g
‘ o
February 14, 2019 m’@i 6{54,25
MEMORANDUM N
FOR . The Provincial Environment and Natural Resources Officer

Santa Monica, Puerto Princesa City

FROM - The Community Environment and Natural Resources Officer
Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan

SUBJECT . VERIFIED PROTEST LETTER FILED OF EDGAR O. PACANA
SAMUEL O. PACANA AND OSCAR PACANA VS. BARANGAY
GOVERNMENT OF VILLA LIBERTAD REP. BY JOHNY
FABRIGAS (PUNONG BARANGAY) AND VILLA LIBERTAD
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL REP. BY BELEN S. CABUTIHAN (HEAD
TEACHER) FOR CANCELLATION OF LOT CSD-04-025364-D

Respectfully forwarded is the above protest with attachments consistent with the
requirements under Sec. 4, Chapter II of Dao 2016-13 filed by Edgar O. Pacana,
Ssamuel O Pacana and Oscar Q. Pacana versus Bgy. Government of Villa Libertad
rep. by Jhony Fabregas (Punong Barangay) and Libertad Elem. School rep. by Belen
S. Cabutihan (Head Teacher) for cancellation of Lot Csd-04-025364-D identical to Lot
No. 1115, Cad 1037-D located at Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan.

Please be informed that the case did not go through conciliation proceedings in the
barangay because +  the respondent is the Punong Barangay Jhony Fabrigas
himself representing the Barangay Government of Villa Libertad.

Preliminary conference (copy of report hereto-attached) among the contending
parties was held but did not result to amicable settlement. Hence, issuance of Order
of Investigation is hereby recommended.

For your reference and approval.

DENR CE
TAYTAY, m&ﬁgm

RELE . =&
\ BY. <) 3
DAYE: 1) K Ry o7

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312
email ad: cervatavtavpal@vahon com




Republic of the Philippines’

Region IV- MIMAROPA

5312 Taytay, Palawan

Department of Environment and Natural Resources

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE

3“, ke

February 14, 2019

MEMORANDUM

Tei/20 figc 1116

FOR + The Provincial Environment and Natural Resources Officer g

Santa Monica, Puerto Princesa City

FROM . The Community Environment and Natural Resources Officer

Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan

SUBJECT . VERIFIED PROTEST LETTER FILED OF EDGAR O. PACANA
SAMUEL O. PACANA AND OSCAR PACANA VS. BARANGAY
GOVERNMENT OF VILLA LIBERTAD REP. BY JOHNY
FABRIGAS (PUNONG BARANGAY) AND VILLA LIBERTAD
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL REP. BY BELEN S. CABUTIHAN (HEAD
TEACHER) FOR CANCELLATION OF LOT CSD-04-025364-D

Respectfully forwarded is the above protest with attachments consistent with the
requirements under Sec. 4, Chapter 11 of Dao 2016-13 filed by Edgar O. Pacana,
Samuel O Pacana and Oscar O. Pacana versus Bgy. Government of Villa Libertad
rep. by Jhony Fabregas (Punong Barangay) and Libertad Elem. School rep. by Belen
S. Cabutihan (Head Teacher) for cancellation of Lot Csd-04-025364-D identical to Lot
No. 1115, Cad 1037-D located at Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan.

Please be informed that the case did not go through conciliation proceedings in the
barangay because ¢ the respondent: is the Punong Barangay Jhony Fabrigas
himself representing the Barangay Government of Villa Libertad.

Preliminary conference (copy of report hereto-attached) among the contending
parties was held but did not result to amicable settlement. Hence, issuance of Order

of Investigation is hereby recommended.

For your reference and approval.

ALLE

ALA

ENR C =
RN cENRO.

o e 00
¥ Zbnaa kel

BT

é%:"mw.:z‘ ’42/; i

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312

emall ad: corrota




Republic of the Philippines

Department of Environment and Natural Resources

Region IV- MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
Taytay, Palawan

Subject: VERIFIED PROTEST/COMPLAINT FILED BY EDGAR O. PACANA
SAMUEL O. PACANA AND OSCAR O. PACANA (PROTESTANTS)
AGAINST BGY. GOVT. OF VILLA LIBERTAD, REP. BY PUNONG
BARANGAY JHONY FABREGAS AND VILLA LIBERTAD ELEM.
SCHOOL, REP. BY HEAD TEACHER BELEN S. CABUTIHAN
(PROTESTEES) FOR CANCELLATION OF CSD-04-025364-D,
LOCATED AT BGY. LIBERTAD, EL NIDO, PALAWAN

February 11, 2019
DENR CENRGC

The Community Environment and TAYTAY, PALAWAN

Natural Resources Officer 4 o - ;

Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan REC E3vW ,D
43

Sir: DAT & "N |

Relative to above verified protest/complaint submitted through undated letter of above
Protestants received by this office dated September 30, 2018, against Protestees
seeking for appropriate action on cancellation of Csd-04-025364-D identical to Lot No.
1115, Cad 1037-D as surveyed for Barangay Government, et. al., the hereto undersigned
is pleased to give his preliminary report on the matter, as follows:

That parcel of land directly involved in the case/issue was identified as approved
Subdivision Plan of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D, consisting Four Thousand and Eighty Two
(4,082) square meters with six (6) resultant lots Lot 1115-A to Lot 1115-F under Plan
Csd-04-025364, surveyed in the name of Barangay Government, et. al., situated at
Barangay Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan.

That on April 23, 2018 prior to formal submission of the verified protest/complaint by the
above Protestants, Edgar Pacana (one of the Protestants), previously wrote a letter dated
March 10, 2018 received by this office dated March 14, 2018 copy furnished the PENRO
requesting for cancellation or disapproval of Survey Plan of Survey Plan Csd-04-025364-
D.

That on April 23, 2018, this office received a PENRO Memo brought about by the said
letter request of one of the Protestants, Edgar O. Pacana with instructions to conduct
immediate in-depth verification and investigation on the issue.

That on May 15, 2018, Engineer II Marian B. Lachica of this office rendered her report of
findings in compliance to PENRO Memo. The same report was forwarded to PENRO and
a return MEMO dated June 5, 2018, received by this office on 20 of June 2018, per their
evaluation of the report, consequently, the request for cancellation of Plan Csd-04-
025364-D cannot be granted due to lack of basis.

That embedded on the same PENRO Memo was an instructions to initiate efforts for a

dialogue with Mr. Pacana and affected lot claimants for possible amicable settlement and
to require complaining party to file protest/petition pursuant to DAO 2016-31.

{ﬁ Page 1 of 2




That on w] {31, 2018 both opposing parties in response to notice of invitation (copy
attached), have shown up for an amicable settlement proceedings (photo and copy of
attendance hereto-attached) initiated by the undersigned, unfortunately, no settlement
agreement have been reached by both opposing parties, however, after the amicable
settlement ended an advise was made by the hereto undersigned to let Protestants file a
formal protest.

That on September 14, 2018 this office has received an undated letter filed by Protestants
Edgar O. Pacana, Samuel O. Pacana and Oscar O. Pacana against Barangay Government
of Villa Libertad represented by Punong Barangay Jhony M. Fabrigas and Villa Libertad
Elementary School represented by Belen S. Cabutihan for cancellation of Plan Csd-04-
025364-D.

I view of the foregoing, the hereto undersigned hereby recommends that above verified
protest/complaint be issued an ORDER OF INVESTIGATION leading to resolution of the
instant case/issue.

Very truly yours,

)

DAVID F. DALINO

LMO III/RPS-Chief

Page 2 of 2
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Republic of the Philippines

Department of Environment and Natural Resources

Region IV- MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE

5312 Taytay, Palawan
' REMR CENRO

Mr. Edgardo O. Pacana TAYTAY, P &LL&W&N

Protestant il B sl -, ot

Vs
Belen S. Cabutihan Re: in the Case of Cancellation
Head Teacher, Villa Libertad of Csd-04-025364-D
Elementary School
Respondent

Jhony Fabregas

Hon. Punong Barangay,
Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido
Palawan

Respondent

NOTICE OF INVITATION

Above-captioned case is for action of this Office brought about by the protest letter
dated March 10, 2018 of Edgar O. Pacana and received by this Office dated March 14,
2018 for the cancellation of Plan Csd-040025364-D involving the lot area of Vilia
Libertad Elementary School and the site of Barangay Hall of Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan.

In view thereof, you are invited to appear before Land Management Officer I1I David
F. Dalino of this office for a conference/ dialogue on dated July 31, 2018 at 2:00 pm to

shed light on the matter. Please bring with you any proof of ownership document as
evidence of your lawful claim of the land.

Fail not to come.

Very truly yours,

For and in the Absence of the CENRO: Hy: A

2
"

_____ » JR-
DMO 1v/Office-in- Charge

Bloun Rada will file a final prodest fo 4his
Offict.

Deliwry of Wy Jinuf
Sy 7, 2619

A 7 o s s v




PHOTO SHOWING THE AMICABLE SETTLEMENT PROCEEDINGS
OF THE OPPOSING PARTIES CONDUCTED DATED JULY 31, 2018




5312 Taytay, Palawan

Republic of the Philippines
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Region IV - MIMAROPA
COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE

ATTENDANCE

CENRO Taytay, Conference Room

Edgardo Pacana

Belen Cabutihan ?Jhcnny Fabregas
July 31, 2018 (2:00 PM)- 14 Bearing
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Mr. PABLO I. CRUZ
OIC-CENRO
Taytay, Palawan

TV & 5ai

We are submitting for your appropriate action our protest/complaint over the
approval of the subdivision plan survey of Lot 1115, Cad 1037-D, El Nido, Palawan,
under Csd-04-025364-D. The survey was conducted for the Barangay Government

of Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan, et al. A certain Feguracion Dalabajan signed in
the conformity clause as the land owner.

SIR:

As stated in our protest, the property surveyed was Lot No. 928 which was
surveyed for our late father, Santiago Pacana, in 1955 in the Bacuit Public Land

Subdivision (Case-2), Pls 31 (PHILCUSA-FOA), as the legitimate claimant and
owner.,

We have not given any authority to Feguracion Dalabajan to have our inherited
property surveyed for the barangay government of Villa Libertad and the Villa
Libertad Elementary School, hence, our protest.

We are anticipating your immediate action in this regard.

Thank you and more power.

Sincerely yours,

/zf( AR O. PACANA /SA%UELEI PACA osgé/AR 0. PACANA
National Highway, Villa Libertad '

El Nido, Palawan
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Republic of the Philippines

5312 Taytay, Palawan

Department of Environment and Natural Resources

Region IV —~ MIMAROPA
COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE

ATTENDANCE

CENRQ Taytay, C (mjem nce Room

Belen Cabutihan & Jhonny Fabregas

Edgardo Pacana
Vs,

July 31, 2018 (2:00 PM)- ¢t fearing
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Republic of the Philippines

Department of Environment and Natural Resources

Region IV- MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

Mr. Edgardo O. Pacana

Protestant
Vs DATE DL I S GN_ 1%
Belen S. Cabutihan Re: in the Case of Cancellation
Head Teacher, Villa Libertad of Csd-04-025364-D
Elementary School
Respondent
Jhony Fabregas

Hon. Punong Barangay,
Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido
Palawan

Respondent

NOTICE OF INVITATION

Above-captioned case is for action of this Office brought about by the protest letter
dated March 10, 2018 of Edgar O. Pacana and received by this Office dated March 14,
2018 for the cancellation of Plan Csd-040025364-D involving the lot area of Villa
Libertad Elementary School and the site of Barangay Hall of Villa Libertad, El Nido,
Palawan.

In view thereof, you are invited to appear before Land Management Officer III David
F. Dalino of this office for a conference/ dialogue on dated July 31, 2018 at 2:00 pm to
shed light on the matter. Please bring with you any proof of ownership document as
evidence of your lawful claim of the land.

Fail not to come.

Very truly yours,

For and in the Absence of the CENRO:

P

MA OoP JR.
DMO 1v/ e-in- Charge

Bl(,’(’ﬂ' Q:m% L\}»” F’!( G ';H']a'\’ PKJJ(S" *}C 'i’hlS
Off1ee.

of ‘&'t‘%ﬁcg af Vw\jm Jinve
Jx,ik) 1, 24




Republic of the Philippines
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
MIMAROPA REGION
PROVINCIAL ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
Sta. Monica, Puerto Princesa City

05 June 2018
MEMORANDUM
“TO ¢ The Community Environment and B o
Natural Resources Officer ﬂiwg?w By
Taytay, Palawan e i
3 SR
FROM : The OIC-Provincial Environment and ° , ({-l')‘)’\ :
Natural Resources Officer pave W€ e AED
SUBIECT : MEMORANDUM DATED MAY 30,2018 RE-INVESTIGATION

REPORT RELATIVE TO LETTER DATED MARCH 10, 2018 OF
MR. RICARDO O. PACANA REQUESTING FOR CANCELLATION
PLAN CSD-04-025364-D

Your Memorandum dated May 30, 2018 along with investigation report of Engineer 11,
Marian B. Lachica and its attachment has been received by this office on June 01, 2018.

That upon evaluation of the report, the request of Mr. Ricardo O. Pacana for cancellation of
Plan CSD-04-025364-D cannot be granted due to lack of legal basis. Please initiate efforts to
conduct a dialogue with the Mr. Pacana and affected lot claimants for possible amicable
settlements and in the negative please require the complaining party to file a protest and or
petition pursuant to DAO 2016-31 dated December 29, 2016

For immediate compliance.

ELIZARDO B. CAYATOC
Copy Furnished : n =y R oy T o~
Mr. Ricardo O. Pacana A et WAL e :
Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan F ; S
DATE 6-06-18

Sta. Monica, Puerto Princesa City ' 1&’___‘3@}
Telefax (048) 433-5638/email add:denrpalawan@yahoo.com
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Republic of the Philippines
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
MIMAROPA REGION
PROVINCIAL ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
Sta. Monica, Puerto Princesa City

05 June 2018

MEMORANDUM
TO g The Community Environment and

Natural Resources Officer

Taytay, Palawan
FROM : The OIC-Provincial Environment and °

Natural Resources Officer
SUBJECT : MEMORANDUM DATED MAY 30,2018 RE-INVESTIGATION

REPORT RELATIVE TO LETTER DATED MARCH 10, 2018 OF
MR. RICARDO O. PACANA REQUESTING FOR CANCELLATION
PLAN CSD-04-025364-D

Your Memorandum dated May 30, 2018 along with investigation report of Engineer II,
Marian B. Lachica and its attachment has been received by this office on June 01, 2018.

That upon evaluation of the report, the request of Mr. Ricardo O. Pacana for cancellation of
Plan CSD-04-025364-D cannot be granted due to lack of legal basis. Please initiate efforts to
conduct a dialogue with the Mr. Pacana and affected lot claimants for possible amicable
settlements and in the negative please require the complaining party to file a protest and or
petition pursuant to DAO 2016-31 dated December 29, 2016

For immediate compliance.

FELIZARDQ B. CAYATOC

e 72
(o 7 o
Copy Furnished : N e ‘, i

Mr. Ricardo O. Pacana Pol avdntd ¥is RIS
Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan . S ' )

g“ g vl

F .

Sta. Monica, Puerto Princesa City U0 D18 i 18 :6.76}

Telefax (048) 433-5638/email add:denrpalawan@yahoo.com




* L
Republi¥gPthe Philippines .
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
MIMAROPA Region
COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan
Email Address: cenrotaytaypal@yahoo.com.ph

May 30, 2018

MEMORANDUM LENR PENRO
FOR :  The Provincial Environment and \LAWAN RECCIDS

Natural Resources Officer — Palawan L fi c E l ﬁ
£/

Sta. Monica, Puerto, Princesa City

7 “: : SO CN » g’([ﬂ(’}
FROM :  The Community Environment and ' r'ww x‘l«& M’*
Natural Resources Office / it
Taytay-El Nido, Palawan

SUBJECT : 16 APRIL 2018 MEMORANDUM CF: LETTER DATED
MARCH 10, 2018 OF MR. EDGARDO O. PACANA TO CENRO
TAYTAY, REQUESTING FOR CANCELLATION OR
DISAPPROVAL OF SURVEY PLAN OF LOT NO. 928, PLS-31,

LOCATED AT BRGY. VILLA LIBERTAD, EL NIDO,
PALAWAN

Respectfully forwarding is the report of Engr. Marian B. Lachica in the above subject. This report
is in compliance to your memorandum dated April 16, 2018. (copy attached)

Please acknowledge receipt hereof through our email address below. Thank you.

For and in the absence of the CENRO:

P
ek ; MARIANQ P. L TIR.
y woo B Deve}opmmm;"iﬁ'gé‘fﬁem Officer IV

Officer-In-Charge

T——" o M
by the Wational Highway. Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312

Globe +63 9265059335
Smart +63 9121713889

RS T e R ————




Republic of the Philippines

Department of Environment and Natural Resources

Region IV- MIMAROPA

COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES OFFICE
5312 Taytay, Palawan

May 15, 2018
MEMORANDUM
FOR : The Community Environment and Natural Resources Officer
DENR-CENRO, Taytay, Palawan
DENR CEMR
THRU : The Chief, LPDU Tﬁ&%’?‘,ﬁh‘w’ ph L AW%N
DENR-CENRO, Taytay, Palawan E B A T g
FROM : Engineer lI, Marian B. Lachica e Sw‘\t’ N
DENR-CENRO, Taytay, Palawan A -\LMCNM
SUBJECT 4 REPORT ON THE INVESTIGATION IN LETTER DATED MARCH 10, 2018

OF MR. EDGARDO O. PACANA REGARDING HIS REQUEST FOR
CANCELLATION OR DISAPPROVAL OF SURVEY PLAN OF LOT NO. 928,
PLS-31, LOCATED AT VILLA LIBERTAD, EL NIDO, PALAWAN

INVESTIGATION REPORT

Pursuant to a PENRO Memorandum dated 16 April 2018 and received by the Office of
the CENRO Taytay on 23 April 2018 and endorsed to the undersigned on 02 May 2018, the

undersigned proceeded to the area to conduct inspection/investigation on 09 May 2018.
Hence, this report.

1. In accordance to the letter-protest dated 10 March 2018 by EDGAR Q. PACANA,
requesting for the cancellation or disapproval of the said survey plan. The PACANA's
alleged that their late father SANTIAGO PACANA claimed and was in possession of a
parcel of land in Bgy. Villa Libertad El Nido, Palawan identified as Lot 928, PLS-31
(Philcusa-Foa), Bacuit Public Land Subdivision.

2. As per records of this Office, LOT 928 of PLS-31, (Philcusa-Foa), Bacuit Public Land
Subdivision is an undecreed property, which was later numbered into different lots
during the cadastral survey (attached as ANNEX A), involving the protested survey
plan of LOT 1115 Cad. 1037-D, E! Nido Cadastre subdivided into seven (7) lots,
including Road Right of Way, under (SA No. 107-2004) dated July 16, 2004.

3. During the inspection, the PACANA stated that the alleged subdivision survey of LOT
1115 Cad. 1037-D, El Nido Cadastre was without their knowledge and consent and
thus protests the claims of Villa Libertad Elem. School and Barangay Government
over LOT 1115-A & LOT 1115-B, Csd-04-025364-D. Thereafter, BELEN S. CABUTIHAN,

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312
emailad: conrotavtaypal@vahoo. com.ph
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documents, including “Compromise Agreement” signed between Villa Libertad Elem.
School and the HEIRS of late SANTIAGO PACANA (attached as ANNEX B & C), stating
that the “HEIRS” shall withdraw and quit their claim in the contested portion of one

(1) hectare school site in exchange of below concessions:

“1. SAMUEL, OSCAR and EDGAR, all surnamed PACANA shall be given, free from
any renumeration, a 10 x 10 residential lot each; 2. GABINA ARZAGA- PACANA,
wife of the heir CESAR PACANA shall be accorded property rights over her
present residential occupation”

4. Nevertheless, LOT 1115-B, Csd-04-025364-D identical to LOT 1169, Cad. 1037-D, was
already patented/titled to Ma. Liberty Tumbokon under FP-045312-1027; LOT 1115-
D, Csd-04-025364-D identical to LOT 1171, Cad. 1037-D, with TD NO. 017-0316-R and
PROPERTY INDEX NO. 066-13-017-09-043 owned by Bo. Gov't. of Villa Libertad
(attached as ANNEX D); LOT 1115-E, Csd-04-025364-D identical to LOT 1172, Cad.
1037-D, on the other hand, was waived by EDGAR PACANA in favor of Benjamin
Ramirez.

5. To temporarily settle the issue of the parties concerned, the Barangay together with
representatives of Villa Libertad Elem. School and the Pacafia’s came to an agreement

last March 2018, not to alter and change their respective claims. However, the Pacafia
allegedly force to barbed fence their boundaries including LOT 1115-A (claimed portion
of Villa Libertad Elem. School) (see Fig. 1).

Recommendation/s:

From the foregoing, the undersigned hereby recommends to invite the said parties
regarding their claims. Also note that LOT 1115-B, Csd-04-025364-D owned by Ma.Liberty
Tumbokon has already been registered and covered by Certificate of Title.

Attached herewith is the photo documentation.

For information and compliance.

/ MARIAN B. LACHICA

by the National Highway, Poblacion, Taytay, Palawan 5312
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MEMORANDUM ‘
LR
210 . The OIC-Community Environment and LR
Natural Resources Officer
Taytay, Palawan ¥ _ ;
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FROM : The OIC-Provincial Environment and CANRSR }:HO "
Natural Resources Officer
SUBJECT ; CF: LETTER DATED MARCH 10, 2018 OF MR. EDGARDO O.

PACANA TO CENRO TAYTAY, REQUESTING FOR
CANCELLATION OR DISAPPROVAL OF SURVEY PLAN OF
LOT NO. 928, PLS-31, LOCATED AT BRGY. VILLALIBERTAD,
EL NIDO, PALAWAN ( DOC. REF. NO. 2018-3096)

Referred herewith is the copy fumished letter dated March 10, 2018 of Mr. Edgar O,
Pacana, requesting for the cancellation or disapproval of survey Plan of Lot No. 928, Pls-31,
located at Barangay Villabertad, k| Nido, Palawan.

and submit report within five (5) days u
concern of the action taken on the matter,

ﬁéaﬁbnmdmvesngmmn of the involved Tot
pon receipt hereof. Directly inform the party

For immediate com;piiance“ <

Office-In-Charge
Copy furnished: DEVIR PEMRD
- A » P =
. Ms. Edgar O. Palanca ‘ ¢ f«—-{\\ﬁfAN Rﬁf;: :
Brev. Villa Libertad. El Nido. Palawan ﬁ e &ﬂ ST
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Dear Sir:

I am one of the chiidren of the late SANTIAGO PACANA who dieq on
October 13, 1970. During his lifetime, he claimed and was in pOSSeSSfOH of a
parcel of land situated in Bgy. Villa Libertad, El Nido, Palawan identified as
Lot No. 928, Pls 31 (PHILCUSA-FOA) Bacuit Public Land Subdivision (Case-
2). Portions of this property have been sold to different persons. A portion of
the property is now a school site of Villa Libertad Elementary School while

another portion is now the site of the Barangay Hall of Bgy. Villa Libertad.

We came to know that another portion of Lot No. 928 was subdivided
in Csd-04-025364-D. This portion is now occupied by the heirs of SANTIAGO

¥

S

PACANA. The survey was conducted at the instance of the school principa!

-~ without the consent of any of the heirs.

.

We are writing this letter in order to protest the subdivision of the said
portion of the property and we are respectfully requesting for the cancei-

lation or disapproval of the said survey plan. As far as we know, no title has
yet been issued to any portion of Lot No. 928.

Thank you very much for yaur Kind consideration and apbrovat.

Very truly yours,

suéué O. PACANA

0907 692 3294
OSth 267
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 1
in Puerto Princesa City,

OkMarch 2018

Doc. No. 410D Gy i
Page No. | e p i
Book No. xL11 NG el
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¢ Document Type: Letters

i From: EDGAR O. PACANA

1 BGY. VILLA LIBERTAD, EL NIDO PALAWAN
Subject: CF: LETTER DATED MARCH 10,2018 OF MR. EDGAR 0. PACANA TO CENRO TAYTAY, REQUESTING
FOR THE CANCELLATION OR DISAPPROVAL OF SURVEY PLAN OF LOT NO. 928, PLS-31 LOCATED

BGY. VILLA LIBERTAD, EL NIDO,PAL,
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